Public Document Pack

Arun District Council
Civic Centre
Maltravers Road
Littlehampton

A R U N West Sussex
BN17 5LF

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Tel: (01903 737500)
Fax: (01903) 730442
DX: 57406 Littlehampton
Minicom: 01903 732765

e-mail: committees@arun.gov.uk

Committee Manager: Carley Lavender (Ext. 37547)
17 January 2019
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be held in Committee Room 1 [the
Pink Room] at the Arun Civic Centre, Maltravers Road, Littlehampton, BN17 5LF on
Thursday, 14 February at 6.00pm and you are requested to attend.

Members:  Councillors Chapman (Chairman), Mrs Oakley (Vice-Chairman), Ambler,
Blampied, Brooks, Cates, Dendle, Mrs Porter, Purchese and Wheal.

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members and officers are invited to make any
declarations of pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial
interests that they may have in relation to items on the
agenda, and are reminded that they should re-declare
their interest before consideration of the item or as
soon as the interest becomes apparent.

Members and officers should make their declaration by
stating:
a) the item they have the interest in
b) whether it is a pecuniary, personal and/or
prejudicial interest
c) the nature of the interest

3. MINUTES

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting
held on 15 November 2018 (which have been
previously circulated.)



10.

11.

ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA THAT THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE MEETING IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY BY REASON
OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES.

THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL'S EIGHTH
REVIEW OF THE MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME

The Independent Remuneration Panel will be attending the
meeting to present its report on the eighth review
undertaken of the Members’ Allowances Scheme. The
Panel’'s report will be circulated separately to the
agenda.

ERNST & YOUNG - AUDIT PLAN & PROGRESS REPORT
To be presented by Ernst & Young

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR 2018/19 ACCOUNTS

The report allows the Audit and Governance Committee to
consider and approve the accounting policies that will be
applied to the Statement of Accounts 2018/19 for approval by
the committee in July 2019.

CAPITAL STRATEGY

The report allows the Audit and Governance Committee to
consider and comment on the Council’s Capital Strategy
2019/20 to 2021/22 before adoption by Full Council.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The purpose of this report is to present the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy 2019/2020 and to enable the Audit
and Governance Committee to scrutinise the report
prior to making comment to Full Council. Please note
that this report is still in ‘draft’ format.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT FUND (PIF) UPDATE

Paul Broggi, Property & Estates Manager will be providing a
verbal update.

UPDATE ON PROGRESS AGAINST THE
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE PARTNERSHIPS AUDIT

A verbal update will be given by Jackie Follis — Group Head of
Policy.

(Pages 1 - 38)

(Pages 39 - 58)

(Pages 59 - 68)

(Pages 69 - 116)



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

Each year Internal Audit is required to develop an internal
audit plan for the following financial year. The Committee is
requested to approve the outline annual internal audit plan for
2019/20 attached.

REVISED STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER 2018/19

Second part of the Committee’s review of the updated
Strategic Risk Register commenced at the meeting of
15 November 2918.

PROGRESS AGAINST THE AUDIT PLAN

The Committee is required to oversee the provision of
an adequate and effective internal audit service. Part
of this process is to monitor delivery of progress
against the Audit Plan and to receive summaries of
reports issued.

The Committee is requested to note the contents of the
attached report.

INFORMATION / ADVISORY DOCUMENTS RECEIVED

E&Y Local Government Audit Committee Briefing — Dec 2018
- for information only

FUTURE WORK PLAN FOR THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Chief Internal Auditor will update the Committee on any
changes to the rolling Work Plan for 2019/20.

EXEMPT INFORMATION

The Committee is asked to consider passing the following
resolution:-

That under Section 100a (4) of the Local Government
Act 1972, the public and accredited representatives of
newspapers be excluded from the meeting for the
following item of business on the grounds that they
involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act by virtue
of the paragraph specified against the item.

(Pages 117 -
120)

(Pages 121 -
140)

(Pages 141 -
146)

(Pages 147 -
162)

(Pages 163 -
166)



Note : *Indicates report is attached for all Members of the Council only and the press
(excluding exempt items). Copies of reports can be obtained on request from the
Committee Manager).

Note : Members are reminded that if they have any detailed questions would they please
inform the Chairman and/or relevant Director in advance of the meeting.



T abey

P

Arun District

Council
Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2019

January 2019




Members of the Audit and Governance Committee 10 January 2019

Arun District Council
Civic Centre
Maltravers Road
Littlehampton

BN17 5LF

Dear Audit and Governance Committee Members
Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Audit and Governance Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2018/19 audit in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit and Governance Committee and management, and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 14 February 2019 as well as understand whether there are other matters which
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Wy "y J




contents

Overview of our Audit risks Value for Audit Scope of our
2018/19 audit 02 O Money Risks materiality 05 audit
strategy

06 Audit team 07 Audit 08 Independence 09 Appendices

timeline

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/ ).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This report is made solely to the Audit and Governance Committee and management of Arun District Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Audit and Governance Committee, and management of Arun District Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit and Governance Committee and management of Arun District Council for this report or for the opinions we have
formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.







gw Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit and Governance
Committee with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.

Audit risks and areas of focus

Under ISA240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to

improper recognition of revenue.

In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10, issued by

Inappropriate capitalisation of . New risk identified the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider
. Fraud risk . . . . . X
revenue expenditure this year. the risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of
expenditure recognition.
Our judgement is the significant risk at the Council relates to the improper
capitalisation of revenue expenditure.
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by West
Sussex County Council.
The Council’s pension fund asset is a material estimated balance and the Code
requires that this asset be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. The
information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the
actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their
behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on
the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value
estimates.
The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represents a significant
balance in the Council’s accounts and are subject to valuation changes,
Valuation of Land and Buildings Inherent risk No change in risk or impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make
focus. material judgements and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end
balances recorded in the balance sheet.

G abed

No change in risk or

Pension Liability Valuation Inherent risk
focus.

L i HRA depreciation is material in the financial statements and requires a number of
. . New risk identified . . . . .
HRA Depreciation Inherent risk this vear assumptions and judgements. In the prior year we identified errors above our
year. audit differences threshold.

New risk identified IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) and IFRS 15 (Revenue from contracts) both apply
New Accounting Standards Inherent risk this vear from 1 April 2018. We will assess the impact of these new standards to
year. determine whether they have been appropriately implemented by the Council.



gﬁl Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Materiality

Materiality has been set at £1,825k (2017/18: £1,704k), which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of

Plann_ing services.
materiality

£1 ’ 825 k Performance materiality has been set at £1,369k (2017/18: £1,278k), which represents 75% of materiality.
Performance

materiality
£1 369 k _ We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
) Audit and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movementin reserves statement, cash flow statement
differences housing revenue account and collection fund) greater than £91k (2017/18: £85k). Other
misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit
£9 1 k and Governance Committee.

9 abed



oflOverview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

§ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Arun District Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of the
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

§ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

—When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:
jb)
% Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
31 The quality of systems and processes;
§ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
§ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.



A" )

T —

+

1]

g '

o Audit risks



‘g Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

We have set out the significant risks identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach. The risks identified below may
change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

What is the risk? What will we do?

Inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure

o
=inancial statement impact

(ﬂisstatements that occurin
relation to the risk of fraud in
revenue and expenditure
recognition could affect the income
and expenditure accounts. We are
focussing our testing on capital
additions (£14.46m in 2017/18).

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We have identified an opportunity and incentive
to capitalise expenditure under the accounting
framework, to remove it from the general fund.
This would result in funding expenditure that
should properly be defined as revenue, through
inappropriate sources such as capital receipts,
capital grants, or borrowing.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, managementis in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

The manipulation of capitalising expenditure
could occur through management override of
controls.

Our approach will focus on:

» Journals testing - we will use our testing of Journals to identify
transactions moved from revenue to capital.

» For significant additions we will examine invoices, capital expenditure
authorisations, leases and other data that support these additions. We
review the sample selected against the definition of capital expenditure in
IAS 16.

To further respond to the risk of management override we will focus on:

» Testing the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general
ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial
statements.

» Reviewing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
» Evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions



‘g Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

What is the risk/area of focus?

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19
require the Council to make extensive disclosures within its
financial statements regarding its membership of the Local
Government Pension Scheme administered by West Sussex
County Council.
e Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated
dmlance and the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on
@e Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2018 this totalled
9,183k.
gle information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued
0 the Council by the actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to
undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and
Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on
the use of management experts and the assumptions
underlying fair value estimates.

Valuation of Land and Buildings

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
represents a significant balance in the Council’s accounts and
are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and
depreciation charges. Management is required to make
material judgements and apply estimation techniques to
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

What will we do?

We will:

Liaise with the auditors of West Sussex Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the
information supplied to the actuary in relation to West Sussex County Council.

Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans Robertson) including the assumptions
they have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by Public
Sector Auditor Appointments for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any
relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s financial
statementsin relation to IAS19.

We will:

Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the
work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g. floor
plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenge the key assumptions
used by the valuer;

Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued withina 5 year
rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE.

Review assets not subject to valuationin 2018/19 to confirm that the remaining asset base is
not materially misstated; and

Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.



‘g Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)

What is the risk/area of focus?

What will we do?

HRA Depreciation

HRA depreciation is material in the financial statements and requires a number
of assumptions and judgements. In the prior year we identified errors above our
audit differences threshold. 2017/18 was the first year where Authorities with
HRA Housing Stock needed to account for depreciation using proper accounting
practices so it is still a relatively new concept.

o
Q
%RS 9 Financial instruments

:jhis new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts from
the 2018/19 financial year and will change:
. How financial assets are classified and measured;
. How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and
. The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the 2018/19
Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting provides guidance on the
application of IFRS 9. However, until the Guidance Notes are issued and any
statutory overrides are confirmed there remains some uncertainty on the
accounting treatment.

We will:

¢ Review the depreciation calculation for HRA Housing Stock for accuracy.

e Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuer, including the adequacy
of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the
results of their work and understand the assumptions used in their calculation.
Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their
calculation (e.g. componentisation, remaining useful lives) and challenge the
key assumptions used by the valuer.

Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial
statements.

We will:

e Assess the authority’s implementation arrangements that should include an
impact assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard,
transitional adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;

« Consider the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;
« Review new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for assets; and
Check additional disclosure requirements.

11



‘g Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers We will:
e Assess the authority’s implementation arrangements that should include an

This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts from the impact assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard,
2018/19 financial year. transitional adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;

) ] o e Consider application to the authority’s revenue streams, and where the
The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of performance standard is relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it
obligations under customer contracts and the linking of income to the meeting satisfies a performance obligation; and

Bif gD gerieenEe eloliget fers, e Check additional disclosure requirements.
The 2018/19 Cipfa Code of practice on local authority accounting provides
idance on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a useful flow diagram and
ommentary on the main sources of LG revenue and how they should be
(mecognised.

II?)he impact on local authority accounting is likely to be limited as large revenue
streams like council tax, non domestic rates and government grants will be
outside the scope of IFRS 15. However where that standard is relevant, the
recognition of revenue will change and new disclosure requirements introduced.

12



03 AVCIIER @V EVAREE

' '

e S 1




E@ Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Informed
Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise decision making
your arrangements to:

§ Take informed decisions;
® Deployresourcesin a sustainable manner; and
g Work with partners and other third parties.

@ . .

llj considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework

Jfor local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required Proper arrangements for
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement. L

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of

Audit Practice defines as: Sustainable Working with

resource partners and

I : . S depl t third parti
“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would eploymen PR

be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector
and organisation-specific level. In 2018/19 this has included consideration of the steps taken by the Council to
consider the impact of Brexit on its future service provision, medium-term financing and investment values.
Although the precise impact cannot yet be modelled, we anticipate that Authorities will be carrying out scenario
planning and that Brexit and its impact will feature on operational risk registers.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other
stakeholders. At the time of our planning, this has resulted in the identification of the significant risk noted on
the following page which we view as relevant to our value for money conclusion.

14



: ¢ Value for Money

0

Value for Money Risks

What arrangements does the
risk affect?

What is the significant value for money risk?

What will we do?

Financial pressures in the public sector continue to mount.
As a result of these pressures there is increased focus and
wider public interestin the financial resilience of Local
Government. The Council does not have many ongoing
developments or income generation schemes integrated
into its revenue and capital budgets which could have a
significantimpact on the medium term finances.

Deploy resourcesin a
sustainable manner

Tle latest financial forecast has been prepared against a
ntinuing backdrop of unprecedented uncertainty over
vernment funding and the economy. The Medium Term

Einancial Strategy (MTFS) uses the most recent information

@Mailable to forecast the Council’s income and expenditure

over the next 5 years and the situation has deteriorated

since the prior year principally due to a forecast that income
from both New Homes Bonus (NHB) and business rates will
reduce significantly. It is noted that the forecast is heavily
dependent on both the future NHB scheme and the
methodology that Central Government will use to reset the

Business Rates baseline and that managementaim to fine

tune this assessment as more information becomes

available. However, this remains a concern for the Council
from a financial resilience perspective over the medium
term.

Our approach will focus on:

* Reviewing achievement against the 2018/19 budget

* Reviewing the reasonableness of the 2019/20 budget and five
year Finance Strategy

+ Evaluating the progress made with and achievablility of
efficiency and savings plans, including the purchase of the
commercial property in Bognor Regis

15






%Fi Audit materiality
Materiality

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2018/19 has been set at £1,825k. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have provided supplemental
information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

-
g .

e e_xper}dltur(_e Performance
__on provision of services B
\l

£91,252Kk / £1 369K
Planning Audit
materiality differences
£1,825k < £91k

We request that the Audit and Governance Committee confirm its understanding of,
and agreement to, these materiality and reporting levels.

Key definitions

Planning materiality - the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Performance materiality — the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at
£1,369k which represents 75% of planning materiality.

Audit difference threshold - we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account
and collection fund that have an effect on income or that relate to other
comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movementin reserves
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit and
Governance Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

17






{&& Scope of our audit
Our Audit Process and Strategy

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectivenessin its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:
1. Financial statement audit
Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
a@ill undertake during the course of our audit.

@rocedures required by standards
Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
= Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
» Entity-wide controls;
» Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
» Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
» Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
» Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

19



{& Scope of our audit
Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:
< ldentifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and

e Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
—We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:

Q Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and

@ Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
Nde will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
Gehprovement, to management and the Audit and Governance Committee.

Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Chief Internal Auditor, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports,

together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial
statements.

20



{&& Scope of our audit
Our Audit Process and Strateqgy (continued

Earlier deadline for production of the financial statements

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year. From that year the timetable for the
preparation and approval of accounts will be brought forward with draft accounts needing to be prepared by 31 May and the publication of the accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide risks for both the preparers and the auditors of the financial statements:

« The Council now has less time to prepare the financial statements and supporting working papers. Risks to the Council include slippage in delivering data for analytics work in
format and to time required, late working papers and internal quality assurance arrangements.

« Asyour auditor, we have a more significant peak in our audit work and a shorter period to complete the audit. Risks for auditors relate to delivery of all audits within same
compressed timetable. Slippage at one client could potentially put delivery of others at risk.

To mitigate this risk we will require:

O good quality draft financial statements and supporting working papers by the agreed deadline;
R appropriate Council staff to be available throughout the agreed audit period; and

e complete and prompt responses to audit questions.

N

mou are unable to meet key dates within our agreed timetable, we will notify you of the impact on the timing of your audit, which may be that we postpone your audit until later
in the summer and redeploy the team to other work to meet deadlines elsewhere.

Where additional work is required to complete your audit, due to additional risks being identified, additional work being required as a result of scope changes, or poor audit
evidence, we will notify you of the impact on the fee and the timing of the audit. Such circumstances may result in a delay to your audit while we complete other work elsewhere.

To support the Council we will:
 Work with the Council to engage early to facilitate early substantive testing where appropriate.

* Provide an early review on the Council’s streamlining of the Statement of Accounts where non-material disclosure notes are removed.

« Facilitate faster close workshops to provide an interactive forum for Local Authority accountants and auditors to share good practice and ideas to enable us all to achieve a
successful faster closure of accounts for the 2018/19 financial year.

* Work with the Council to improve the use of EY Client Portal, this will:
e Streamline our audit requests through a reduction of emails and improved means of communication;
« Provide on -demand visibility into the status of audit requests and the overall audit status;
e Reduce risk of duplicate requests; and
e Provide better security of sensitive data.
e Agree the team and timing of each element of our work with you.

e Agree the supporting working papers that we require to complete our audit.
21






8 Audit team
Use of specialists

When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The area where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit is:

Valuation of Land and Buildings EY Valuations Team

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

V@also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

-NAnaIyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;
«Wassess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;
< Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

« Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.

23



AL




% Audit timeline
Timetable of communication and deliverables

' Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2018/19.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit and Governance Committee and we will discuss them with the Audit and
Governance Committee Chair as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning: November
Risk assessment and setting of scopes.
Walkthrough of key systems and December
processes
Y Januar
) y
(@]
@ February Audit and Governance Committee Audit Planning Report
N
ol . .
Testing of routine processes and March
controls
Interim audit testing
April
May
June
Year end audit July Audit and Governance Committee Audit Results Report
Audit Completion procedures Audit opinions and completion certificates
August
Autumn Audit and Governance Committee Annual Audit Letter

25






@ Independence
Introduction

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate. The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

» The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and » In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
including consideration of all relationships between services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
the you, your affiliates and directors and us; relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties

» The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
are considered to be effective, including any create. We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address

;_,U Engagement Quality review; such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to

€2 The overall assessment of threats and safeguards; - asjsessed; ] ] ] ) )
M . .. » Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
Information about the general policies and process

—J Within EY to maintain objectivity and independence. > Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is independent and, if applicable, that any
» Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

more restrictive independence rules than permitted > Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;

under the Ethical Standard » Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your policy for the supply of non-audit
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;

» Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms;
and

» An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements, the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to
provide non-audit services that has been submitted;

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

27



@ Independence
Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any. We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non -audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council. Examplesinclude where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you. At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.

W@ believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.

&me of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with
ypbur policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.

ﬁthe time of writing, we have not undertaken any non-audit work. We plan to undertake the Housing Benefit Assurance Process, and the fee is less than the 70% limit.
elf interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you. We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements. From 2018-19, the Council is responsible for appointing their own reporting accountant to undertake the certification of the housing benefit
subsidy claim in accordance with the Housing Benefit Assurance Process (HBAP) requirements that are being established by the DWP. DWP’s HBAP guidance has now
been published and the Council has appointed EY as its reporting accountant from 2018-19 for a period of five years, subject to the agreement of an engagement letter.

The specific testing of individual benefit claims and associated subsidy calculations undertaken in respect of this Agreed Upon Procedure (AUP) engagement is distinct
and separate to any work we have or will undertake on the financial systems of the Authority. The results of the AUP testing is not reflected in the amounts
included/disclosed in the financial statements.

In respect of the checking of benefit system parameters, this work is common across our external audit procedures and this AUP engagement. However, our external
audit is concluded prior to this AUP engagement. Therefore the external audit conclusion is therefore not reliant upon the conclusion of our AUP engagement.

No advice will be given in relation to accounting treatment. The report we provide will be prepared or given solely for the purposes of the agreed upon procedures
engagement described above and will not be used or relied upon for any other purposes.



@ Independence
Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Management threats
Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council. Management threats may also arise during the provision of
a non-audit service in relation to which managementis required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report.

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

6¢ abed

Other communications

EY Transparency Report 2018
Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence

and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processesin place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm

is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2018 and can be found here:

http://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018




OIel» Appendices




= Appendix A
Fees

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

Planned fee Scale fee Final Fee The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:
2018/19 2018/19 2017/18
I A e

» Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

Total Fee - Code work (1) 43,969 43,969 58,082
Tthjal audit 43,969 43,969 58,082 » Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being
er non-audit services not unqualified;
ered above (Housing Benefits) 10,379 10,379 10,100
( . . » Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the
Total other non-audit services 10,379 10,379 10,100 Council: and
Total fees 54.348 54,348 68,182

» The Council has an effective control environment.
All fees exclude VAT

Note:

. If fth ti t f , ill
(1) Our 2018/19 Code work includes additional planned procedures highlighted in section any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we wi

two of this report to address the new accounting requirements of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers. As at the date of our
planning report the Council is yet to evidence their assessment of the impact of these
standards, and so we cannot currently quantify the expected scale fee variation for these
additional procedures. We will agree this with management, depending on the identified
impact of the new standards and any additional fee is subject to agreement by the PSAA.

(2) Our 2017/18 Housing Benefit Certification final fee includes £1,770 in respect of
additional work required to review and capture extended testing undertaken due to errors
identified during our testing and the impact on the qualification letter. The proposed
additional fee is subject to approval by the PSAA.

seek a variation to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the
Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the
public and formal objections will be charged in addition to the
scale fee.

31



= Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee

We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit and Governance Committee

Required communications |i What is reported?

Terms of engagement
Our responsibilities

P@nning and audit
&proach

Synificant findings from
%’3 audit

Confirmation by the Audit and Governance Committee of acceptance of terms of
engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
Written representations that we are seeking

Expected modifications to the audit report

Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Our Reporting to you

9 When and where

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA'’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA'’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Audit planning report

Audit results report

32



= Appendix B
Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications |i What is reported? 9 When and where
Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to Audit results report

continue as a going concern, including:
 Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

 Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements

e The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

@sstatements e Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by Audit results report
(@) law or regulation

® e The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods

% * Arequest that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected

e Corrected misstatements that are significant
e Material misstatements corrected by management

Fraud e Enquiries of the Audit and Governance Committee to determine whether they have Audit results report
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

* Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

e Adiscussion of any other matters related to fraud

Related parties < Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties Audit results report
including, when applicable:

e Non-disclosure by management

< Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions

e Disagreementover disclosures

e Non-compliance with laws and regulations

< Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

33



= Appendix B
Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications |i What is reported? 9 When and where
Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals Audit Planning Report
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence Audit Results Report

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:

e The principal threats
e Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
* An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

< Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity
and independence

%ternal confirmations e Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations Audit results report
< Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

abed

Consideration of lawsand < Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and Audit results report
regulations believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off

< Enquiry of the Audit and Governance Committee into possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial
statements and that the Audit and Governance Committee may be aware of

Internal controls < Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

34



=, Appendix B
Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications |i What is reported? 9 When and where

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with Audit results report

governance

Material inconsistencies Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which Audit results report
and misstatements management has refused to revise
Auditors report < Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report
ﬂ - -

L%‘ee Reporting e Breakdown of fee information when the audit plan is agreed Audit planning report
D « Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit Audit results report
w e Any non-audit work
ggrtification work Summary of certification work undertaken Certification report

35



= Appendix C

Additional audit information

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Our responsibilities required < Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
by auditing standards perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
< Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

e Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.

< Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

< Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Council to express an opinion on the financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial statements, the
Audit and Governance Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Audit and Governance
Committee and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

e Maintaining auditor independence.

og abed

36



= Appendix C
Additional audit information (continued)

Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines:
e The locations at which we conduct audit procedures to support the opinion given on the financial statements; and
« The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

cumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could

e amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.
(¢
w
\l

37



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE
ON 14 FEBRUARY 2019

PART A: REPORT

SUBJECT: Approval of Accounting Policies 2018/19

REPORT AUTHOR: Carolin Martlew, Financial Services Manager
DATE: 15/01/2019

EXTN: 37568

PORTFOLIO AREA: Corporate Support

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The report allows the Audit and Governance Committee to consider and approve the
accounting policies that will be applied to the Statement of Accounts 2018/19 for approval
by the committee in July 2019.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Committee is requested to approve the accounting policies that will be applied to the
Statement of Accounts 2018/19.

1. BACKGROUND:

1.1 It is the responsibility of the charged with governance (the Audit and
Governance Committee) to consider and agree the accounting policies to be
applied to the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019.

1.2  The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s income and expenditure
for the year, and its financial position at 31 March 2019.

2. PROPOSAL(S):

2.1  The Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases and conventions,
rules and practices applied by the Council in preparing and presenting the
financial statements. The accounting policies included in Appendix 1.

2.2 It should be noted that it is recommended practice for Council’s to only adopt
Accounting Policies that are relevant to their Statement of Accounts. If
during the preparation of the Accounts and external audit issues arise that
require additions to the adopted policies the committee will be updated of
any subsequent changes.

3. OPTIONS:

Page 39



Accounting policies are a statutory requirement and therefore the Committee is requested
to approve the accounting policies that will be applied to the Statement of Accounts
2018/19.

4. CONSULTATION:

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO
Relevant Town/Parish Council v
Relevant District Ward Councillors v
Other groups/persons (please specify) v
5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO YES NO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)
Financial v
Legal v
Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment v
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & v
Disorder Act
Sustainability v
Asset Management/Property/Land v
Technology v
Other (please explain) v

6. IMPLICATIONS:
The Accounting Policies will be applied to the Statement of Accounts 2018/19

7. REASON FOR THE DECISION:

To ensure that the Statement of Accounts is prepared using proper accounting practices
as required by the Local Government Act 2003.

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:

The code of Practice on Local Authority on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2018/19 Accounts (CIPFA)

Prudential Code (CIPFA)
LAAP Bulletin: Closure of the 2018/19 Accounts and Related Matters (CIPFA)

Page 40




Note 1 - Accounting Policies

i. General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2018/19 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2019. The Council is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, and those
Regulations require the statements to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting
practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is
principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current
assets and financial instruments.

ii. Accruals of Expenditure and Income

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

e Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

e Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet, subject to considerations of materiality.

e Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees)
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when
payments are made, subject to considerations of materiality.

e Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the
contract.

¢ Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge
made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

ili. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature in one month or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

1
Page 41



In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash management.

iv. Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of
the Council's financial performance.

v. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates & Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period
adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

vi. Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services and support services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of
holding fixed assets during the year:

e depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

e revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off

e amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is required to make an annual contribution
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory
guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance for MRP, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for
the difference between the two.

2
Page 42



Whilst the Council is no longer debt-free, the debt held relates solely to the HRA self-
financing settlement, and under current regulations there is no requirement for MRP.
However, the Council has an approved loan repayment provision policy which ensures that
there will be sufficient funds available to repay the housing debt when it matures.

vii. Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on
behalf of the major preceptors (including Government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting
council tax and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statue to maintain a
separate fund (i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in
respect of council tax and NDR. Under legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing
authorities, major preceptors and central government share proportionally the risks and
rewards that the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than
predicted.

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR:

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is the Council's share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations
determine the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council's General
Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the
General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the Council's share of the end of the year balances in respect of
council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts,
overpayments and prepayments and appeals.

Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of the likelihood
arising from a past event that payments due under statutory arrangements will not be made
(fixed or determinable payments), the asset is written down and a charge made to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the revised future cash flows.

viii. Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable during Employment:

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees and are recognised as
an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An
accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in
lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates

3
Page 43



applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the
benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits:

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision
to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an
accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to the Non Distributed
Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a
restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require
the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post-employment Benefits:

Employees of the Council are members of The Local Government Pensions Scheme,
administered by West Sussex County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to
members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees work for the Council.

The Local Government Pension Scheme:
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:

e The liabilities of the West Sussex County Council Pension Fund attributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit
method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about
mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings
for current employees.

e Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using an appropriate discount
rate.

e The assets of the West Sussex County Council Pension Fund attributable to the council
are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

o quoted securities — current bid price
o unquoted securities - professional estimate

4
Page 44



o unitised securities - current bid price
o property - market value.

The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following components:

e Service cost comprising:
o current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service
earned this year - allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the services for which the employees worked;

o past service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment
or curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years -
debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement;

o netinterest on the defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. net interest expense for
the Council - the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement - this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period - taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period
as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

¢ Remeasurements comprising:

o the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

o actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to
the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

e Contributions paid to the West Sussex County Council Pension Fund - cash paid as
employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted
for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the
Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such
amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the
Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being
required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits
are earned by employees.

5
Page 45



Discretionary Benefits:

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in
the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

ix. Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

e those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period - the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

e those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.

x. Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at
which it was originally recognised.

For the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year
according to the loan agreement.

Trade payables (amounts due to contractors and suppliers) are recognised in the accounts
when contractual obligations are incurred in relation to exchange of goods and services,
rather than when receipts or payments pass from one party to another. The trade payables
are accounted for at amortised cost taken as being equivalent to the carrying amount on
initial recognition (i.e. the transaction amount).

6
Page 46



The financial guarantees given by the Council are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but
are disclosed in note 39.

Financial Assets:

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics.
The main classes of financial asset measured at:

e amortised cost
e fair value through profit of loss (PFPL).

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual
payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows do not
take the form of a basic debt instrument).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. Annual
credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based on the carrying
amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most
of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest
credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.

Expected Credit Loss Model:

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised
cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to
lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade
receivables (debtors) held by the Council.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might
not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a
crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increase significantly since an instrument was
initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased
significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected losses.

7
Page 47



Financial Assets Measure at Fair Value through Profit and Loss:

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes party to the contractual provision of the financial instrument and are initially
measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arrive
in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:

e instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
e other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow
analysis.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with three levels
(see xxi Fair Value).

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Xi. Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable
assurance that:

e the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and

e the grants or contributions will be received

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service
potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must
be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ringfenced revenue grants
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital
Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment

8
Page 48



Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Business Improvement Districts

A Business Improvement District (BID) scheme applies to Bognor Regis. The scheme is
funded by a BID levy paid by non-domestic ratepayers. The Council acts as a principal under
the scheme, and accounts for income received and expenditure incurred (including
contributions to the BID project) within the relevant services within the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

xii. Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset
to the Council.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market.
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are
therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is
amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be
impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out
of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10k) the Capital
Receipts Reserve.

xiii. Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value (see xxi).
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually by a professionally qualified valuer
according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to

9
Page 49



the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However,
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out
of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10k) the Capital
Receipts Reserve.

xiv. Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee:
Finance Leases:

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease's inception (or the
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by
a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to
the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing
down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

e a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant, or equipment -
applied to write down the lease liability, and

e a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease

10
Page 50



term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset
does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue funds towards deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted
by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the
difference between the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, which matches the pattern of payments in all cases.

The Council as Lessor:

Finance Leases:

The Council has no leases currently determined as finance leases.
Operating Leases:

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property, the asset is retained in the
Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to Other Operating Expenditure in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease, which matches the pattern of receipts in all cases.

xv. Support Services

Support Services are identified as a separate heading in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement except for the proportion allocated to the Housing Revenue Account in
line with the Council's local reporting format.

xvi. Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

11
Page 51



Recognition:

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential
to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred. Expenditure on individual items of less than £25k
is regarded as de minimis, and charged to revenue.

Measurement:
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

e the purchase price

e any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be their fair value, unless
the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the
cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the
cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account.
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement
in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

e infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical
cost

e dwellings - current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social
housing (EUV-SH)

e surplus assets - the current value measurement base is fair value, the price that would
be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date

e all other assets - current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the
asset in its existing use (existing use value - EUV).

12
Page 52



Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of
an asset, depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of current value.

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the
year-end, but as a minimum every five years.

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

e where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the
amount of the accumulated gains)

e where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into
the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment:

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

e where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the
amount of the accumulated gains)

e where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the

carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

13
Page 53



Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not
been recognised.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following basis:

e buildings (other than HRA dwellings) - straight-line allocation over the useful life of the
property as estimated by the valuer

e vehicles, plant and equipment - generally straight-line allocation over 5 - 20 years
e infrastructure - straight-line allocation over 20 - 40 years

¢ HRA dwellings - depreciation is calculated by assuming a remaining useful life of 37
years for both houses and flats. These figures are based on weighted averages of the
remaining useful lives of the key components of each dwelling (structure, roof, kitchen,
bathroom, boiler and externals).

Where appropriate the individual components of an asset will be depreciated separately. The
materiality thresholds for applying componentisation are as follows:

e Assets other than HRA dwellings: Componentisation will only apply to an asset whose
depreciable capital value is greater than or equal to £500k.

+ HRA dwellings: The basis of depreciation for HRA dwellings (37 years for both houses
and flats) serves as a proxy for componentisation as the relevant useful lives are
calculated by reference to the weighted average of the useful lives of the key
components.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale:

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent

14
Page 54



decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are
recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit
on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount
before they were classified as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale,
and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as
part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at
the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10k are categorised as capital receipts. A
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals are payable to the Government in
accordance with statutory requirements. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to
the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set
aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing Requirement).
A further constraint applies to the use of the additional receipts resulting from the
Government's policies for reinvigorating the Right to Buy. In accordance with the terms of an
agreement between the Council and the Government these receipts can only be used to fund
30% of the cost of new social housing, the remaining 70% being met from other resources.
Failure to meet these conditions will result in the receipts being paid to the Government.
Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

xvii. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions:

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For

15
Page 55



instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council has an obligation, and are measured at
the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where
it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service area if it virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council
settles the obligation.

Contingent Liabilities:

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.

Contingent Assets:

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential.

xviii. Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund

Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of

16
Page 56



Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then
transferred back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against council
tax for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments, local taxation, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent
usable resources for the Council — these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

xix. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to
the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

xx. Value Added Tax (VAT)

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

xxi. Fair Value

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as Surplus Assets and Investment
Properties and some of its Financial Instruments such as Property Funds and Public Works
Loan Board (PWLB) loans at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The Council's external valuers measure the fair value of an asset or liability using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
the market participates act in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of
a non-financial asset, a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use is taken into account.

Valuation techniques are used that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data is available, where possible maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy as follows:

17
Page 57



Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Council can access at the measurement date

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

18
Page 58



Agenda Iltem 8

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE
ON 14 FEBRUARY 2019

PART A: REPORT

SUBJECT: Capital Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22

REPORT AUTHOR: Carolin Martlew, Financial Services Manager
DATE: 15/01/2019

EXTN: 37568

PORTFOLIO AREA: Corporate Support

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The report allows the Audit and Governance Committee to consider and comment on the
Council’'s Capital Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 before adoption by Full Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Committee is requested to recommend to Full Council that the Capital Strategy
2019/20 to 2021/21 be approved.

1. BACKGROUND:

1.1 This strategy forms the framework for capital investment decisions over the
next three years and will inform the detailed annual capital budgets over this
period. It is closely linked to the Treasury Management Strategy, the
Investment Strategy and the Borrowing Strategy.

1.2  The strategy aims to balance capital expenditure needs and expectations
(e.g. replacement of business critical IT systems) with the scarcity of
available resources.

2. PROPOSAL(S):

2.1 The Treasury Management Code allows authorities to delegate the detailed
management of Treasury Management, including the Capital Strategy, to a
sub-committee and this responsibility is now delegated to the Audit and
Governance Committee. This delegation will facilitate more active discussion
of the Capital Strategy and its implementation though overall responsibility
will at all times remain with the full Council.

2.2  Capital Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 for consideration is included in
Appendix 1.

Page 59



3.

OPTIONS:

To endorse the Capital Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22.

4. CONSULTATION:
Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO
Relevant Town/Parish Council v
Relevant District Ward Councillors v
Other groups/persons (please specify) v
5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO YES NO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)
Financial v
Legal v
Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment v
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & v
Disorder Act
Sustainability v
Asset Management/Property/Land v
Technology v
Other (please explain) v
6. IMPLICATIONS:

The Capital Strategy will inform capital expenditure decisions.

7.
To ensure that the capital strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 is considered before approval by

REASON FOR THE DECISION:

Full Council.

8.

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Prudential Code (CIPFA)

Page 60




ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL

CAPITAL STRATEGY - 2019/20 to 2021/22
1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Overview
This strategy forms the framework for capital investment decisions over the next three years
and will inform the detailed annual capital budgets over this period. It is closely linked to the
Treasury Management Strategy, the Investment Strategy and the Borrowing Strategy.
The strategy aims to balance capital expenditure needs and expectations (e.g. replacement of
business critical IT systems) with the scarcity of available resources.

1.2 Member approval and review
The Treasury Management Code allows authorities to delegate the detailed management of
Treasury Management, including the Capital Strategy, to a sub-committee and this
responsibility is now delegated to the Audit and Governance Committee. This delegation will
facilitate more active discussion of the Capital Strategy and its implementation though overall
responsibility will at all times remain with the full Council.

1.3 Strategic Direction of the Council
A key driver of the Capital Strategy is the Council’s 2020 Vision programme — “working
together for a better future”. This programme provides strategic direction to help the Council
become more effective and sustainable and to enable it to meet the demands of the future. The
strands of the Vision programme are :

Offering a better customer experience
Strengthening external relationships

Providing more digital online services
Becoming smaller and more effective

1.4 Capital Expenditure
Capital expenditure, defined in accordance with the Council’s approved accounting policies
and procedures, can be funded in a variety of ways;-

Grants

Section 106 contributions
Capital receipts

Direct Revenue contributions
Borrowing

The method of funding for any particular scheme will depend on a number of factors and this is
covered in more detail below.

It should be noted that the Council has extremely limited resources for the funding of capital
expenditure, with the capital receipts balance having reduced significantly over recent years due
to the planned use of these receipts for the delivery of the Littlehampton Wave project
(Littlehampton’s new sports and leisure facility).

Page 61



1.5 Whole life costing for capital schemes
Whole life costing can be defined as “the systematic consideration of all relevant costs and
revenues associated with the acquisition and ownership of an asset.” In practical terms this
means that any appraisal of a proposed capital project will need to consider not just the initial
capital cost but all costs and income streams associated with the project that are likely to occur
in future years, including possible replacement or disposal costs. This is vital to ensure that the
Council is not committing itself to future liabilities that are unsustainable.

1.6 Scheme Evaluation and Risk
Any appraisal of proposed new capital schemes should include a full evaluation of risk, having
regard to the whole life costing methodology set out above.

1.7 Monitoring of approved capital schemes
For approved capital schemes it is the responsibility of the relevant budget holder to manage
costs and to provide explanations for any variations from the approved budget. Budget
monitoring statements are presented to Corporate Management Team on a monthly basis and to
Cabinet quarterly.

1.8 Separate capital programmes for the Housing Revenue Account and the General Fund
The capital programmes for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and the General Fund are
considered in detail below. The HRA is a statutorily ring-fenced account covering income and
expenditure relating to the Council’s rented stock and the General Fund covers all other
Council services. The ring-fence means that the HRA and the General Fund are completely
separate entities, each having their own budget and financial model. For these reasons the HRA
and General Fund capital programmes are considered separately.

2. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) PROGRAMME

2.1 Acquisition of new dwellings

The HRA capital programme for 2019/20 to 2021/22 will be driven by the approved HRA

Business Plan. One of the key priorities of this plan is the acquisition of 250 new dwellings

over the 10 year life of the plan, the acquisition to be funded from a mix of “1 for 1 Right to

Buy receipts* (30%) and borrowing (70%). However, a recently published Government

consultation paper proposed a number of changes to the way that retained Right to Buy

receipts can be used and this could have significant implications for the planned programme.
*The receipts retained by agreement with the Government subject to these receipts being

used for the provision of new social housing.

2.2 Other capital expenditure
The HRA Business Plan identified the need for significant investment in the existing housing
stock as one of the primary concerns for the Housing Service. The two key issues in the short
to medium term will be
e undertaking a reappraisal of the current improvements/capitalised repairs programme in
the light of the outcome of the stock condition survey, and
e cstablishing and implementing a programme of improvements to some of the sheltered
schemes

Page 62



2.3

3.

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

Affordability, borrowing and the abolition of the HRA debt cap

The HRA capital programme will need to be constantly reviewed to assess affordability. In
particular, consideration will need to be given to the loan servicing costs of any new borrowing
to ensure that these costs, together with the costs associated with existing, self-financing, debt
can be sustained.

It is worth noting that due to Arun’s policy of making prudent debt redemption provision the
(recently abolished) HRA debt-cap has never been a barrier to additional borrowing.

GENERAL FUND PROGRAMME

Core annual programme

The Council has a core annual programme comprising asset management (all non HRA assets),
Information Technology and Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s).

DFG’s pay for essential adaptations to help people with disabilities stay in their own homes.
The DFG programme is entirely funded by Government Grant whereas the asset management
and Information Technology programmes are funded by revenue contributions.

Property Investment Fund

A property investment fund has been established with the aim of acquiring properties to
generate a return for the Council. Property acquisitions are funded by earmarking a proportion
of the Council’s capital receipts from land and property disposals. Acquisitions can only be
made once a full business case has been completed and the risks fully understood and
evaluated. Further details are set out in the Arun District Council Property Investment Strategy
2017-2022.

Other Schemes

In addition to the core annual programme other schemes will be considered subject to the
criteria set out below. However, the key issue here is the lack of funding, as reflected in the
Council’s medium term financial strategy which envisages only a modest programme. It is
therefore particularly important that any new schemes have a clear benefit to ensure that
limited resources are used in the most effective possible way.

Prioritising new schemes

In common with other local authorities Arun is facing a challenging financial climate and it is
therefore essential that systems are in place to ensure that scarce resources are allocated in the
most effective possible way. New schemes will be assessed against the following criteria;-

e Link to the Council’s strategic direction (the 2020 Vision programme)
Availability of specific external funding

Demonstration of a sound business case

Whole life cost implications (see 1.5 above)

Value for money

High priority will be given to the replacement of business critical IT systems.

Page 63



3.5

3.6

3.7

Affordability and available resources
In addition to considering the merits of individual schemes the Council will need to assess the
overall affordability of any new programme, having regard to the availability of resources,
existing financial commitments and the projected level of balances forecast in the medium
term financial strategy.
As outlined in 1.4 above, possible sources of funding for
capital schemes are;-
e (rants
Section 106 contributions
Capital receipts
Direct Revenue contributions
Borrowing

Specific resource issues

Grants and Section 106 contributions are generally used to fund specific capital schemes linked
to the conditions imposed by the relevant grant or section 106 contribution. There is little, if
any, latitude in the way this funding can be applied.

Capital receipts are derived from the sale of the Council’s assets, including council houses sold
under the Right to Buy. It is the Council’s policy to use these receipts (with the exception of “1
for 1”’Right to Buy receipts which can only be used for the provision of new social housing) to
support the General Fund capital programme. A specified proportion of these receipts will be
earmarked for the Property Investment Fund (see 3.2 above).

Revenue contributions are a flexible source of funding but they put an immediate strain on the
General Fund balance and can therefore only be used to a limited extent. Borrowing spreads
the cost over a number of years but loan servicing costs and the overall level of debt exposure
both need to be considered and clearly flagged in a business case.

Major schemes already approved and committed

The existing capital programme includes two major schemes which the Council is fully
committed to delivering. These schemes will take priority over any others in terms of

the allocation of resources. These schemes are “The Wave” — Littlehampton’s new sports and
leisure facility — and the Pavilion Park at Bognor Regis. It is extremely likely that these
schemes will absorb the bulk of any available funding and, given that the schemes are the
Council’s stated priorities, it is vital that resources are not allocated to other non-priority
schemes.

Page 64



4. LINKS TO OTHER COUNCIL STRATEGIES

4.1 Treasury Management Strategy
The capital strategy is closely linked to the Treasury Management Strategy and it is essential
that any investment decisions are informed by both strategies. In particular the assessment of
affordability outlined in 3.5 above will need to have regard to the relevant elements of the
Treasury Management Strategy including;-
e The incremental impact of capital investment on council tax and housing rent levels
e The borrowing strategy
e The authorised limit for external debt

4.2 Property Investment Strategy
This Strategy sets out the policies relating to the Property Investment Fund (see 3.2 and 3.6
above).

4.3 Asset Management Strategy
As outlined in 3.1 above, there is a core annual programme to cover capitalised repairs and
improvements for all the Council’s non HRA assets. The asset management strategy establishes
the priorities for this programme having regard to the condition of the various assets and their
respective priorities in terms of delivering Council services or generating rental income.

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



2019/20 Capital, Asset Management and other projects budget Appendix

General Fund

£'000
Asset management 1,000
Disabled facilities grants 1,500
Information & Communications Technology 370
Keystone Centre 250
Pavilion Park 300
Play Areas 100
Total General Fund 3,520
Housing Revenue Account

£'000
Aids and adaptations 410
Boiler Room Improvements 350
Domestic Heating Programme 600
Fire Precaution Works 300
Kitchen & Bathroom Replacement Programme 600
Rewiring 250
Reroofing Programme 643
Sheltered Schemes Programme 600
Windows and Doors 1,074
Other works 596
Total Housing Revenue Account 5,423
Total 2019/20 Budget 8,943

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
ON 14 February 2019

PART A: REPORT

SUBJECT: Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2019/20

REPORT AUTHOR: Sian Southerton — Senior Accountant (Treasury)
DATE: January 2019

EXTN: 37861

PORTFOLIO AREA: Residential Services

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The purpose of this report is to present the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy 2019/2020 and to enable the Audit and Governance Committee to scrutinise
the report prior to making comment to Full Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Committee is requested to recommend Full Council to:

(i) approve the Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20;

(i) approve the Annual Investment Strategy for 2019/20; and

(iif)  approve the Prudential Indicators for 2019/20, 2020/2021 and 2021/22 as contained in
appendix 1 and the body of the report.

BACKGROUND:
1 Introduction

11  Background

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash
raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available
when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments
commensurate with the Council’s risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before
considering investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the

Page 69




1.2
1.2.1

Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can meet
its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term cash may involve
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On
occasions any previous debt taken out may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost
objectives.

The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical, as the
balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet spending
commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger capital projects.
The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment
income arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget. Since cash balances
generally result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to ensure adequate security of
the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund
Balance.

Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury
function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising usually
from capital expenditure) and are separate from the day to day treasury management
activities.

CIPFA defines treasury management as:

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with
those risks.”

Revised reporting is required for the 2019/20 reporting cycle due to revisions of the
MHCLG Investment Guidance, the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance,
the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code. The primary
reporting changes include the introduction of a capital strategy, to provide a longer-term
focus to the capital plans, and greater reporting requirements surrounding any commercial
activity undertaken under the Localism Act 2011. The capital strategy is being reported
separately at this meeting and will go to Full Council on 13t March 2019.

Reporting Arrangements
Capital Strategy

The CIPFA revised 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require, for 2019-
20, all local authorities to prepare an additional report, a capital strategy report, which will
provide the following:

e a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services

e an overview of how the associated risk is managed

e the implications for future financial sustainability

Page 70




1.2.2

The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full council fully
understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy
requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.

This capital strategy and the property Investment strategy are reported separately from the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement; non-treasury investments will be reported
through property Investment strategy. This ensures the separation of the core treasury
function under security, liquidity and yield principles, and the policy and commercialism
investments usually driven by expenditure on an asset. They will show:

The corporate governance arrangements for these types of activities;
Any service objectives relating to the investments;

The expected income, costs and resulting contribution;

The debt related to the activity and the associated interest costs;

The payback period (MRP policy);

For non-loan type investments, the cost against the current market value;
The risks associated with each activity.

Where a physical asset is being bought, details of market research, advisers used, (and
their monitoring), ongoing costs and investment requirements and any credit information
will be disclosed, including the ability to sell the asset and realise the investment cash.

Where the Council has borrowed to fund any non-treasury investment, there should also be
an explanation of why borrowing was required and why the MHCLG Investment Guidance
and CIPFA Prudential Code have not been adhered to.

If any non-treasury investment sustains a loss during the final accounts and audit process,
the strategy and revenue implications will be reported through the same procedure as the
capital strategy.

To demonstrate the proportionality between the treasury operations and the non-treasury
operation, high-level comparators are shown throughout this report.

Treasury Management reporting

The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports
each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals. These reports are
required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before being recommended to the
Council. This role is undertaken by the Audit and Governance Committee.

a. Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) - The first
and most important report is forward looking and covers:

e the capital plans (including prudential indicators) (2.0);

e a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure is
charged to revenue over time) (2.3);

e the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to
be organised) including treasury indicators (3.0); and

Page 71




e an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be managed)
(4.0).

b. A Mid-Year Treasury Management Report — This is primarily a progress report
and will update members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as
necessary, and whether any policies require revision. The Audit and Governance
Committee will receive a mid-year report at its November meetings prior to approval
by Full Council.

c. An Annual Treasury Report — This is a backward looking review document
providing details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and
actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy which the
Audit and Governance Committee will receive at its July meetings prior to approval
by Full Council.

1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20
The strategy for 2019/20 covers two main areas:

1.3.1 Capital issues
. the capital plans and the prudential indicators;
« the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy.

1.3.2 Treasury management Issues
. the current treasury position;
. treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council,
. prospects for interest rates;
. the borrowing strategy;
« policy on borrowing in advance of need;
. debt rescheduling;
. the investment strategy;
. creditworthiness policy; and
. policy on use of external service providers.

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Treasury Management Code, the CIPFA Prudential Code, MHCLG Investment Guidance
and the MHCLG Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Guidance.

A Voluntary Repayment Provision (VRP) is sufficient as Arun’s debt is all HRA. However
there is a possibility that the Council may wish to borrow for General Fund purposes at
some point in the future and the MRP policy written as part of the 2018/19 Strategy
(Appendix 2) is still in place with no revisions at this time. The policy will need to be
reviewed at such time as the need to borrow has been agreed. There may also be further
HRA borrowing relating to the current acquisition/new build programme.

Page /2




1.4

1.5

Training

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training. This especially applies
to members responsible for scrutiny.

Accordingly, all members were invited to attended a workshop presented by Link Asset
Services (Treasury advisors) explaining the roles and responsibilities of elected members
and giving them an economic update. The latest session was held on 15th November
2018.

The training needs of treasury management officers are reviewed periodically and senior
officers attend seminars at least once a year.

Treasury management consultants

The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions as its external treasury
management advisors.

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with
the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon external
service providers. All decisions will be undertaken with regards to all available information,
including, but not solely, our treasury advisers.

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury management
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure
that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed are
properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review.

The scope of investments within the Council’s operations now includes both conventional
treasury investments, (the placing of residual cash from the Council’s functions), and more
commercial type investments, such as investment properties. Any commercial type
investments will require specialist advisers in relation to this activity.

2 The Capital Prudential Indicators 2019/20 to 2021/22 (Appendix 1)

21

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management activity.
The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in prudential indicators, which are
designed to assist Members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans.

Capital Expenditure.

This prudential Indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both
those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. The Council’s capital
expenditure is considered as part of the budget setting process and a report for approval is
going to Full Council on 20th February 2019.

Currently Arun’s only borrowing relates to the HRA self-financing settlement. However, the
Council now has a significant capital programme including HRA acquisition/new build, the
Linear Park development and Keystone Centre. Much of this programme will be funded
from capital receipts and revenue resources but it is likely that additional borrowing will be
required at some point in the near future, however the source has not yet been identified.

Page 73




2.2

The need to borrow is reviewed annually as part of the Treasury Management Strategy and
budget setting process and will be dependent on the HRA Business Plan and the Capital
programme.

The table below summarises the capital expenditure plans and how these plans are being
financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a funding

borrowing need;

Current
Capital Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Expenditure 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Non HRA 10,957 14,224 3,520 5,596 3,230
HRA 6,226 3,714 10,423 8,647 3,647
HRA settlement - - - - -
Total 17,183 17,938 13,943 14,243 6,877
Financed by:
Capital receipts 10,425 4,842 1,500 1,500 0
(1-4-1)
Capital grants 734 1,919 1,500 1,500 1,500
Capital reserves 2,861 1,396 5,393 3,617 3,617
Revenue 649 8,158 2,050 1,336 1,760
14,669 16,315 10,443 10,743 6,877
Netfinancing | 5544  1623| 3500| 3,500 0
need for the year

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).
The CFR is the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid
for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s
indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above, which
has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is a
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with
each assets life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are
used.

The CFR includes any other long-term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance leases). Whilst
these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, these types of
scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not required to separately borrow
for these schemes. In 2016/17 a new Grounds Maintenance Contract and Combined
Cleansing Contract was entered into. Under IFRIC 4, it has been deemed that both
contracts contain finance leases.

Page 74




2.3

The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections in Appendix 1 also shown below:

Current

CFR at 31 March Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22

£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000

Capital Financing Requirement
General Fund -3,594 -3,799 -4,009 -4,223 -4,442
HRA 55,401 53,694 52,425 52,305 52,069
Total CFR 51,807 49,895 48,416 48,082 47,627
Movement in CFR (1,030) (1,912) (1,479) (334) (455)
Movement in CFR represented by
New leasing
arrangements (GF) — 0 0 0 0
HRA unfinanced 2,340 1,837 2,275 3,500 3,500
Less MRP/VRP (3,742) (3,749) (3,754) (3,834) (3,955)
Movement in CFR (1,030) (1,912) (1479) (334) (455)

Core funds and expected investment balances

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources
(asset sales etc.). Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each resource
and anticipated day to day cash flow balances.

Year End Resources 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
£m Actual Estimate Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m
Fund balances 17.3 13.0 11.7 9.0 7.4
Earmarked Reserves 18.4 19.1 18.2 17.2 16.2
Capital Receipts 5.0 2.6 2.9 2.2 1.5
Other 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Total core funds 42.4 36.7 34.8 30.4 271
Under/over borrowing 18.3 23.3 11.2 8.6 -2.1
Expected investments 60.7 60.0 46.0 39.0 25.0

Page 75




2.4

2.5

Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement

Councils are required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital
spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum revenue provision -
MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if required
(voluntary revenue provision - VRP).

MHCLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an MRP
Statement in advance of each year (Appendix 2). A variety of options are provided to
councils, so long as there is a prudent provision. Four options for prudent MRP provision
are set out in the MHCLG Guidance.

Where the CFR (as calculated for the normal purposes of the prudential Code) is nil or
negative on the last day of a financial year, this indicates that the authority’s provision for
debt is equal to or greater than the debt incurred.

The Council does not currently have any General Fund debt and therefore is not statutorily
required to make Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) in respect of its CFR, but there is a
requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made. It is considered prudent to make
VRP in respect of the PWLB maturity loans funding the HRA self-financing settlement
payment. The table shows the VRP reducing the CFR. The VRP is incorporated in the
HRA Business Plan and in the 2019/20 HRA budget. If borrowing is taken out for general
fund in 2019/20, the MRP policy will need to be reviewed.

MRP Overpayments - A change introduced by the revised MHCLG MRP Guidance was
the allowance that any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue provision
(MRP), voluntary revenue provision or overpayments, can, if needed, be reclaimed in later
years if deemed necessary or prudent. In order for these sums to be reclaimed for use in
the budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative overpayment made each year. Up
until the 31 March 2019 their were no VRP overpayments.

Affordability Prudential Indicators

The report covers the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential indicators, but
within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the affordability of the
capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of the capital
investment plans on the Council’s overall finances. The Council is asked to approve the
following indicators contained in Appendix 1.

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream.

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream.

Current
Actual Estimate | Estimate | Estimate Estimate
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
% % % % %
Non-HRA -2.24

Page 76




3

31

HRA 32.82

Borrowing

The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service activity of
the Council. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’'s cash is
organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is
available to meet this service activity and the Council’s capital strategy. This will involve
both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of
approporiate borrowing facilities. The strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential
indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the annual investment strategy.

Current Portfolio Position

The Council’s Treasury Investment and debt portfolio position at 31 March 2018 and 31
December 2018 summarised below;

TREASURY PORTFOLIO
actual actual current current

31.3.18 31.3.18 31.12.18 31.12.18
Treasury investments A £000 % ¥ £000 %
banks 43,000 71% 48,000 86%
building societies - unrated 5,000 8% 0 0%
building societies - rated 0 0% 0 0%
local authorities 2,000 3% 2,000 4%
DMADF (H.M.Treasury) 0 0% 0 0%
money market funds 5,730 9% 710 1%
Total managed in house 55,730' 92% 50,710 91%
property funds 5,000 8% 5,000 9%
Total managed externally 5,000 4 8% 5,000 9%
Total treasury investments 60,730 7 100% 55,710 100%
Treasury external borrowing
PWLB 53,180 100% 53,180 100%
Total external borrowing 53,180 100% 53,180 100%
Net treasury investments /
(borrowing) 7,550 0 2,530 0

The investments held at 315t December 2018 are shown in Appendix 3.

The Council’s forward projections for borrowing are summarised below. The table shows
the actual external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing need, (the Capital
Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.

Page 77




3.2
3.2.1

3.2.2

£m 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Actual Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

External Debt

Debt at 1 April 53,180

Expected change in Debt

Other long-term
liabilities (OLTL)
Expected change in
OLTL

Actual gross debt at 31
March

The Capital Financing
Requirement

Under / (over) borrowing

Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that the
Council operates its activities within well-defined limits. One of these is that the Council
needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the
CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2019/20 and the
following two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future
years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes.

The Council is technically in an over borrowed position as the only borrowing relates to the
HRA Self-Financing settlement (£70.9m now £53.18m). Prior to this borrowing being
undertaken, the Council had a negative CFR of £2.6m which has arisen over a number of
years and was due more to changes in the capital accounting regulations rather than to
any specific policy decision. As a consequence of these factors, the Council’s gross debt
currently exceeds its CFR.

The Group Head of Corporate Support reports that the Council complied with the prudential
indicators in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future. This view
takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in the budget
report.

Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity
The Operational Boundary.

This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally expected to exceed. In most
cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on
the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing by other cash resources.

The Council is requested to approve an operational boundary of £56M in Appendix 1
(2019/20).
The Authorised Limit for external debt.

A further key prudential indicator represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.

Page /8




This represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be

set or revised by the full Council. It reflects the level of external debt which, while not
desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.

(i) This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government
Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’
plans, or those of a specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised.

(i) The Council is asked to approve an Authorised Limit of £60M (appendix 1 2019/20).
3.2.3 In October 2018 the Government announced the abolition of the HRA debt cap. Prior to

this date there was a statutory limit to each housing authority’s HRA CFR (Arun -
£81.63M).

3.2.4 The chart below shows the Councils projection of CFR and borrowing.

External Debt Authorised Limit Operational Boundary esssss Capital Financing Requirement
80,000
70,000
66,000
63,000 63,000
60,000 60,000 60,000
56,000
b0 . 52,000 52,000
50,000 S205. o 48,899 ﬂ?’gg‘?
40,000
30,000 53,180 53,180 53,180
44,320 44,320
20,000
10,000
2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

The bars in the chart above show the actual external debt (£53M-44M) and does not
include and potential future borrowing.

3.3 Prospects for Interest Rates

Page 79




3.3.1

3.3.2

The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of their
service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. Appendix 4 draws

together two views of the forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and longer fixed interest
rates. The following table gives the Link Asset Services central view.

Link Asset Services Interest Rate View

Mar19  Jun-18

Bank Rate View 0.78% | 1.00%  1.00% 1.00% 1.28% | 1.26% 1.28%  1.50%  1.50% [ 1.75% @ 1.75%  1.76%  2.00%
3 Month LIBID 0.90% | 1.00% 1.40% 120% 1.30% | 140%  1.50%  1.50%  1.60% [ 1.70%  1.80%  1.90%  2.00%
6 Month LIBID 1.00% | 1.20% 130%  140%  1.80% | 1.60%  1.70%  1.70%  1.80% [ 1.90%  200%  210% 2.20%
12 Month LIBID 1.20% | 1.30%  1.40%  150%  1.60% | 1.70%  1.80%  1.80%  2.00% [ 210%  220%  230%  240%
Syr PWLB Rate 240% | 220% @ 220%  230%  230% | 240% @ 250%  2.50%  260% | 260% @ 270%  280%  2.80%
10yr PWLE Rate 250% | 260%  260% 270%  280% | 290%  290%  3.00%  3.00% [ 310%  310%  3.20% 3.20%
25yr PWLB Rate 290% | 3.00% @ 340%  3A0%  3.20% | 330%  330%  3.40%  3.40% [ 3560% @ 350% @ 360%  3.60%
50yr PWLE Rate 270% | 280% @ 2.90% @ 290% @ 3.00% | 3A0%  3A0%  3.20%  3.20% [ 330% @ 3.30% @ 340%  3.40%

The flow of generally positive economic statistics after the quarter ended 30 June meant
that it came as no surprise that the MPC came to a decision on 2 August to make the first
increase in Bank Rate above 0.5% since the financial crash, from 0.5% to 0.75%. Growth
became increasingly strong during 2018 until slowing significantly during the last quarter.
At their November quarterly Inflation Report meeting, the MPC left Bank Rate unchanged,
but expressed some concern at the Chancellor’s fiscal stimulus in his Budget, which could
increase inflationary pressures. However, it is unlikely that the MPC would increase Bank
Rate in February 2019, ahead of the deadline in March for Brexit. On a major assumption
that Parliament and the EU agree a Brexit deal in the first quarter of 2019, then the next
increase in Bank Rate is forecast to be in May 2019, followed by increases in February and
November 2020, before ending up at 2.0% in February 2022.

The overall longer run future trend is for gilt yields, and consequently PWLB rates, to rise,
albeit gently. However, over about the last 25 years, we have been through a period of
falling bond yields as inflation subsided to, and then stabilised at, much lower levels than
before, and supported by central banks implementing substantial quantitative easing
purchases of government and other debt after the financial crash of 2008. Quantitative
easing, conversely, also caused a rise in equity values as investors searched for higher
returns and purchased riskier assets. In 2016, we saw the start of a reversal of this trend
with a sharp rise in bond yields after the US Presidential election in November 2016, with
yields then rising further as a result of the big increase in the US government deficit aimed
at stimulating even stronger economic growth. That policy change also created concerns
around a significant rise in inflationary pressures in an economy which was already running
at remarkably low levels of unemployment. Unsurprisingly, the Fed has continued on its
series of robust responses to combat its perception of rising inflationary pressures by
repeatedly increasing the Fed rate to reach 2.25 — 2.50% in December 2018. It has also

Page 80




3.4

3.4.1

continued its policy of not fully reinvesting proceeds from bonds that it holds as a result of
quantitative easing, when they mature. We therefore saw US 10 year bond Treasury yields
rise above 3.2% during October 2018 and also investors causing a sharp fall in equity

prices as they sold out of holding riskier assets. However, by early January 2019, US 10
year bond yields had fallen back considerably on fears that the Fed was being too
aggressive in raising interest rates and was going to cause a recession. Equity prices have
been very volatile on alternating good and bad news during this period.

From time to time, qilt yields, and therefore PWLB rates, can be subject to exceptional
levels of volatility due to geo-political, sovereign debt crisis, emerging market
developments and sharp changes in investor sentiment. Such volatility could occur at any
time during the forecast period.

Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences
weighing on the UK. The above forecasts, (and MPC decisions), will be liable to further
amendment depending on how economic data and developments in financial markets
transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments, especially in the EU, could also
have a major impact. Forecasts for average investment earnings beyond the three-year
time horizon will be heavily dependent on economic and political developments.

Investment and borrowing rates

Investment returns are likely to remain low during 2019/20 but to be on a gently rising
trend over the next few years.

Borrowing interest rates have been volatile so far in 2018-19 and while they were on a
rising trend during the first half of the year, they have backtracked since then until early
January. The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has
served well over the last few years. However, this needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid
incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when authorities may not be able to avoid
new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of maturing debt;

There will remain a cost of carry, (the difference between higher borrowing costs and lower
investment returns), to any new long-term borrowing that causes a temporary increase in
cash balances as this position will, most likely, incur a revenue cost.

Borrowing Strategy

As stated in 2.1, The Council has a significant capital programme including HRA
acquisition/new build, Linear Park development and Keystone Centre.

The level of expenditure and reduction in rental income within the HRA will almost certainly
require additional borrowing. This will be reflected in the HRA 10 year financial model
which will form an integral part of the Business Plan. The HRA business plan will include a
programme of new build/stock acquisition, in addition to ongoing maintenance and decent
homes programme.

Page 81




The source of any of this potential borrowing has not been identified at the time of writing.
There may also be a requirement to borrow for other new projects / opportunities but this
would need to be dependent on a viable business case which fully justifies the investment.

The Council’s borrowing strategy will give consideration to new borrowing in the following
order or priority;

1) Internal borrowing, by running down cash balances and foregoing interest earned at
historically low rates, as this is the cheapest form of borrowing, however, in view of
the overall forecast for long term borrowing rates to increase over the next few
years, consideration will also be given to weighing the short term advantage of
internal borrowing against potential long term costs if the opportunity is missed for
taking market loans at long term rates which will be higher in future years;

2) PWLB borrowing — the Certainty Rate is available to the Council at 0.2% below the
normal terms;

3) Short dated borrowing from the money markets, most probably other local
authorities;

There may however, be occasional need to borrow for liquidity purposes especially as the
Council no longer has an overdraft. The facility was removed as banking costs for this
were increased considerably. The Treasury team maintain a daily balance of approx.
£200k (earning interest at the bank of England base rate -10bp, currently 0.65%).

The borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and the
CFR, and by the authorised limit.
3.4.2 Maturity structure of borrowing

Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’'s exposure
to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing and are required for upper and lower
limits.

The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicators and limits in Appendix 1 also
shown below:

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2019/20

Actual at 31/03/19 Lower Upper
Under 12 months 16.66% 0% 40%
12 months and within 24 months 0% 0% 40%
24 months and within 5 years 16.66% 0% 50%
5 years and within 10 years 0% 0% 60%
10 years and above 66.68% 0% 100%

The Council currently has no variable rate borrowing and no plans to have in 2019/20.

Page 82




3.5

3.6

3.7

Policy of Borrowing in Advance of Need

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order to profit
from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be
within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered
carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can
ensure the security of such funds.

Debt Rescheduling

The only loans that the Council currently hold are those taken to fund the housing reform
payment.

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed interest
rates there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching from long-term
debt to short-term debt. However any savings will need to be considered in the light of the
current treasury position and the size of the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred).

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:

¢ the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings;
¢ helping to fulfil the treasury strategy;

¢ enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the balance
of volatility).

Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for making
savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short term
rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current debt.

All rescheduling will be reported to Full Council at the earliest meeting following its action.

Municipal Bond Agency

It is possible that the Municipal Bond Agency will be offering loans to local authorities in the
future. The Agency hopes that the borrowing rates will be lower than those offered by the
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB). This Authority may make use of this new source of
borrowing as and when appropriate.

3 Annual Investment Strateqy

4.1

Investment Policy — management of risk

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the following: -
e MHCLG’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”)
e CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross

Page 83




Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”)
CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018

The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and then
yield, (return).

The above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA place a high priority on the management
of risk. This authority has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk and defines its risk
appetite by the following means: -

1.

Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of highly
creditworthy counterparties. This also enables diversification and thus avoidance of
concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the short term
and long-term ratings.

Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an
institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on
both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of
information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this consideration the
Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as
“credit default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.

Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most
robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.

This Council has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the
treasury management team are authorised to use. There are two lists in appendix 6
under the categories of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.

e Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and
subject to a maturity limit of one year.

¢ Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be
for periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex instruments
which require greater consideration by members and officers before being
authorised for use.

This authority will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are invested for
longer than 365 days, (Appendix 1).

Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a specified
minimum sovereign rating, (Appendix 8).

All investments will be denominated in sterling.

As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2018/19 under IFRS 9, this
authority will consider the implications of investment instruments which could result in
an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and resultant charges at
the end of the year to the General Fund. ((In November 2018, the Ministry of

Page 84




4.2

4.3

Housing, Communities and Local Government, [MHCLG], concluded a consultation
for a temporary override to allow English local authorities time to adjust their portfolio
of all pooled investments by announcing a statutory override to delay implementation
of IFRS 9 for five years commencing from 1.4.18.)

9. The Council may invest in investments that are termed “alternative investments”.
These include, but are not limited to, things such as renewable energy bonds (Solar
farms) and regeneration bonds. These are asset backed bonds, offering good
returns, and will enable the Council to enter new markets, thus furthering the
diversification of our investment portfolio with secured investments and enhancing
yield. Any investments entered into of this type will be subject to a full due diligence
review.

However, this authority will also pursue value for money in treasury management and will
monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for investment
performance, (see paragraph 4.5). Regular monitoring of investment performance will be
carried out during the year

The Council does not strictly adhere to the advisor’'s suggested lending list and durations,
but does take account of the advice offered before making any investment decisions. The
Council will take advantage of attractive rates available from counterparties of high
creditworthiness for longer periods while interest rates remain low and the forecast for a
rate hike is not till June 2019 (25bp).

Non Treasury Investments

Although not classed as treasury management activities, the Council may also purchase
property for investment purposes and may also make loans and investments for service
purposes.

These will be subject to to the Council’s normal approval processes for revenue and capital
expenditure and need not comply with this treasury management strategy.

Creditworthiness policy

The primary principle governing the Council’s investment criteria is the security of its
investments, although the yield or return on the investment is also a key consideration.
After this main principle, the Council will ensure that:

o It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it will invest in,
criteria for choosing investment counterparties with adequate security, and
monitoring their security. This is set out in the specified and non-specified
investment sections below; and

o It has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it will set out procedures
for determining the maximum periods for which funds may prudently be committed.
These procedures also apply to the Council’s prudential indicators covering the
maximum principal sums invested.

The Council achieves a high credit quality by using a minimum rating criteria (where rated).
It does not use the approach suggested by CIPFA of using the lowest common
denominator method of selecting counterparties as some rating agencies are more
aggressive in giving low ratings than others. The Council applies a majority rule where a

Page 85




counterparty would be removed immediately from the lending list if 2 or more rating
agencies downgrade the counterparty below the minimum criteria. The Council’s minimum
criteria can be seen in Appendix 7.

This Council supplements credit ratings using the creditworthiness service provided by Link
Asset Services. This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit
ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s.
The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:

e credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
e CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings;
e sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries.

All credit ratings are monitored weekly and the Council is alerted to changes to ratings of
all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services creditworthiness service.

e if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting
the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn
immediately.

e in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in
movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other
market data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided exclusively to it by
Link Asset Services. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an
institution or removal from the Council’s lending list.

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition this Council
will also use market data and market information, information on government support for
banks and the credit ratings of that government support.

The current list of approved counterparties is included in Appendix 7. Lloyds being the
incumbent bank, has no limit however the Council will only invest £11M in term deposits
with them.

UK banks - ring fencing

The largest UK banks, (those with more than £25bn of retail / Small and Medium-sized
Enterprise (SME) deposits), are required, by UK law, to separate core retail banking
services from their investment and international banking activities by 1st January 2019.
This is known as “ring-fencing”. Whilst smaller banks with less than £25bn in deposits are
exempt, they can choose to opt up. Several banks are very close to the threshold already
and so may come into scope in the future regardless.

Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis. It
mandates the separation of retail and SME deposits from investment banking, in order to
improve the resilience and resolvability of banks by changing their structure. In general,
simpler, activities offered from within a ring-fenced bank, (RFB), will be focused on lower
risk, day-to-day core transactions, whilst more complex and “riskier” activities are required
to be housed in a separate entity, a non-ring-fenced bank, (NRFB). This is intended to
ensure that an entity’s core activities are not adversely affected by the acts or omissions of
other members of its group.

Page 86




44

4.5

While the structure of the banks included within this process may have changed, the
fundamentals of credit assessment have not. The Council will continue to assess the new-
formed entities in the same way that it does others and those with sufficiently high ratings,
(and any other metrics considered), will be considered for investment purposes.

Country and sector limits

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from countries
with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch (or equivalent). The list of
countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this report are shown in
Appendix 7. This list will be added to or deducted from by officers should ratings change in
accordance with this policy.

The exception to this policy is the UK, which is currently rated AA by all 3 rating agencies.
If the UK’s credit rating should fall below the minimum criteria set above, investment will
continue to be made in UK financial institutions if after careful consideration it is deemed
appropriate to do so.

The code recommends that Councils take country limits into consideration in order to
spread risk. In practice most investments tend to be made in the UK due to the restricted
number of quality counterparties available to the Council and it is not proposed to set
country limits at this time.

The Council does not currently use sector limits e.g. banks v. building societies due to the
limited number of quality counterparties available. The Council has a limit of between £4M
and £12M (see Appendix 6 and 7 for investment categories) which can be invested with a
single counterparty (or group) depending on the credit quality of the counterparty.

Every effort will be made to spread the maturity profile of investments to compensate for
the lack of sector or country spreads (due to limited counterparties).

Investment Strategy

The Council does not utilise external fund managers, but reserves the option to do so in the
future should this be deemed to be appropriate. Should consideration be given to
exercising this option in the future, the relevant Committee will be advised of the reason for
doing so.

The Council’s funds are therefore all managed in-house although £5M is invested in a
property fund run by CCLA (Churches, Charities and Local Authorities). The average level
of funds available for investment purposes is currently £60M (as at 31 December 2018).
These funds are partially cash-flow derived and there is a core balance of approximately
£47M which is available for investments over a year (maximum 5 years or 25 years for
property funds). The core balance is comprised of funds that are available due to a
number of factors including the setting aside of funds to repay the HRA loans (£3.5M) for
when they become repayable, the Earmarked Reserves, Capital Receipt, General Fund
and HRA balances which were £18.4M, £5M, £12.4M and £6.6M at 31 March 2018
respectively.

The Council currently only has the £5m in the CCLA property fund spanning the financial

Page 87




year and the are no forward commitments (deals) for the financial year 2019/20.

Investment returns expectations.

On the assumption that the UK and EU agree a Brexit deal in spring 2019, then Bank Rate
is forecast to increase steadily but slowly over the next few years to reach 2.00% by
quarter 1 2022. Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:

o 2018/19-0.75%
o 2019/20 - 1.25%
o 2020/21 - 1.50%
o 2021/22 - 2.00%

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed for
periods up to about three months during each financial year are as follows:

Now
2018/19 0.75%
2019/20 1.00%
2020/21 1.50%
2021/22 1.75%
2022/23 1.75%
2023/24 2.00%
Later years 2.50%

e The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably neutral.

e The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB rates, are
probably also even and are dependent on how strong GDP growth turns out, how
slowly inflation pressures subside, and how quickly the Brexit negotiations move
forward positively.

The Council’s budgeted rate of return for 2019/20 is 1.24% based on 1.19% on funds that
are already invested; 4.35% for the property fund (£5M); 0.93% for the remaining core
balances; and 0.65% for short term cash flow derived balances. The total investment
income budget for 2019/20 is £596,000. The budget is based on investments up to one
year particularly in category’s 4 & 7 and longer investments in Category 1, 2, 3 and 6.
(Category 1 being the highest rated banks and 6 being part nationalised banks). Category
5; the Councils Bank (Lloyds) is a mixture of the above but also notice accounts (32 Day
Notice and 95 Day Notice) enabling the Council to achieve slightly enhanced rates
compared to Money Market Funds (MMFs).

The Council currently uses two types of Pooled Funds, Property Funds and MMFs. Pooled
funds enable the Council to diversify the assets and the underlying risk in the investment
portfolio and provide the potential for enhanced returns. MMFs are used for short term of
daily surplus of cash as they provide instant liquidity with high quality counterparties at a
return comparable to (if not better than) other fixed deposits of short term duration.

Although these levels have picked up, they are at still at a low level (0.65 — 0.76%) . The
MMFs are “triple A” rated, liquid, and most will now be LVNAV (Low Volatility net asset

Page 88




4.6

4.7

4.8

49

value). This is a change from the previous constant net asset value (CNAV) as a result of
the MMF reform where typically for every pound of principal invested you got a pound
back. It is not guaranteed, but offers better protection than using the VNAV (Variable net
asset value) MMFs.

The Money Market Reform Regulations were published in the EU Official Journal in July
2017. This formally begins the compliance process for new funds, however the regulation
came into force on 21st July 2018 in relation to existing funds. The Council will look to place
investments in MMF’s as below; but most will now be LVNAYV due to the reform;

e CNAYV - Constant net asset value and

e LVNAV - Low volatility NAV

Most CNAYV funds will become Low Volatility NAV (LVNAV) funds. LVNAV MMFs are
permitted to maintain a constant dealing NAV provided that certain criteria are met,
including that the market NAV of the fund does not deviate from the dealing NAV by more
than 20 basis points.

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater than
365 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to
reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of funds
after each year-end.

The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicators and limits in appendix 1 (shown
below):

Maximum principal sums invested > 365 days
£m 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22
Principal sums invested > 365 days 18 15 10

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its interest bearing
bank account, notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits in order to
benefit from the compounding of interest.

Investment risk benchmarking
This Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment performance of its
investment portfolio of 7 day LIBID uncompounded.

End of year investment report

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as part of
its Annual Treasury Report.

Scheme of delegation
Please see Appendix 9.

Role of the section 151 officer
Please see Appendix 10.

Page 89




Contact:

Sian Southerton ext 37861 sian.southerton@arun.gov.uk

Page 90



mailto:sian.southerton@arun.gov.uk

2. PROPOSAL(S):
To approve all 3 recommendations.

3. OPTIONS:

The Treasury Management Strategy is legislative and under the Local Government act 2003
and therefore the only option is follow the proposal.

4. CONSULTATION:

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO
Relevant Town/Parish Council N
Relevant District Ward Councillors N
Other groups/persons (please specify) N

Treasury Advisors

5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO YES NO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)

Financial N

Legal

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime &
Disorder Act

Sustainability

Asset Management/Property/Land

2 <] 2] 2| <] 2

Technology

Other (please explain)

6. IMPLICATIONS:
Approval will enable the Council to comply with legislation and provide a Treasury Service

7. REASON FOR THE DECISION:

Statutory and the limits set, safeguard the Council against financial losses.

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:
CIPFA’S Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice (2017)
(Link not available as copyright)

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (2017) Guidance notes (2018)
(Link not available as copyright)

The Local Government Act 2003 (www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/26/content)

Page 91



http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/26/content

Prudential and treasury indicators

1. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

Extract from budget and rent setting report

Capital Expenditure
Non - HRA
HRA
TOTAL

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream
Non - HRA
HRA

Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March
Non - HRA
HRA
TOTAL

Annual change in Cap. Financing Requirement
Non — HRA
HRA
TOTAL

201718

Actual
£'000

10,957
6,226
17,183

-2.24%
32.82%

-3,594
55,401
51,807

3,685
-1,172
-2,513

Page 92

2018/19

Probable
outturn

£'000

14,224
3,714
17,938

-X.xx%
Xx.xx%

-3,799
53,694
49,895

X XXX
XX
X, xx

2019/20

Original
£'000

3,520
10,423
13,943

-X.xx%
XX Xx%

-4,009
52,425
48,416

X, XXX
XX
X, xx

APPENDIX 1
2020/21 2021/22
Original = Original

£'000 £'000

5,596 3,230
8,617 3,647
14,243 6,877
X Xx% -X.xx%
Xx.xx% Xx.xx%
-4,223 -4,442
52,305 52,069
48,082 47,627
X, XXX X XXX
XX XX

X, xx X, xx



2. TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS

2017118 201819

Probable
Actual
outturn
£'000 £'000
Authorised Limit for external debt
Borrowing 66,000 63,000
Other long term liabilities 0 0
TOTAL 66,000 63,000
Operational Boundary for external debt
Borrowing 63,000 60,000
other long term liabilities 0 0
TOTAL 64,000 60,000
Actual external debt 53,180 53,180
Maximum HRA Debt Limit 81,630 N/a
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 26 29
365 days (£m)
Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing - Actual at
upper & Lower limits 31/03/19
under 12 months 16.66%
12 months and within 24 months 0%
24 months and within 5 years 16.66%
5 years and within 10 years 0%
10 years and above 66.68%

Page 93

2019/20

Original
£'000

60,000
0

60,000

56,000
0

56,000
53,180

N/a

18

lower limit
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%

2020/21
Original
£'000
52,000

0
52,000

49,000

0
49,000
44,320

N/a

15

2021/22
Original
£'000
52,000

0
52,000

49,000

0
49,000
44,320

N/a

10

upper limit

40%

40%

50%

60%

100%



APPENDIX 2
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy
1. Introduction

1.1 CLG’s Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision (issued in 2012 but currently out for
consultation) places a duty on local authorities to make a prudent provision for debt
redemption. Where the Council finances capital expenditure by debt it must set aside
resources to repay that debt in later years. The amount charged to revenue for the
repayment of this debt is known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). The MRP
charge is the means by which capital expenditure which has been funded by borrowing is
paid for by council tax payers.

1.2.  From 2007/08 onwards there has been no statutory minimum and the requirement is
simply for local authorities to make a prudent level of provision, and the government has
instead issued statutory guidance, which local authorities are required to ‘have regard to’
when setting a prudent level of MRP. The guidance gives local authorities more freedom to
determine what would be a prudent level of MRP.

1.3. The CLG guidance requires the authority to approve an annual MRP statement, and
recommends 4 options for calculating a prudent amount of MRP, for approval by Full
Council in advance of the year to which it applies. Any subsequent revisions to that policy
should also be approved by Full Council.

2. Details of DCLG Guidance on MRP

2.1. The statutory guidance issued by DCLG sets out the broad aims of a prudent MRP
Policy as being “to ensure that debt is repaid over a period that is either reasonably
commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits, or, in
the case of borrowing supported by Government Revenue Support Grant,
reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the determination of the grant.” It then
identifies four options for calculating MRP and recommends the
circumstances in which each option should be used, but states that other
approaches are not ruled out.

2.2. The four MRP options available are:

e Option 1: Regulatory Method - is the previous statutory method, which is calculated as 4%
of the Council’s General Fund Capital Financing Requirement, adjusted for smoothing
factors from the transition to the prudential capital financing regime in 2003.

e Option 2: CFR Method - Option 2 differs from Option 1 only in that the smoothing factors
are removed. Option 2 has been included by DCLG to provide a simpler calculation for
those councils for whom it would have a minimal impact, but the draft guidance does not
expect it to be used by councils for whom it would significantly increase MRP.

Page 94



2.3

2.4.

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.3

Option 3: Asset Life Method — MRP is charged over the expected useful life of the asset
either in equal instalments or using an annuity method whereby the MRP increases in later
years.

Option 4: Depreciation Method - MRP is charged over the expected life of the asset in
accordance with depreciation accounting. This would mean that the rate at which the MRP
is charged could increase (or, more rarely, decrease) from year to year.

The guidance clearly states this does not preclude other prudent methods to provide for
the repayment of debt principal.

Under the statutory guidance, it is recommended that local authorities use Options
3 or 4 for all prudential borrowing and for all borrowing to fund capitalised
expenditure (such as capital grants to other bodies and capital expenditure on IT
developments). Authorities may use any of the four options for MRP for their
remaining borrowing to fund capital expenditure.

For balance sheet liabilities relating to finance leases and PF| schemes, the
guidance recommends that one prudent approach would be for local authorities to
make an MRP charge equal to the element of the annual rental which goes to write
down the balance sheet liability. This would have the effect that the total impact on
the bottom line would be equal to the actual rentals paid for the year. However the
guidance also mentions that Option 3 could be used for this type of debt.

The guidance also allows authorities to take a MRP Holiday where assets do not become
operational for perhaps 2 or 3 years or longer. It proposes that MRP would not be charged
until the year following the one in which the asset became operational.

Details of Statute - Part 4 Section 23 b of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and
Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003

In deciding on the appropriate level of MRP to charge and the most appropriate method of
financing the capital programme, the Council needs to have regard to the wider legislation
regarding the use of capital receipts.

Statute gives local authorities the option to apply capital receipts to fund the payment of
any liabilities relating to finance leases and PFI schemes. This is a reflection of the fact
that such schemes are being treated in accounting terms as the acquisition of fixed assets,
and the liability represents the amount being paid towards the purchase of the asset itself,
rather than interest or service charges payable.

Local authorities may also use capital receipts to repay any borrowing that was incurred to
fund capital expenditure in previous years.

2018/19 MRP Policy

For 2018/19 it is recommended the Council adopt the following MRP policy:

Page 95



MRP will be charged utilising option 3 for assets which have been funded from prudential
borrowing.

MRP will only be charged in the year following the asset becoming operational.

If capital receipts are utilised to repay debt in year, the value of MRP chargeable will be
reduced by the value of the receipts utilised.

Whether an annuity or equal instalment method is adopted for option 3 will be dependent
on the most financially beneficial method as determined by the Chief Financial Officer
For PFI and Finance lease liabilities an MRP charge will be made to match the value of
any liabilities that have not been funded from capital receipts.

The Chief Finance Officer will determine annually the most prudent use of Capital
Receipts, taking into account forecasts for future expenditure and the generation of further
receipts.

There is no requirement for the HRA to make debt repayments but it has opted to make
voluntary repayments relating to debt inherited due to HRA self-financing settlement and
provision has been made within the business plan to show that it can pay down the
remaining debt over the life of the business plan.

Any major revisions to this policy will be presented to Full Council for approval.

Page 96



INVESTMENTS at 31st December 2018

Appendix 3
Invest-lr-r:,epnetlcli))feposit Ref:l:)e.nce Counterparty Issue Date MaDt:t':ty Nominal Int((:r::te;tate
Fixed Term Deposit 671 Goldman Sachs International 27/03/2018 03/01/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.175
Fixed Term Deposit 629 Close Brothers Ltd 26/01/2017 04/01/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.05
Fixed Term Deposit 663 Goldman Sachs International 11/01/2018 10/01/2019 £1,000,000.00 0.99
Fixed Term Deposit 684 Santander 06/07/2018 21/01/2019 £1,000,000.00 0.80
Fixed Term Deposit 665 Lloyds Bank PLC 31/01/2018 31/01/2019 £2,000,000.00 0.85
Fixed Term Deposit 687 Development Bank of Singapore (DBS| 09/08/2018 11/02/2019 £1,000,000.00 0.91
Fixed Term Deposit 680 Qatar National Bank 05/06/2018 14/02/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.14
Fixed Term Deposit 686 Qatar National Bank 16/07/2018 14/02/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.20
Fixed Term Deposit 599 Natwest Markets (was RBS) 31/03/2016 18/02/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.50**
Fixed Term Deposit 667 Qatar National Bank 01/03/2018 28/02/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.20
Fixed Term Deposit 668 Close Brothers Ltd 02/03/2018 04/03/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.00
Fixed Term Deposit 689 Development Bank of Singapore (DBS| 06/09/2018 06/03/2019 £3,000,000.00 0.95
Fixed Term Deposit 634 Close Brothers Ltd 17/03/2017 15/03/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.00
Fixed Term Deposit 670 Goldman Sachs International 19/03/2018 18/03/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.20
Fixed Term Deposit 672 Qatar National Bank 28/03/2018 27/03/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.32
Fixed Term Deposit 691 Development Bank of Singapore (DBS| 01/10/2018 01/04/2019 £2,000,000.00 0.950
Fixed Term Deposit 637 Close Brothers Ltd 18/04/2017 10/04/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.00
Fixed Term Deposit 692 Development Bank of Singapore (DBS| 22/10/2018 23/04/2019 £2,000,000.00 0.95
Fixed Term Deposit 693 Leeds County Council 26/10/2018 26/04/2019 £2,000,000.00 0.85
Fixed Term Deposit 675 Goldman Sachs International 08/05/2018 07/05/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.10
Fixed Term Deposit 676 Qatar National Bank 09/05/2018 09/05/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.31
Fixed Term Deposit 677 Goldman Sachs International 23/05/2018 22/05/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.10
Fixed Term Deposit 620 Natwest Markets (was RBS) 19/08/2016 19/08/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.10*
Fixed Term Deposit 688 Qatar National Bank 30/08/2018 30/08/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.35
Fixed Term Deposit 690 Close Brothers Ltd 17/09/2018 17/09/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.10
Fixed Term Deposit 694 Goldman Sachs International 08/11/2018 07/11/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.305
Fixed Term Deposit 695 Santander 16/11/2018 18/11/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.25
Fixed Term Deposit 696 Qatar National Bank 20/11/2018 19/11/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.49
Fixed Term Deposit 697 Qatar National Bank 06/12/2018 05/12/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.50
Fixed Term Deposit 698 Barclays 06/12/2018 05/12/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.04
Fixed Term Deposit 699 Close Brothers Ltd 19/12/2018 18/12/2019 £2,000,000.00 1.25
Fixed Term Deposit 700 Close Brothers Ltd 21/12/2018 20/12/2019 £1,000,000.00 1.25
Property Fund 140000 CCLA (Churches, Charities and LA's) £5,000,000.00 4.4***
Money Market Fund 100500 Federated £710,000.00 0.76
Callable deposit 44446 Lloyds 95DN £2,000,000.00 0.80
£55,710,000.00

*Yr1-0.8%, Yr2-0.95%, Yr3-1.10%

**Yr1-1.20%, Yr2-1.35%, Yr3-1.50%

*** Approximate rate

Page 97



Interest Rate Forecast 2019 - 2022

APPENDIX 4

PWLB rates and forecast shown below have taken into account the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012.

Link Asset Services Interest Rate View

Bank Rate View
3 Month LIBID
6 Month LIBID
12 Month LIBID
5yr PWLB Rate
10yr PWLB Rate
25yr PWLB Rate
50yr PWLB Rate
< Bank Rate

(DLink Asset Services

|

apital Economics
Syr PWLB Rate

Link Asset Services

UG

Capital Economics
10yr PWLB Rate

Link Asset Services

Capital Economics

25yr PWLB Rate

Link Asset Services
Capital Economics

50yr PWLB Rate

Link Asset Services

Capital Economics

Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21
0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.50% 1.50% 1.75%
0.90% 1.00% 1.10% 1.20% 1.30% 1.40% 1.50% 1.50% 1.60% 1.70%
1.00% 1.20% 1.30% 1.40% 1.50% 1.60% 1.70% 1.70% 1.80% 1.90%
1.20% 1.30% 1.40% 1.50% 1.60% 1.70% 1.80% 1.90% 2.00% 2.10%
2.10% 2.20% 2.20% 2.30% 2.30% 2.40% 2.50% 2.50% 2.60% 2.60%
2.50% 2.60% 2.60% 2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.00% 3.10%
2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 3.40% 3.40% 3.50%
2.70% 2.80% 2.90% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.10% 3.20% 3.20% 3.30%

0.75%
0.75%

2.10%
2.03%

2.50%
2.43%

2.90%
2.96%

2.70%
2.78%

1.00%
1.00%

2.20%
2.15%

2.60%
2.55%

3.00%
3.08%

2.80%
2.90%

1.00%
1.25%

2.20%
2.40%

2.60%
2.80%

3.10%
3.33%

2.90%
3.15%

1.00%
1.50%

2.30%
2.65%

2.70%
3.05%

3.10%
3.58%

2.90%
3.40%

1.25%
1.70%

2.30%
2.70%

2.80%
3.05%

3.20%
3.53%

3.00%
3.40%

1.25%
1.75%

2.40%
2.75%

2.90%
3.05%

3.30%
3.48%

3.10%
3.40%

1.25%
2.00%

2.50%
2.80%

2.90%
3.05%

3.30%
3.43%

3.10%
3.40%

1.50%
2.00%

2.50%
2.85%

3.00%
3.05%

3.40%
3.38%

3.20%
3.40%

1.50%

2.60%

3.00%

3.40%

3.20%

1.75%

2.60%

3.10%

3.50%

3.30%

Sep-21
1.75%
1.80%
2.00%
2.20%
2.70%
3.10%
3.50%
3.30%

1.75%

2.70%

3.10%

3.50%

3.30%

Dec-21
1.75%
1.90%
2.10%
2.30%
2.80%
3.20%
3.60%
3.40%

1.75%

2.80%

3.20%

3.60%

3.40%

Mar-22
2.00%
2.00%
2.20%
2.40%
2.80%
3.20%
3.60%
3.40%

2.00%

2.80%

3.20%

3.60%

3.40%




APPENDIX 5

GLOBAL OUTLOOK. World growth has been doing reasonably well, aided by
strong growth in the US. However, US growth is likely to fall back in 2019 and,
together with weakening economic activity in China and the eurozone, overall
world growth is likely to weaken.

Inflation has been weak during 2018 but, at long last, unemployment falling to
remarkably low levels in the US and UK has led to a marked acceleration of wage
inflation. The US Fed has therefore increased rates nine times and the Bank of
England twice. However, the ECB is unlikely to start raising rates until late in
2019 at the earliest.

KEY RISKS - central bank monetary policy measures

Looking back on nearly ten years since the financial crash of 2008 when liquidity
suddenly dried up in financial markets, it can be assessed that central banks’
monetary policy measures to counter the sharp world recession were
successful. The key monetary policy measures they used were a combination of
lowering central interest rates and flooding financial markets with liquidity,
particularly through unconventional means such as quantitative easing (QE),
where central banks bought large amounts of central government debt and
smaller sums of other debt.

The key issue now is that that period of stimulating economic recovery and
warding off the threat of deflation, is coming towards its close. A new period is
well advanced in the US, and started more recently in the UK, of reversing those
measures i.e. by raising central rates and, (for the US), reducing central banks’
holdings of government and other debt. These measures are now required in
order to stop the trend of a reduction in spare capacity in the economy and of
unemployment falling to such low levels, that the re-emergence of inflation is
viewed as a major risk. It is, therefore, crucial that central banks get their timing
right and do not cause shocks to market expectations that could destabilise
financial markets. In particular, a key risk is that because QE-driven purchases of
bonds drove up the price of government debt, and therefore caused a sharp drop
in income yields, this also encouraged investors into a search for yield and into
investing in riskier assets such as equities. Consequently, prices in both bond and
equity markets rose to historically high valuation levels simultaneously. This
meant that both asset categories were exposed to the risk of a sharp downward
correction and we have indeed, seen a sharp fall in equity values in the last
quarter of 2018. It is important, therefore, that central banks only gradually
unwind their holdings of bonds in order to prevent destabilising the financial
markets. It is also likely that the timeframe for central banks unwinding their
holdings of QE debt purchases will be over several years. They need to balance
their timing to neither squash economic recovery, by taking too rapid and too
strong action, or, conversely, let inflation run away by taking action that was too
slow and/or too weak. The potential for central banks to get this timing and
strength of action wrong are now key risks. At the time of writing, (early
January 2019), financial markets are very concerned that the Fed is being too
aggressive with its policy for raising interest rates and was likely to cause a
recession in the US economy.

Page 99



The world economy also needs to adjust to a sharp change in liquidity creation
over the last five years where the US has moved from boosting liquidity by QE
purchases, to reducing its holdings of debt, (currently about $50bn per month). In
addition, the European Central Bank ended its QE purchases in December 2018.

UK. The flow of positive economic statistics since the end of the first quarter of
2018 has shown that pessimism was overdone about the poor growth in quarter 1
when adverse weather caused a temporary downward blip. Quarter 1 at 0.1%
growth in GDP was followed by a return to 0.4% in quarter 2 and by a strong
performance in quarter 3 of +0.6%. However, growth in quarter 4 is expected to
weaken significantly.

At their November quarterly Inflation Report meeting, the MPC repeated their
well-worn phrase that future Bank Rate increases would be gradual and would
rise to a much lower equilibrium rate, (where monetary policy is neither
expansionary of contractionary), than before the crash; indeed they gave a figure
for this of around 2.5% in ten years time, but declined to give a medium term
forecast. However, with so much uncertainty around Brexit, they warned that the
next move could be up or down, even if there was a disorderly Brexit. While it
would be expected that Bank Rate could be cut if there was a significant fall in
GDP growth as a result of a disorderly Brexit, so as to provide a stimulus to
growth, they warned they could also raise Bank Rate in the same scenario if there
was a boost to inflation from a devaluation of sterling, increases in import prices
and more expensive goods produced in the UK replacing cheaper goods
previously imported, and so on. In addition, the Chancellor could potentially
provide fiscal stimulus to support economic growth, though at the cost of
increasing the budget deficit above currently projected levels.

It is unlikely that the MPC would increase Bank Rate in February 2019, ahead of
the deadline in March for Brexit. Getting parliamentary approval for a Brexit
agreement on both sides of the Channel will take well into spring 2019. However,
in view of the hawkish stance of the MPC at their November meeting, the next
increase in Bank Rate is now forecast to be in May 2019, (on the assumption that
a Brexit deal is agreed by both the UK and the EU). The following increases are
then forecast to be in February and November 2020 before ending up at 2.0% in
February 2022.

Inflation. The Consumer Price Index (CPI) measure of inflation has been falling
from a peak of 3.1% in November 2017 to 2.3% in November. In the November
Bank of England quarterly Inflation Report, inflation was forecast to still be
marginally above its 2% inflation target two years ahead, (at about 2.1%), given a
scenario of minimal increases in Bank Rate. This inflation forecast is likely to be
amended upwards due to the Bank's report being produced prior to the
Chancellor's announcement of a significant fiscal stimulus in the Budget; this is
likely to add 0.3% to GDP growth at a time when there is little spare capacity left
in the economy, particularly of labour.

As for the labour market figures in October, unemployment at 4.1% was
marginally above a 43 year low of 4% on the Independent Labour Organisation

Page 100



measure. A combination of job vacancies hitting an all-time high, together with
negligible growth in total employment numbers, indicates that employers are now
having major difficulties filling job vacancies with suitable staff. It was therefore
unsurprising that wage inflation picked up to 3.3%, (3 month average regular pay,
excluding bonuses). This meant that in real terms, (i.e. wage rates less CPI
inflation), earnings are currently growing by about 1.0%, the highest level since
2009. This increase in household spending power is likely to feed through into
providing some support to the overall rate of economic growth in the coming
months. This tends to confirm that the MPC was right to start on a cautious
increase in Bank Rate in August as it views wage inflation in excess of 3% as
increasing inflationary pressures within the UK economy.

In the political arena, there is a risk that the current Conservative minority
government may be unable to muster a majority in the Commons over Brexit.
However, our central position is that Prime Minister May’s government will
endure, despite various setbacks, along the route to reaching an orderly Brexit in
March 2019. If, however, the UK faces a general election in the next 12 months,
this could result in a potential loosening of monetary and fiscal policy and
therefore medium to longer dated gilt yields could rise on the expectation of a
weak pound and concerns around inflation picking up.

USA. President Trump’s massive easing of fiscal policy is fuelling a, (temporary),
boost in consumption which has generated an upturn in the rate of strong growth
which rose from 2.2%, (annualised rate), in quarter 1 to 4.2% in quarter 2 and
3.5%, (3.0% yly), in quarter 3, but also an upturn in inflationary pressures. The
strong growth in employment numbers and the reduction in the unemployment
rate to 3.9%, near to a recent 49 year low, has fed through to an upturn in wage
inflation which hit 3.2% in November, However, CPI inflation overall fell to 2.2%
in November and looks to be on a falling trend to drop below the Fed’s target of
2% during 2019. The Fed has continued on its series of increases in interest
rates with another 0.25% increase in December to between 2.25% and 2.50%,
this being the fifth increase in 2018 and the ninth in this cycle. However, they did
also reduce their forecast for further increases from three to two. This latest
increase compounded investor fears that the Fed is over doing the rate and level
of increases in rates and that it is going to cause a US recession as a result.
There is also much evidence in previous monetary policy cycles, of the Fed’s
series of increases doing exactly that. Consequently, we have seen stock
markets around the world plunging under the weight of fears around the Fed’s
actions, the trade war between the US and China, an expectation that world
growth will slow, Brexit etc.

The tariff war between the US and China has been generating a lot of heat during
2018, but it is not expected that the current level of actual action would have
much in the way of a significant effect on US or world growth. However, there is a
risk of escalation if an agreement is not reached soon between the US and China.

Eurozone. Growth was 0.4% in quarters 1 and 2 but fell back to 0.2% in quarter
3, though this was probably just a temporary dip. In particular, data from
Germany has been mixed and it could be negatively impacted by US tariffs on a
significant part of manufacturing exports e.g. cars. For that reason, although

Page 101



growth is still expected to be in the region of nearly 2% for 2018, the horizon is
less clear than it seemed just a short while ago. Having halved its quantitative
easing purchases of debt in October 2018 to €15bn per month, the European
Central Bank ended all further purchases in December 2018. The ECB is
forecasting inflation to be a little below its 2% top limit through the next three
years so it may find it difficult to warrant a start on raising rates by the end of
2019 if the growth rate of the EU economy is on a weakening trend.

China. Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite
repeated rounds of central bank stimulus; medium term risks are increasing.
Major progress still needs to be made to eliminate excess industrial capacity and
the stock of unsold property, and to address the level of non-performing loans in
the banking and credit systems. Progress has been made in reducing the rate of
credit creation, particularly from the shadow banking sector, which is feeding
through into lower economic growth. There are concerns that official economic
statistics are inflating the published rate of growth.

Japan - has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to
get inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is
also making little progress on fundamental reform of the economy. It is likely that
loose monetary policy will endure for some years yet to try to stimulate growth
and modest inflation.

Emerging countries. Argentina and Turkey are currently experiencing major
headwinds

and are facing challenges in external financing requirements well in excess of
their reserves of foreign exchange. However, these countries are small in terms
of the overall world economy, (around 1% each), so the fallout from the expected
recessions in these countries will be minimal.

INTEREST RATE FORECASTS

The interest rate forecasts provided by Link Asset Services in paragraph 3.2 are
predicated on an assumption of an agreement being reached on Brexit between
the UK and the EU. In the event of an orderly non-agreement exit, it is likely that
the Bank of England would take action to cut Bank Rate from 0.75% in order to
help economic growth deal with the adverse effects of this situation. This is also
likely to cause short to medium term gilt yields to fall. If there was a disorderly
Brexit, then any cut in Bank Rate would be likely to last for a longer period and
also depress short and medium gilt yields correspondingly. It is also possible that
the government could act to protect economic growth by implementing fiscal
stimulus.

The balance of risks to the UK
e The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably
neutral.
e The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB
rates, are probably also even and are broadly dependent on how strong
GDP growth turns out, how slowly inflation pressures subside, and how
quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward positively.

Page 102



One risk that is both an upside and downside risk, is that all central banks are
now working in very different economic conditions than before the 2008 financial
crash as there has been a major increase in consumer and other debt due to the
exceptionally low levels of borrowing rates that have prevailed for ten years since
2008. This means that the neutral rate of interest in an economy, (i.e. the rate that
is neither expansionary nor deflationary), is difficult to determine definitively in this
new environment, although central banks have made statements that they expect
it to be much lower than before 2008. Central banks could therefore either over or
under do increases in central interest rates.

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates
currently include:

e Brexit — if it were to cause significant economic disruption and a major
downturn in the rate of growth.

e Bank of England monetary policy takes action too quickly, or too far,
over the next three years to raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic
growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker than we currently
anticipate.

e A resurgence of the eurozone sovereign debt crisis, possibly in Italy,
due to its high level of government debt, low rate of economic growth and
vulnerable banking system, and due to the election in March of a
government which has made a lot of anti-austerity noise. The EU rejected
the initial proposed lItalian budget and demanded cuts in government
spending which the Italian government initially refused. However, a fudge
was subsequently agreed, but only by delaying the planned increases in
expenditure to a later year. This can has therefore only been kicked down
the road to a later time. The rating agencies have started on downgrading
Italian debt to one notch above junk level. If Italian debt were to fall below
investment grade, many investors would be unable to hold it.
Unsurprisingly, investors are becoming increasingly concerned by the
words and actions of the Italian government and consequently, Italian bond
yields have risen — at a time when the government faces having to
refinance large amounts of debt maturing in 2019.

e Weak capitalisation of some European banks. Italian banks are
particularly vulnerable; one factor is that they hold a high level of Italian
government debt - debt which is falling in value. This is therefore
undermining their capital ratios and raises the question of whether they will
need to raise fresh capital to plug the gap.

e German minority government. In the German general election of
September 2017, Angela Merkel's CDU party was left in a vulnerable
minority position dependent on the fractious support of the SPD party, as a
result of the rise in popularity of the anti-immigration AfD party. Then in
October 2018, the results of the Bavarian and Hesse state elections
radically undermined the SPD party and showed a sharp fall in support for
the CDU. As a result, the SPD is reviewing whether it can continue to
support a coalition that is so damaging to its electoral popularity. After the
result of the Hesse state election, Angela Merkel announced that she
would not stand for re-election as CDU party leader at her party’s
convention in December 2018, (a new party leader has now been elected).
However, this makes little practical difference as she is still expected to

Page 103



aim to continue for now as the Chancellor. However, there are five more
state elections coming up in 2019 and EU parliamentary elections in
May/June; these could result in a further loss of electoral support for both
the CDU and SPD which could also undermine her leadership.

Other minority eurozone governments. Spain, Portugal, Ireland, the
Netherlands and Belgium all have vulnerable minority governments
dependent on coalitions which could prove fragile. Sweden is also
struggling to form a government due to the anti-immigration party holding
the balance of power, and which no other party is willing to form a coalition
with. The Belgian coalition collapsed in December 2018 but a minority
caretaker government has been appointed until the May EU wide general
elections.

Austria, the Czech Republic and Hungary now form a strongly anti-
immigration bloc within the EU while Italy, in 2018, also elected a strongly
anti-immigration government. Elections to the EU parliament are due in
May/June 2019.

Further increases in interest rates in the US could spark a sudden flight
of investment funds from more risky assets e.g. shares, into bonds
yielding a much improved yield. Throughout the last quarter of 2018, we
saw sharp falls in equity markets interspersed with occasional partial
rallies. Emerging countries which have borrowed heavily in dollar
denominated debt, could be particularly exposed to this risk of an investor
flight to safe havens e.g. UK gilts.

There are concerns around the level of US corporate debt which has
swollen massively during the period of low borrowing rates in order to
finance mergers and acquisitions. This has resulted in the debt of many
large corporations being downgraded to a BBB credit rating, close to junk
status. Indeed, 48% of total investment grade corporate debt is now rated
at BBB. If such corporations fail to generate profits and cash flow to reduce
their debt levels as expected, this could tip their debt into junk ratings
which will increase their cost of financing and further negatively impact
profits and cash flow.

Geopolitical risks, especially North Korea, but also in Europe and the
Middle East, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows.

Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates

Brexit — if both sides were to agree a compromise that removed all threats
of economic and political disruption.

The Fed causing a sudden shock in financial markets through
misjudging the pace and strength of increases in its Fed Funds Rate and in
the pace and strength of reversal of QE, which then leads to a fundamental
reassessment by investors of the relative risks of holding bonds, as
opposed to equities. This could lead to a major flight from bonds to
equities and a sharp increase in bond yields in the US, which could then
spill over into impacting bond yields around the world.

The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in
Bank Rate and, therefore, allows inflation pressures to build up too
strongly within the UK economy, which then necessitates a later rapid
series of increases in Bank Rate faster than we currently expect.

Page 104



e UK inflation, whether domestically generated or imported, returning to
sustained significantly higher levels causing an increase in the inflation
premium inherent to gilt yields.

Page 105



Specified and Non-Specified Investments APPENDIX 6
- 5 Minimum Credit Maximum Max.
S| L2 Criteria Investment maturity
8 | 2 §| Fitch (and equivalent) / per period
& & Minimum Criteria Institution
Term deposits — Local v v
Authorities (category 1) - E12M S years
. Short-term F1+
Term deposits — banks v v Long-term AA- £12M 5 years
and building societies
(category 1)
Term deposits — banks Short-term F1
and building societies v v Long-term A+ £11M 3 years
(category 2)
Term deposits — banks Short-term F1
and building societies v v Long-term A- £8M 2 years
(category 3)
Term deposits — building v v Assets in Excess of
societies (Category 4) £10 billion £4M 1year
Council’s bank (for term v v No limit
deposits use appropriate Although As
n/a category limit | category
category 1 to 3) for torm 1103
(category 5) deposits
Term deposits — UK part Short-term F3
nationalised banks v v Long term BBB- £11M 3 years
(category 6)
As category As
v v
Callable deposits Ascategory 12345 | °7 )35 57 | category
and 6 1,2,3,4,5
and 6
and 6
As category As
v v
Forward deposits As category 1,2,3,4,5 12345 category
and 6 1,2,3,4,5
and 6
and 6
Bonds Issued by v Long term AAA £4M 5 years
multilateral development
banks (category 10)
Debt Management Agency | v v - No limit Liquid
Deposit Facility (category
9)

Page 106




Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies

(OEICs)

Money Market Funds
(CNAV or LVNAV)
(category 7)

AAA mmf

£4M

liquid

Enhanced Money Market
Funds (Category 8)

AAA mmf

£4M

liquid

Property funds (Category
11)

£6M

25 years

Specified Investments (these are considered low risk assets where the
possibility of loss of principal or investment income is small):

All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to a
maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ rating criteria where applicable.

Non-Specified Investments: All such investments will be sterling denominated,
with maturities in excess of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ rating criteria
where applicable. A maximum of 60% will be in aggregate in non-specified
investments.

Part nationalised banks in the UK have credit ratings which do not conform to
the credit criteria usually used by local authorities to identify banks which are of
high creditworthiness. In particular, as they are no longer separate institutions in
their own right, however, these institutions have effectively taken on the
creditworthiness of the Government itself i.e. deposits made with them are
effectively being made to the Government. It is therefore proposed to continue to
keep the category of UK part nationalised banks for both specified and
unspecified investments (category 6).

Page 107




APPENDIX 7
LIST OF AUTHORISED COUNTERPARTIES

Category 1 - Limit of £12 million for each institution - Maximum investment period - 5 Years

Long Short
Term Term
Min Criteria Fitch AA- F1+

Moody  Aa3 P-1
S&P AA- A-1+

All Local Authorities

DBS Bank Ltd (SING)

HSBC Bank plc (UK)

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp Ltd (SING)
Svenska Handelsbanken (SW)

United Overseas Bank Ltd (SING)

First Abu Dhabi Bank (U.A.E)

Category 2 - Limit of £11 million for each institution - Maximum investment period - 3 Years

Long Short
Term Term
Min Criteria
Fitch A+ F1
Moody A1 P-2

S&P A+ A-1

Goldman Sachs International Bank (UK)
Bank of Nova Scotia (CAN)

Standard Charted Bank (UK)

Qatar National Bank (Qatar)

Nat Westminster Bank PLC

(RFB) (UK)

The Royal Bank of Scotland

PLC (RFB) (UK)

Page 108



Category 3 - Limit of £8 million for each institution - Maximum investment period - 2 Years

Long Short
Term Term
Min Criteria Fitch A- F1
Moody A3 P-2
S&P A- A-1
Barclays Bank plc (RFB &
NRFB) (UK)
Nationwide Building Society (UK)
Santander (UK)

Close Brothers (UK)

Cateqgory 4 - Limit of £4 million for each institution - Maximum Investment period - 1 year
Building Society with Assets greater than £10 billion

Coventry Building Society (UK)
Skipton Building Society (UK)
Yorkshire Building Society (UK)

Category 5 - Council's Bank
NO LIMIT - appropriate category 1 to 3 (Max of £11M term deposit)

Lloyds Banking Group (Bank of Scotland / Lloyds)

Category 6 - Limit of-£11 million for each institution - Maximum investment period - 3 Years
banks effectively nationalised by UK government

Long Short
Term Term
Min Criteria Fitch BBB- F3

Moody Baa3 P-3
S&P BBB- A-3

Royal Bank of Scotland plc (RFB)/National Westminster Bank plc (RFB)
(Uk)(Nationalised)

Page 109



Category 7 - Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment
Companies (OEICs) MONEY MARKET FUNDS (CNAV, LVNAV & VNAV) and Government
Liquidity Funds

Limit of £4million for each institution

CCLA Investment Management Ltd (Public sector deposit

fund) AAA
Deutsche Banking Group AAA
Federated Investors Ltd (Fitch Ratings) AAA
Fidelity Investments International (Moody's

Rating) AAA
Standard Life (Fitch Ratings) AAA
Northern Trust AAA

Category 8 - Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment
Companies (OEICs) — Enhanced Money Market Funds
Limit of £4million for each institution

Cateqory 9 - Debt Management Office
Debt management Account - NO LIMIT (UK Govt)

Category 10 - Bonds issued by multilateral development banks - 5 Years
Maximum investment £4 million

Category 11 — Property Funds - 25 Years
Maximum investment £6 million

CCLA

Page 110



Page 111



Appendix 8

Approved countries for investments

Based on a majority rule of available ratings.

AAA
« Australia
. Canada
« Denmark

. Germany
« Netherlands

« Norway
« Singapore
« Sweden

« Switzerland
« U.S.A. (S&P AA+)

AA+
. Finland
AA
« Abu Dhabi (UAE)
. France
« Hong Kong
. UK.
AA-
« Belgium (S&P AA)
« Qatar

Based on a majority rule of available ratings

Page 112



APPENDIX 9

Treasury management scheme of delegation

(i) Full Council
« approval of annual strategy
« budget consideration and approval

« receiving and reviewing monitoring and outturn reports on treasury
management

(ii) Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance

« amendments to the annual treasury management strategy once
approved by Full Council between its review in consultation with the
Group Head of Corporate Support.

(iif)  Audit and Governance Committee (responsibility for scrutiny)

« reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making
recommendations to Full Council (the responsible body).

« Scrutiny of annual strategy prior to adoption by Full Council
« Scrutiny of monitoring and outturn reports

« receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies,
practices and activities

Page 113



APPENDIX 10

The treasury management role of the section 151 officer

The S151 (responsible) officer

recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for
approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring compliance

submitting regular treasury management policy reports
submitting budgets and budget variations

receiving and reviewing management information reports
reviewing the performance of the treasury management function

ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and
the effective division of

responsibilities within the treasury management function
ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit
recommending the appointment of external service providers.

The above list of specific responsibilities of the S151 officer in the 2017
Treasury Management Code has not changed. However, implicit in the
changes in both codes, is a major extension of the functions of this role,
especially in respect of non-financial investments, (which CIPFA has defined
as being part of treasury management.

« preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital
financing, non-financial investments and treasury management, with a
long-term timeframe

« ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and
prudent in the long term and provides value for money

« ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and
non-financial investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of
the authority

« ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake
expenditure on non-financial assets and their financing

« ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does
not undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an
excessive level of risk compared to its financial resources

« ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the
approval, monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial
investments and long-term liabilities

Page 114



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments
including material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and
financial guarantees

ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the
risk exposures taken on by an authority

ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or
externally provided, to carry out the above

creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with
how non treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to
include the following (TM Code p54): -

Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment
and risk management criteria for any material non-treasury
investment portfolios;

Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and
schedules), including methodology and criteria for assessing the
performance and success of non-treasury investments;

Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and
schedules), including a statement of the governance
requirements for decision making in relation to non-treasury
investments; and arrangements to ensure that appropriate
professional due diligence is carried out to support decision
making;

Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules),
including where and how often monitoring reports are taken;

Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including

how the relevant knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury
investments will be arranged.

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE
ON 14 FEBRUARY 2019

PART A : REPORT
SUBJECT: Annual Internal Audit Plan 2019/20

REPORT AUTHOR: Stephen Pearse, Chief Internal Auditor
DATE: February 2019

EXTN: 37561

PORTFOLIO AREA: Corporate Support

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Each year Internal Audit is required to develop and annual audit plan for the following
financial year, for agreement by the Audit & Governance Committee

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Members of the Audit & Governance Committee are requested to agree the outline Annual
Internal Audit Plan

1. BACKGROUND:

Each year Internal Audit is required to develop an annual audit plan for the following
financial year.

This provides the opportunity for the Chief Internal Auditor, in consultation with senior
managers within the Authority and with members of the Audit & Governance
Committee, to determine where best the limited resources available to Internal Audit
should be directed. In order to prepare the plan, consideration has been given to
accepted best practice, as promulgated by both CIPFA and the Chartered Institute of
Internal Auditors.

The section continues to operate with 2 FTE in the short-term, with the focus on
mandatory and high priority work. Now that the Council’s revised structures /
operations are largely finalised, consideration can be given to resourcing for the
future).

As at the start of 2019, there are still a number of Council strategies (e.g. Customer

Access, Digital, etc.) to be progressed that may result in work for the section. There

also remains considerable uncertainty regarding a number of areas e.g.:-

- the Council’'s ongoing financial position, as impacted by central Government policy
/ funding changes and potential knock-on effects from cuts elsewhere e.g. WSCC

- the impact of Brexit arrangements once agreed by central Government and the

Page 117



impact on the requirements for / provision of Council services
- potential change to political will as a result of the May 2019 District elections.

These may require further operational changes to meet new and changed
requirements / legislation.

In view of this, an outline-only plan is attached for the agreement of the Committee
and there will again need to be considerable flexibility through the year as to the
assignment of resource to specific tasks. (NB - the outline plan has been prepared to
be generally in line with the allocations that had been considered for the indicative
common plan that had been drafted and included in the shared services business
case in 2016). As agree with management, it is currently anticipated that work will be
required (timing and scope to be agreed) at some stage in the year on e.g.:-

- the Housing service (after the restructure has been completed)
- the Office 365 implementation project
- the Northgate replacement / upgrade project (Revenues and Benefits software)

- the Council’'s Medium Term Financial Strategy, giving consideration to resilience
and sustainability (linked to the issue of CIPFA’s Financial Management Code
which is expected later in 2019).

These will be accommodated within the proposed outline plan and reports on the
progress of work being undertaken will be provided to meetings of the Audit &
Governance Committee through the year, as is currently the case.

Should there be a significant change during the year in the work to be undertaken by
the section or in the resource available to it, then a revised Plan will be prepared and
advised to the Committee.

2. PROPOSAL(S):
It is proposed that the Committee agrees the outline Annual Internal Audit Plan for
2019/20
3. OPTIONS:
To agree the outline Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20, or not
4. CONSULTATION:
Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO
Relevant Town/Parish Council v
Relevant District Ward Councillors v
Other groups/persons (please specify) v
5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO YES NO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)
Financial v
Legal v

Page 118




Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime &
Disorder Act

Sustainability

Asset Management/Property/Land

Technology

Other (please explain)

AN NI NN N

. IMPLICATIONS:

REASON FOR THE DECISION:
The Committee agrees the outline Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
N/A

Page 119




Outline Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20
1/4/19- 39/3/20 (52 weeks)

Based upon the current 2.0 FTE and in line with the number of days per auditor / classification
of assignments that had been considered for a common shared internal audit service

Key Financial Systems 78
Computer Audit (including projects) 65
Business Systems Audit 125
Contract Audit 8
Follow-Ups 6
PSIAS / QAIP (includes reviewing & updating audit procedures) 2
Total Chargeable Days (Audit) 284
Governance / AGS 5
NFI 17
Corporate Fraud 3
Audit Advice 10
External Audit Liaison 4
Committee Representation 10
Planning & Control 23
Contingency (e.g. for special investigations) 7
Meetings (Corporate) 8
RIPA 2
FOI 2
Total Chargeable Days (Non-Audit) 91
Total Chargeable Days 375

(Chargeable days are those after allowance for bank holidays, leave, sickness, admin, etc.
which are an overhead and not directly relevant to Council service areas)

Page 120



Agenda Iltem 13

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE
ON 14 FEBRUARY 2019

PART A : REPORT
SUBJECT: Revised Strategic Risk Register 2018/19

REPORT AUTHOR: Stephen Pearse, Chief Internal Auditor
DATE: February 2019

EXTN: 37561

PORTFOLIO AREA: Corporate Support

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The Council’s Strategic Risk Register has been reviewed and revised to reflect changes
since its last update in December 2017.

At its meeting of 15 November 2018, the Committee reviewed and approved the first half
of the changes and agreed to complete the review process at this meeting.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Members of the Audit & Governance Committee are requested to note and approve the
remainder of the revised Strategic Risk Register

1. BACKGROUND:

The Council’'s Risk Management Strategy requires that the Strategic Risk Register
(SRR) should be reviewed periodically and risks re-scored where necessary. It is
also required to be reviewed at least annually by the Lead Officer and Lead Member
for risk management. The Audit & Governance Committee has Member oversight of
the risk management arrangements within the Council and last reviewed the SRR at
its December 2017 meeting.

The SRR has been reviewed, updated and re-scored by the members of the Council’s
Governance & Risk Group in September 2018. The updated document has also
been considered by the Corporate Management Team and by the Lead Officer and
Lead Member for risk management.

The SRR update has considered significant changes that will affect the Council going
forward, progress relating to risk areas identified (e.g. adoption of the Local Plan) and
mitigating actions that are in place to reduce the level of the risks. It must, however,
be recognised that the strategic risks are largely long-term and that the impact of
external factors (e.g. Government policy and funding changes, etc.) remains
uncertain.

Page 121



The updated SRR document uses the same Excel format and scoring criteria as in
recent years. However, it should be noted that the Council has now implemented
new performance and risk management software (Pentana Performance) and it is
anticipated that the format and content of the SRR and operational risk registers will
be considered going forwards.

At its meeting of 15 November 2018, the Committee reviewed and approved a
number of the risks and agreed to complete the process at its next meeting.

2. PROPOSAL(S):
It is proposed that the Committee notes and approves the remainder of the revised
Strategic Risk Register
3. OPTIONS:
To note and approve the remainder of the revised Strategic Risk Register, or not
4. CONSULTATION:
Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO
Relevant Town/Parish Council v
Relevant District Ward Councillors v
Other groups/persons (please specify) v
5. ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO YES NO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)
Financial v
Legal v
Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment v
Cpmmunity Safety including Section 17 of Crime & v
Disorder Act
Sustainability v
Asset Management/Property/Land v
Technology v
Other (please explain) v
6. IMPLICATIONS:
7. REASON FOR THE DECISION:
The Committee notes and approves the revised Strategic Risk Register
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Page 122




N/A

Page 123




This page is intentionally left blank



6102 Aeniqe- ul Buljesw jxau sji je sseoo.d ay) 8}8jdwoo [jIm pue g Loz J8qUIBAON G| JO Buljesw
s)1 je usjsibal pajepdn ay) pameina Ajued sapiuiion) 8ouBUIBAOL) 9 JIPNY 8y} — 8102 19qQUIBA0N Ul pajepdn jseT]

suoneolduwi Jixaig 8l
suono’|g Ll
sanss| asueldwo?) }o01g ajelodio) 9l
saluedwo) Buipel| Ajioyiny |07 Sl
aJua) ainsia] uoydweys|i maN VL
Ajunoasiaghn €l
Aynuuo) ssauisng ajelsodio) rd)
abeulelq pue B uonosjold |elseo) L
wbisu| Jswoisny pue juswabebuz Ayunwwo) ol
Aunoag ejeq pue uoljew.ou| 6
sdiysisuped ]
ue|d |ed0] L
wawdojanaq BuisnoH ajqeployy q9
SSOUSSO|OWOH eg
Aoeden pue Juswabebug Jaquajy S
Juswabeueyy soeuo) v
juswdolana dlwouoo] pue uoljessusbay o
uoljewJosuel] 99IAI8S pue Juswabeuely sabueyd Z
aoueul L

S}L olleuads ysiy ON Ysiy

MdIABI 0} Jo3lgns
8q |I13S P|NOYs INq uoioe Jayliny ou alinbai o3 Ajoy1 a1e sysu usaio

pamainal AjeinBai uonesado ul sainseaw |01juU0d 3y} pue ,udalb,
0} Buloos ay} aonpal 0} uaye} aq ued sdays [eonoeid jI dulwidlep
0} Ajjeosipolsad pamalnal aq pINOYS 3Jey) asoy} ale SySM Jaquy

Buipodas pue mainal ‘Auinios jusnbauy
alow ainbai Aew pue uopuaye 198SO|D JO PadU Ul Ble ‘UIadU0D
Jsojealb 991AISS 1O |IDUNOD BY} dSNED YOIYM 9SOy} 8ie SHSU pay

-:u9alb pue Jaque ‘pal — SIdY|I} € SeY Xujew ay|

Page 125

joedw| X pooyi|ayi si 8109s Buijes Ysu [JeddA0 ay |

alonag juesiubis leuibiep jJuesiubisuy|
14 € (4 I }oedw
Axinun

Ll Sl ‘vl I
L sjqissog |
s 0L‘s z o
a|qeqoad M.
:_mm_wo m.

14

9J140.id XSy — TIONNOD 1I141SId NNYY

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo Z obed

Page 126

(d1vy) swweiboid yuswanoidwi] uniy sy pajji Jou ate sdeb abpamouy] e pue juswabeuep abueyn e ul uoijesioud annoayau] e Z
Buipuny 1o} 43 8y} 0} s}sanbai o} JyBrom
alow — [eag Yol uniy ayj ssaiboid
0} [1ounog 8y} ypm pabebus JOSAA
Juswapes buipuny
1eak  uieyqo o) eoe|d Ul ueld Aousiolg
SpIEMa] UIE)qO 0)
ysu 1aybiy 1nq ‘paispisuod Buleq sawayos
JUSW)SOAUI SAI)EAOUUI BIOW JOYI0
*5}0 ‘uone|siBa] ‘Aoljod JusWUIBA0D) _ passaiboud mmg ﬁo__ﬂmo
01 seBUELD ojqissod 10 BULIONUO)Y sjoaloid uonelsusbol tofeyy e
01 ‘Buraqo] pausjealy) o9 [|IM [9AS] SAISSAI
NOQ PUB YT Ul JUSWISA[OAUI JOpEST] wnwiuiw urejulew o} Ajqy
paJojiuoW pue Buimoliog uo apew aq 0}
paonpoud ueld ssauisng yH pajepdn sjuswAeda, jeydeo pue jsaisju] sjesodoud
pun4 JUSW}SaAU| "0)8 ‘Buipjingasnoy uonesausbal ssaiboid o} pasinbai
Auadolyd "6°2 anuanal aininy ajelauab uo peduw snnebau sjqissod Buipuny [eusa)xe JueoyubIS e
0} PaJapISU02 Buiaq SAWBYIS SABAOU| __'OJo 'ssaussappwioy V¥H PUE pun [eJausg)
1509 paonpal e ‘adIAIas Jajaq Buiaq syeuaq 69 saoInes 10} syuswiasinbas Buimo.iog ¢
wie — pajedwod aq 0} sease swiweiboud pa-puewap uo ainssaid jayung e aininy a|diynw 9|qIssoqd _
. 2OINIBS JO MaInaL, BuIpUBISINO 5 (oedult _%_Em:mmev UIBLISOUN UIBWS) JIX3Ig JO Awouoos
paJojuow utpun jueb N3 hMcwMM._h * | ssaiBoid ayj Joy sajeasaul ay} 1ono zc_wtmoc: _ummwmmhoc_
Buiaq ueld UOISIA 0Z0Z Ut sBuines pue suondo ‘paseBbly | — uoun ueadoing auy Buines e
saunpoddo Juswysanul Juswjsanul Ainseas Buionpa) ueaq sey oG eIy ybnoyyy | SBUIAES Jo [oAs| paiinbas ansiyoe (
a|qejieae Jo Buiojiuow — aouewioad ‘'sajel jsaujul moj Buobup e . 0} S|ie} }I0M UOISIA 0202,  *
Juswisanul poob ; ABejesis Ainsesi | paonpail sbuijes ypa.o W03l aJejjom
Ajleoibajelss [eydeo jsanul 0} ajjaddy N = Ajurepeoun Jusunsanul awi O awooino puno.e Ajuresoun e
. . g [eUONNIISUI PUE [BUONEN o . b d
Juswabeuew jesse Buong eIk oy 40 pouiad Japoys e Ul ers] | SIUSI YHH UO 8zsanbs Jo ﬁwm wy e
sajel uonelBiuw
0] papodal pue pamainal M.wmc_m_w% ur spew aq o} sbuines jeuonippy e E:E_MHM mewuo%w_wmﬁm ul mmmhmco hw U.maE_. .
(S4LIN) ABalens [eloueuly WIS | WNIPS| sapunpoddo uoyesausah . piemioy Buiob
pJemuoy Buiob uomsod Buoss = Ajsnoinaid awooul Jo/pue Juswisaaul eydeo O18 SOUBIEq PUNH [BISUSY | g1 Juswuianob uj uojonpay e
Juswabeuew [EIDUBUY JO SIN)ND POOS) asi[eas 0} |iey Aew |1oUnod 8y e 8 VH O SSO| 'Sspoysp sobBueyo Buipuny 7|0 e
R 196pnq Ul }nsal PN YyoIym :
U0-61,0Z 10} M3IASI 0} }93lgns seale 92IAJ9S 92IN0S)NO UIBLEOUN IEIURLIL A0 1o Buipuny juswiuIaA0B
puE U0-/ 0 40} pajuswajdl swayos Jayuny 0] ainssaid 9|qIssod } .mmm__m . mo_o.m _o:.w w . _o P [B1)USD 21N)N} JOAO AJulepeduUn e
MmaN -Buipuny poddng xe] |1ouno) punoj aq o} Buipuny [B20] BIIX8 } 4! uL sabueyo sajel ssauisnq
u1 sso| %01 8y} paidesoe Ajjeniul DAy a|qissod pue Ajunoasul [eloueul{ e aoueulq | U0 swooNo punole Ajulepsoun e l
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo ¢ abed

Bulaqg suondo juswdojaasp pue Buipun{ e
paalbe suondo ubisap auijno
pue sjue}nsuod Aq palopisSuod sajis

ul papiwqgns suejd Jadojanap
woJ} sanss| [eba| a|qissod o
patialep aq

a1e uojdweys pue sibay
Joubog dojanap 0} sueld ay|

juswdojpAsg 21wouos]

0} ue|d uonoe ay} Juswajdwi
pue 80in0sal 0} ainjie{ e
sjuswdojanap sibay Joubog

Page 127

uojweyjoH pue asua) sibay Joy suodQ e pIN09 sio}sanul pue siadojanag e pue uonelauabay ypm ssalboud s|qISIA Jo yoeT e 6 ¢
sjo9oid
[eydeo Joy }obpng pajwi] e
SOWO02)N0 PalISap JoAIap
0} |le} SOAlJEIIIUI MBU / s}oafold e
ainjny ul sdiysiauped pue saoinIas SERITVEY
paJeys aiow je Bupjoo] 0} uado |IDUNO) e uo ainssald |eloueuly IO e
l1om Buisiom ase saipoq oljgnd sanssl| |euonejndal [euajod e
JBYJ0 Y}IM SBDIAISS PaJeyS JO Sjusws|g e Ajunwwoo
s|1ounon UIYHM S2UpLUO0D JO }Sn}
Jayjo yym saiunypoddo Buusuped JO SSO| / UOI}OB)SIIESSIP JBWOISN) o
ajebiysanul 0} NURUOD |[IM [IDUNOD e Aianijap 9o1n8s JO Ajjigeley e
1809 paonpal je ‘9oIAIas Jayaq Bulaq 3Jom pue saoinias Bulieys Joy I
wie — paja|dwod aq 0} seale awwelboid saniunpoddo jsoj ag Aew aiay] e (
,90INISS JO MaINal, Bulpueising e paquia !
uoiesnuoLd peoj JJom [eliul 10} Mojje pue juawsa|dwi 0} Japsey abueyo
o} jauige) Aq paaibe ueld 108foud eyide) e jswsabeuew pue [eoijod e
1auIqe) o} papodal JONO saye)
9oUasqge SSaUIIS Wd) Buo] SApoys e (gof Aep ay}) sannp |euonelado (
passaibolid aq 0} sswweiboid SBe UOISIA OIfa)el)s JO SSO o
Jabeue maN pue awwelbold $9]0J Jeljiweun
awdojana( juswabeuel Joluag e Ul SaNss| 80UBUISAOD [ejuajod e
M3INSI 9ouewWIopad [enuue Ul paJapisuod "0}o sWieo ssaljs ‘@ouasqe epuabe
sue|d juswdojanap pue Buiuiel] e SSQUXOIS Ul 8SBaIOUl 9|qISSO .UoIIN[OASP, S JUSWIUISAOD)
pajepdn pue (Burounosyno jejuajod Buipunouns Ajuleaoun e
pamainal Bulaqg ABajellg ssa00y Jawojsn) e JO seale ul asealoul Aew) sawooino albajess au syuawdojanap Jolew
padojanap aq 0} Abajeng [eubiq sjeiedag e UOIJEAIJOW pUE S[eIoW JOMOT] e SNISP oﬁmﬁ_so_t_u 3 Sxew [Im ainjnj Joj} jyejs Juswabeuew
Ajpgedeo ainyny jo sanss| uonjualal YoIUM SBUELD 0} SOUElSISal 108foud jsijeioads pajwi] e
Jualayul aney Aew siaquiawl
SwJa} Ul uonoalip apinodd [Im yaiym g0z pue juawjinioal wia} buoj UE LEIS pue ‘(esiuadxe SaWO02}N0
ul passalboid Buiaqg ABajens aoines 1)) e — aneg| 0} A9y aiow ale Aay) P . % #>>v B .t n Bunoipuod o} buipes| Ajqissod pue
(s1iaquis|y pue s1a0140 saijunyoddo uaaib pue Ajjeussiul N_wwﬁ_&mwcwv_o M%Mwﬂ. mﬂw s224nosal Buiydjans sainjonisal
4O s)sisuo9 pieoq) syoslfoid ybu ayy padojanap jou aie yejs giqedes j| e aney Jou Aew l1oUNco BY |euoneladopjuswabeuew
ul }saAul @M ainsus o} s}sanbas abueys (Wes : pue }IoM UOISIA 0Z0Z, [BnpIS?Y e
ssauisng pue | J| Jolew ||e smalnal / siabeuew paouanadxa Jo ssO|) uojjewlojsuel] 99IAI9S uonjesiuebio Jo|ews AuV
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo  abed

19| Apuaoal sey |1ouno) ay \ \
sassaoo.d |IDUNOD 3y} pUE SI0}OBIUOD - (9oedsuaalb ‘ainsig| ‘uono9||02
Japuaj}-aJ ay} Joj pasn sjsije1oads joeiuo) Buisixe usamjaq uoISUS| e juswabeuepy sjoesuo) a)sem) 19| sjoesjuod Jofely e 9 74
210z Jequialdas ul play
sibay Joubog 10} 80UBIBJUOD JUBWISBAU|
sibay Joubog
10} pasedaud snjoadsoud Juswisanu|
90In0sal
a|gejieAe asn }jsaq 0} pasniuoud syosfoid
(Aysseniun 1a3sayolyy ‘suipng
‘6-8) sisuped Asy yum Buppiom panunuo)
paysijqeljss
aig aiuan umo] sibay loubog
Jelb ainoniiselyul 1oy 437 0} pig pue ays
xog }jes Joj suoneoijdde Suiuuejd maN
auoz asudiajug sibay Joubog ssed-Aq Jajsayoiyn
1e awwelboid Juswysanul 8240y s|j0Y ‘ssed-Aq japuniy “6°a eale ay)
1ousIp ay) Bunoedwi sswayos JUsWUISA0D
ul Bunsanul suieys joyJewsadns [euoleN Jolew Buipunouns Ajuilepaosun e 0
(uoneys sanuond Buimouiog [IDUNOD JBYID e o
H9 ‘wieal olgnd sibay Joubog) sewayos SUOIJIpUOD }ayJew |ed0| —
uoljessuabal swos uo apew ssalboid Buiouanyur Ajisianiun Jaisayoiy) )
weoyiubis pue paureiqo Buipuny [esjua) Ayoignd Jood pue suiing jo ymolb jo oedw] e o
seap! uonesauabal uoydweyspi /3su |euoneindal pue [eloueUl{ e paydjans ©
10} passaiboud aqg 0} pig Buipuny Jayun4 auloap 201nosal — Ajsnoaue}nwis (n
ssaiboid 0} Buipes| pajesauabal jou si pue Buiuuni sjosfoid Jofew sdpinpy e
0] ue|d AanljaQ juoleag sibay Joubog }I8q JejnWwiwiod e ojul suinj ealy e asealoul sabugjeyo |eba] e
A.owm .mhmo :O:N:mmuw JILIOUO0I® Ul @sealou| ) wm_mmumbw
}led WeyloH ‘uniy Jaary ‘jueg jse3) ymouib joyoeq e 0} uI-Ang pue ‘jo aouejdadoe
passaibold sjosloid puads |eydeo sawog weaJjs awoaul Jaupedplqnd jo yoe] e
pJemioy 10 SSO| uBaW pjnoa (*0)a ‘syled &lim jeajod — ybnous
109(0.1d 3y} aALp 0} saA}dalqo uonelsuabal Jed) puej |IoUNod Jo JuswdojpAsg e ousIp AJJIMS SpeWw Jou SUOISIDaq o
0} Juswywwod diysispes| QY Aisnijep 8y} ssoloe uoljelausbal sy08aloid uonelauabal
|eadde uo panosdde -UoU punoJe sanss| [euoeinday e pue juswdojaAsp 21IWLOU0ID Jolew Janljap 0} Buipuny Jo 3oe] e
Ing ‘Jaumopue] se uonisod sy Buluiwisiep lenuajod juswdojanap Jo seale 10} ABajess wua) Buol-piw (oay inoybnouyy
1ouNo) Buimojjoy pajoalal uoneordde ul }sanul 0} saiunpoddo passiy e Japm e aaibe o0} a|geun aq Ajlesauab pue sibay Joubog
Buiuueld weyjoH pieyory IS pasinay SaWIaYos Jo os|e Aew [1ounod ay] ‘sAejap J1o}) saibajelis uonesauabal
passalboud UOI}BJBPISUOD |IDUNOY JO BOUBAPE pue abua|jeyo 0} a|qelaujna wug} Buoj ay) Janilep
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo G abed

SU01393J8 610 dU} }sod siaquiay

Aq asn 1o} [1ouno) |In4 Aq panoidde
wawdinba pue wa)sAs seapiWWIOd MBN e

suoiosle 6102 AN Jo} 1.0z Ul padojansp
aq 0} slaqwiaw mau Joj uejd uoonpu| e

(,ebneb ainjesadwsy, e se Joe 0)) sanssi
K&y U0 snooj yum ueld ajelodio) paaiby e

Buissaibouid jonpuo)

JO SBP0D pue UONJISUO) JO MBINDY e
pajejdwoa Ajuoyine jo uoiebajep jo
awayos Jo mainal Aued Bupjiops Jauiqe) e
swisiueyosw AISAIlap 99IAISS dAljeUIB}E

JO UOI}BIBPISUOD PUB YIOM UOISIA
0202, Ul JUSWSA|OAUI JaquiB|\ — paaibe

Juswabebus

J0 yoe| ybnouy) s|ans| [e20]
1e diysiopes| pue diysioumo ssa] e
ssaooud Agq dn pjay suoisioag e

saunj|ie} soueldwod pue
aoueuJanob o} Ajjigesauina aio e

J1ouno9 ay} buioey sainssaid
AJaAI|2p 221AIBS pue [eloueul
Buisealoul pue sabueyo

2y} JO spuewap ay} jJoawl

0} Jas-|)s Auessadau ay}
Buiney jou sisquaw awos
0} pea| p|no2 uoie|siba)

|enuajod Buiuiaouod Ajuiepaoun e
Hunzey siduy 1o Bunyey
-um}, o} Buipes) sJojjiouno)
UMO /Uslied pue sioj[Iounod
Ajunoo ale s1Isquisw BWOS e
slayouagyoeq Ag }saIajul Jo joe] e
olignd
ay} 03 suolis|oap pue sabueyo
Jejndodun ajesiunwiwod o}
siaquiaw Auew Ag ssaubuljimun e
sanss| abueyd
pue sjuswalinbai adInosal
Jo Buipuejsiapun Jo 3oe| awWog e
uonisoddo jlews e
(-018 ‘swis)sAs || pasinal
/ saonoeld Bupjiom olu0I08|e
aoeiquis 0} |ie} ‘Bulures)

Page 129

pue poojsiapun Apesjo sjeob uowwo) e sanss! |04 / Vdd [enusjod e Jua1n2 Jo Ayixeydwios 8y puaje j,uop) sassadold yum “
pJemio} anow slaquiaw pue SIaolo Ajoeden Apapeaysjoym abebus 0} pajie} AnV :
[IDUNOD 98S O} BJISAP JaqWIBW |[BJOAD e usamjaq sdiysuoijejal paulells e pue juswebebug Joquayy | oAey siaquiaw swos ‘A|[eouoisiH e 14 ]
Japus}
-21 10} anp swa)sAs || oley e (
sajeoasaw} (DOSM b-8) Aued
OOSM yiim pJiy} uo juelal aq Aew [DUN0) e
9sI0Jaxa Juswainoo.d E_O.— se vwwww._mol_a S}S092 JOBJJUOD BINJN}
Bureq Apepie 8y} 1o} SBIIAIOE 10} SBOINIBS e Bunoedwi SUOIS||09 S)SEM
sBuines [euonippe mojje Apjdam 0} Juswjwwod [eoljod e
0} PapuUIXd J0BIJUOD Juswabeuew ajsep) e swajsAs || paysigeisa Auipnios pue ainssalid
JUSWIHWWOD JUBWISaAUI pue -Buo| abueyo o} papioap si 2JOW JBpUN SIIAISS BINSI9|
sBuines jueoyiubis ypm papleme s}oeljuod 3 41 pasinbai sabueyo jeuonelado ind Aew uonisues} yjeay aliqnd =~ e
aoedsuaalc) pue Juswabeuel ainsie|] e pue sjosfoid Jofew a|qissod e Japus}-al Buiyoeoidde/mainal
piemioy Buiob main oibajenls e sajelouslap Ajijenb aoineg e Japun sjoenuod Jofew Jayjo e
(s)4010B43U09 JO suoleloadxa panaiyoe jou ale sbuines }s0) e (Aeple ays pJepuejs pajoadxa
S,|IOUNO0J JO UOHEDIUNWIWIOD J2Jes|D) e sanss| 10} S92IAISS ‘BouUBUBUIEW 8y} 0} 821AI8s dpinoad Jo
aoe|d [euonjeindau 7 Aponjgnd 1004 e | spunoiB yuswabeuew sjsem ‘JUBWIISBAUI [BUIS)XS JO |A3] BU}
Ul 821n0Sal 18210 Juswabeuew aIns|e] e spouad ‘ainsia]) sjoeljuod uesyubis analyoe ‘sbuines pajoadxs ay}
aoe|d ul ABaje))S JuBWaINd0ld e abueyo ; Buispus) ybnouyy }sow sy jo Jaquinu e Bupjew aq jou Aew si0joeIUOD AuV
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo 9 abed

suonesiuebio Alejunjon
pue s|iouno) [B20] U0 SaoUaNbasuod
pue joedwi Apyuspl 0} DOSM
ypm Buisiel] SaAN0axXT JaIyo [IoUn0) e
sjdiaoaljuonelsiba)
g1y 03 sebueyo Buipiebai
JawuIBno9) BulAqqo) sjIouUNoD YD e
1oy ew [ejual
uo ainssaid asea 0} UOIEPOWWOIdE
wapn}s "6'9° 1o} pue| pund [eJaus9)
J0 Juswdojanap Bunebisanul [ouUno) e
Buipuny
Juelb JUSWUIBAOS) [BUOIJIPPE SWIOS
sales g1y losyo
0} 82/.20 O} polad ul sawoy mau Gz
JBAI|SP 0} JUBWHWWOY) "palojuow pue
paonpoud ue|d ssauisng Y4H pajepdn e
uol}epoW WOk Jsepjealq g paq ayeaud jo
asn panunuod 0} aAijeuls)e Hed se /10g
ul 1Iouno) ay} Ag saipadoud Jo aseyoind e
asn-al ojul sawoy
Aydwae Buibuug pue sawoy a|qepioye
mau Buipjing pJemo} Juswjiwwod [IDuUnNo) e
pamainal
pue paulwexa Buiaq sjoenuod buisnoH e
passalboud Buiaq
ABajeng ssaussaoWOoH ' BuiISNOH maN e
palinouj s}sod
g9 ul uoionpal o} Buipes| ‘paulelqo
Buiaq asemyos |euonippe pue (uonuanaid
Buipnjoul) sessad0id aAIl08YS SIO e
eua)uo uoneoyijenb
8y} Jo uouyap-as Buipnjoul Ajjeaisijesl

3su jeuoneindal ; Apoignd 1004 e
Buimosloq paseasou] e
)o0}s Buisnoy
[loUNOD asealoul o} alnjieq e
"0}
‘sjuiejdwod ‘sauinbus — saoinies
JOWO}SND UO puBwSp pasealou] e
2Ins0|2310}
0} Buipes| buiseaoui s}so0d
abebuow g Buipus salouBUS)
0} Buipes| ypali) [esioniun e
suonebiqo
Aiojniess [uyiny Jjou Aew [ouno) e
alniny ul uiebe pasnoul Bulaq
S]S00 Jsepjealq pue pag eljxg e
suolesiuefio Asejunjon/sanueyo
ulypm Ajoedeo ssa] e
ssajpwoy
JO Jaqwinu Ul 8sealoul ainind e
SpPUBLISP [IDUNOD UO 3sealoul

SWIOaY BB} Y}
wou} ainssaud yealb Japun
s| [eJauab ur Apunwiwod

By} uaym awi e je
‘uoljepowiwodoe Arelodway
Jo/pue Buisnoy sjgeploye
aoins apinoid 0y

a|ge a4 jou Aew |10UN0 8y |

Buipuny DOSM 4O SSO| [EUSIOH  ©
(aLy)
Ang o] by ybnouy} senuadoud
VYH Jo sso| Buinujuo)y e
2102
1OV UOIJONPaY SSOUSSOSWOH dy}
Japun sanjigisuodsal jeuolippy e
300]S }oylew [ejual [eoo] Uuo
UOI}epOWILLIOIO. JEe)s IO Juspn)s
Buiwooaq s,ONH Jo oedw e
awweiboud |eydeo Bunsixa
0} uonippe ui sabueys Janlap
0} Aj1oedeo 18010 [eulalul JO OB e
"0)8 ‘YUpain
|lesianiun — sabueyo Jyauaq
JuswuIanob J1ano Ajuirepaoun e
uoljepowwoooe jo Ajjigejiene
10edw! |m Joubog je sndwed
Ayslanlun Ul asealoul Jueoubls e
10V WI0eY aIeydM
BY} WOl SpUBWSP Ul 9SEaIoU| e
BOLY pue jse3 8|ppIN
Ul SSSHO JUaLIND pUE Juswanow
99J} uo Ao1104 D3 J JuauNd
0} anp uoielbiwwi uj asealou] e
(-018 ‘seipadoud anjen ybiy
10 ajes ‘Aejs 0} Aed '6°9) salng),
JUSWUIBAOL) JONO AJulepaoun e
eaJe 8y} Ul s1SY pue Bulpjing
asnoy [1ouno) ‘YyH uo joedwil
ue aney ||IM Sjual Uo 9zaanbg, e
[IoUNo0D
BY} UO Spuewap Ul 9sealou] e
anjoeoud alow aq
0] Spaau a2IAI8s Ing — Abajens

Page 130

sis|| Buiyiem 1no o} ABajesys maN e pue gidoad s|qelaujna aio e SSOUSSI|OWOH ssaussapwoy bBuiyolesany e eg9
.uoinjonsp, ainjny
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo 2 ebed

jauige) pue | IND 0}

sydiaoal 11| g1y jo Buipodas ; Buuoyuoyy e
swdojanap pue Buipuny joeipe

0} siouped ajeudoidde yum juswabebug e
awdojanap

9|qISSod 10} puB| PAUMO-|IDUNOY JO MBINDY o
(901S EIA “B'9)
Buisnoy ajqepioye aq 0} sjuswdojarap

Mau Jo uoiodoud Joy Juswalinbay e
passalboud Buiaq

ABajeng ssaussaoWOoH ' BuiISNOH MaN e

sjuawalinbal Juswulanog

198w o} saiadoud jo gjes padloq e
sydiagal ||

JO JUSWIUISAOL) O} UINJaI [BUB)OH e
juawdojanap Joj} joylew

S|geln e se Ugas jou sIealy e
siaumopue| Aq passaiboid
Jou pue 3|geln A|[edIWOou0d

ss9| aJe sawayos Juswdojanag e
pamoje
S9SEaIOU| JUal |IUN SWodUl

Jual YYH Ul uojjonpal jJueodiubls e
90Inosal
|EUIBIXD JO S}SOD BJIXD [ 92IN0S3I

wes} |eba| [1ounod uo oedw| e
SAISUSB)UI 92In0s3l

aJe sobueyo pue SMaINdy e
aoueUl} JO XoEe| 0} aNP BWaYIS
pasodoud ul uononpail ; Buisnoy

1ouno) mau Buipping ul shejag e
pasiwixew
JOU JUBW}SaAUI BNUBASI

sawoy
mau Buip|ing Joy sjebie}
Juswdojanap auy} |y|nj 0}
a|ge a4 Jou Aew |1oUN0d 8y |

juswdojanaqg

Sjual [eloo0s }e p|ing 0}
saioyiny [eoo buibeinoous jou
sabueyo anne|siba) JUswWUIBN0D) e
weiboid
ping asnoy mau ui Aejgq e
awi} ul pasn
Jou yi sydi@oau 11| (1Y) Ang
01 by Jo doegmepo s|qissod
Buisnoy sjqeploye
Joj sjuelb yOH Ul uoioNpay e
ue|d ssauisng
VyH uo Aoijod Buies jual
Jeuoneu o0} sabueyd JUsWUIdN0S)
1o sjoedwi anebau jueoyiubig e
awooul |ejual paonpal
0} Buipes) ‘aseajal g1y woly
300}S JO JUNOWE 3y} Ul UOIIONPaY e
.SBIN3|, JUBWIUIBAOD)
|euonippe pue awayos
Ang 0} ybry Juswuianog
0] sabueyo Jano Aluiepysoun e
Alunwwod
pue slagqwaw wouj abusjieyo
0} 9|geJaulnA sjuswWdo[anap MaN e
juswdojanap Jayuny
IO} pUB| PSUMO-|IDUNOD) JO YoBT *
(seiadoud Jsjjlews oy
sI Juswauinbai Jng Anq Jo pjing 0}
3|ge |1ounod) saiadoud asodind
10O} )i} pUB 3|ge|IeA. JO OB e
payojalis si Ajoeded
swea} aoueuly pue [eba| [eulsju] e
Buipiing
asnhoy Joj asiadxa juawdojanap

Page 131

an0ge YO SB e [ 9 [10UNOD JOJ SANssI [euonjeinday e Buisnoy sjqep.ioyy leussjul yidap ur jo yoe| e 9 qo
suonesiuebio Alejunjon
0)/,S92INJ8S PBUOISSIWIWOD, 10}
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo g abed

salouabe
Jauped [eusapxa yym Juswabebug e

s|1ounon
19410 yum saniunyoddo Bunsuped

UIY}IM S0USPLUOD JO }SNJ}

JO SSO| / UOIjoB)SIESSIP JOWOo}SN) o

Alanijap 90I1nI8S JO AJljigeley e
3}JOM pue saolAles Bulieys 1o}

Rew aiay] 'DQV 104 anjea
wJa)-1abuoj 3saqg ay} Jayo jou
Aew Aay) ‘pausanob Apsngol
10u ale sdiysiauped Aay J|

J0u op sjuswabuelre diysiauped
AJBJUN|OA puE [EWIOU| o

s}salaul }saq wiay-1abuol sy

9AIBS JOU Op YoIym sjuswsabuelle

Page 132

ajebsanul 0} @NUKUOD [IM [IDUNOD BY] o sapiunpoddo 3soj ag Aew aiay] e sdiysiauped ojul Jajus Aew |1DUNOD e 8
HOUOp aInjonyiselul paseasou| e
epualajal suonnquuoo Ana
pue juswdojanapal paau Aew alnjonJjsesu] Ajunwiwo) JO SsO| o
sue|d pooyinoqybioN spen, e |eadde
Buipuny Jadojonap Jo ssO] e uo pauinuano Bulag suoisioap
paonpai 10 panowal st gHN Buiuueld o} a|qeIauUINA IDUNOD
#1 |leyHoys [eroueuly jueayiubis [®A9] [IOUN0YH
Ajlenusjod pajuswajdwi pue umo ] /yslied je padojanap buiaq
paalbe ale sabieys |un sajuow ale sueld pooyinoqybiau ajopy e
padojanap Buieq sjnpayos Buibieyo 710 710 JO SSO| — sl [eloueUl] e S90IAI9S JO AIBAIIOp
pauiuapi paaibe si abewep |euoneindal s,louno) uiejsns 0} (gHN) shuog
ue|d [e207] 8y} 89U0 sueld pooysnoqybiaN pue |0Jjuod 8)elodiod JO SSOT| e SOWOH MaN wolj Buipun) Jo ss0] e
.opeuw, Jo uoIsinal Joj Buipuny e eale sladojanap wouy (
MB3IABI Japun Joj Juawisanul Jo adAy Buoipy e Buipuny Juswisanul ainjonJseljul (
1day aq 03 sayis oibajens pue Alddns pue| e $]S00 pa] Buluueid Jo sso e S
ue|d [e207] pajdope ul JUB)INSUOD pUB JJE}S pasealou] e 19W ale syuswaiinbal
papnjoul Buiaq pue J0joadsu| 0} papiwgns safoyne Alddng pueT BuisnoH
(S.NIN) SUOIEDIPOIA UIBA JO BINPBYDS e Buunoqybiau wouy pasissuel) JeaA-G pue }sa] AianieQg
Joyoadsu| ay} 0} uoissiwgns sjuswalinbal [euollippe 9|qISSOd e BuisnoH ainsua 0} mainal Japun (
o0} Joud ‘siaquisy Aq paaibe pue 106.4e) paxiy e jou ale 1day aqg jsnw ue|d |e207] pue
uo payNsuod saldljod pue SaIpN}s PasIney e pue paseaJoul Apealje siaquinu Buipuny ainjonuiseul Alddns pue -jabue} e jou ‘ juiod
8102 SpaapN passassy Ajanoalqo e paemul 8 Aljuspl Mwmho&om Buipess, e aie siaquinu BuisnoH e
auNp Ul MBINDY 193d YO — M3IA3I Japun ‘eaJe ay} UIYIM UoISayod ou1 Osle m,”omhwwo_ h_mw hm«v_n___w__w\m,m 8102
sulewsal aoJnosal juswypedap Buiuueld e ou pue sjuswdojanap wopuel U os|e S| %\ﬂ_. \ _ n p AInp ul (Joyoadsu| ayy Aq palinbal
Joalay} suonesidwi ypm ‘suoisioap buiuueld oibajens __MH_M%OEMH___# . vwwaummm ﬂ_mwm_ suoljealyipow o} Joalgns) Iouno)
pue sjuswaiinbai Bujuueld Juswuianos) g ayew o} Ajljiqe ss9| aq ||Im mm.r_ Ue|q 2907 8U} YBNOYIY lIn4 Agq pajdope — Jojoadsu| .D»
sanssi ay} uiejdxa 0} (*0}8 ‘sdoysyiom pue aJay} ‘}aw jJou ale sjpuswalinbal Buluue|d o uonepusWWOISl
SJBUIWSS) SIaquisw O} UOBWIOUI BIO\ e Alddns pue js8) bulobuo j| e ue|d 8207 1e pahejop Alonog e 9 yA
eaJe ay) ul buisnoy jo dn aye)
Jamoj 0} pes| p|nod (suoionpal
do '6°9) yoyep ainonisenu] e
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo g abed

passalboid swweliboid buiuies |04 / vdd
sjsenbal

/ ebewep jeuonejndal 0} Buipes)
Hddo /10Y uoljosjold ejeq jo

ue Buioey si [IoUN0D ay |

funoag ejeq pue

$82Jn0sal pajwl| pue Ajxaidwod
/ (8nssl [euoljeu) sjsanbal

Page 133

¥da /104 8|puey 0} 82inosal paulel] e | yoeaiq 0} AjjiqeiduinA pasessou| e 92UBUIDAOL) uoljewlou] vda pue |04 Buiseaiou 9 6

suonesiuebio Aiejunjon
0}/,S901AI3S PAUOISSILIWOD, 10}
Buipuny DOSM 40 SSO| [EUS}Od
"0}
‘BuisnoH ‘yyeaH |eluswuoIIAUg
‘Ayejes Ajunwwo)
‘6 9 s921AI8S [1IDUNOY oyI0ads
uo ainssaud Jayealb bupnd
ueld Buioijod |e207 Jo joedw
saiouabe Jauped |euss)xa wody
JUSWIHWILLOD JO XOB| / UonoNpay
90IAISS paleys pue sjueld

‘diyssauped e Jo uoinysuod (

8y} Buipunouins uoniuyap 40 XoeT (

Kianijsp aoinies b
ybnouy) pue Ajjenjoesuod yjoq —
Ayxajdwod diysiauped pasealiou|
saiped e

uo ainssaid [eloueuly pasealou| (
suoljesiuefio Asejunjon/sanueyo sooe|d joxew
uiynm Ajoeded ssa e ay} ul saunyoddo [euajod
suoljesiuebio Aiejunjon S3WO02)N0 Jo Buipuejsiapun Jo 3oe
pue S|IouN0Y) |BI0] UO S8oUBNbasuod paJisap JaAl|ap 0} |ie} s}oaloid . |oJjuod [eanjod jo
pue joedwi Apuspl 0} DOSM $30INIBS Buluassa| |eijuajod ¥ suononpal
Upm Buisiel] saAnnoax3 Jalyg |Ipunoy e uo ainssaud [ElOUBUY IO o Buipuny wouy Buipes) ‘aiow
mainas Buiobuo o} Joslqns swieays aleys 0} snjadwi JUSWUISA0L)
Buipuny Jo08s poddns pue Alejunjop e awoouj jualayip pul 0} Buiney SHN @Y} UIyim SaIiIAo. Jo
sBuipuy ypne sueaw suononpal buipung e UOI}eUIPJO-09 |[BJAAO JO }OB| pue
610z ssaiboud 0} Aoljod jo peaH dnoi e uonisues} yyeay algnd ayy ypm saInsoo ao1oeld 49 Jo 10adsal
UoISI/\ UO SUOISSNISIP JUBAS[SJ LUIOJUI [IoUNOD 10} sanljiqisuodsal maN e Ul SUJS2U02 [290] JuedyIubIs
0] | IND Aq paalbe uoniuyep diysiauped, e | sdiysiauped jo sanoalqo punose —sdnoub BujuoissILIWOD [edIulo
sjuswabuene Ajuepo pue asueusanob jo yoe| e suonjdo SHN yim Bupjiom diysiauped
10 Ued se pauyep "0} ‘saoueuly sanss| |euonejndal [euajod e ybBnous Buuojdxe jou Aq | UEBBW |[IM UOl)ISuel} yjesy a1gnd
‘sanoud ‘saiijigisuodsal pue sa|0y e Alunwwoo sanjlunpoddo passiw aqg os|e ABiauAs / syyausaq aonpoud

suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl Jo 01 abed

elpaw [e100s pue juswdojanap ajsqam

uo MJom Jayun4 ‘sajiunpyoddo [eybip
aiow Buipinoid 0} JuBWHWWOD [IDUN0) e

UOI}eULIOJSUBI} SDIAISS / YIOM UOISIA WO}
Bunnsal sebueyd sa0IAIBG JawoISN) e

uo-gL0c
J1oj pajepdn / pamainal ue|d 8jelodion e

120¢-810¢ 10} papusixs

aq p|nod saniunyoddo [einy e
AjUnwwod a8y} ulypm

soljunjoddo ssiwixew o} ainjieq e
Kianijap ao1nas 0}

sabueyo Bupeosiunwwos Aynoiq e
(uonessusabai ‘ueld
207 “6°8) Juens|al pue anoayd
ale jey} sanneniul Jofew Janiap

Jawojsnd buibeuew

pue Buipuejsispun 10

sue|d a21AI18S pue saAjdalqo
$,]10Un02 8y} BulesuNwWwod
Aq Jayye ‘Aunwiwod

au} yum Ajpaosye

abebua 0} ain|iey Jo ysiy

ybBisu| Joawolsn) pue

$JOJ|1oUN09 pue
oljignd ajeusije p|nod swajsAs
paseg-gam uo aoueljal Jano
- Jeajoun uoioallp inq ‘Abajens
|eyBip 0} JUSWHWWOD |IDUN0D e
[IoUNOD 3y} sSoJoe
Ayojed aq uea ,aney 0} sjuem,
SA .spaau, AJlunwwoo/1awolsno

Page 134

SOA}03[qOo Bale 9JIAISS — |IDUNOD JNOA pue S}e|NWIO) 0} JNOUJIP SIO|N e juswabebuz AJunwwon jo Buipuejsispun e 7 ol
1IND Aq pajdaooe asuodsal juapioul sinoy
-Jo-Jno | D] Jo} sjuswabuelie Ajjiqejieny e /Xy (Ajlewuoy) jou si poddns
pauiejqo aq 0} 191 — sayoelq ejep ajebiysanul
90In0sal uojoajold elep paj|iys [eUCIHPPY o 0} 82Jnosal jsijeloads pajwi] e
swabeuew Buryiom
/ Jels o} pasinpe pue padojorsp 3lIqow pue awoy Ul seatou| e
aq 0} ssao0ud juswabeuew juspiou] e asay)
aoueldwos }92W 0} 9|ge|ieA. Sa2In0sal JANO
Anoas pue Y¥d4ao o ybisiano uI92U09 — (¥Y4a9) uonenbay !
(9S]) dnosg Ajunoag uonewlou] e yJom Bunsixa uo1}93]0ud eleq |elauas (
slaquiay 1oedwi M pue poddns | IND N3 woJj susping |[euolippy e S
pue yejs |le 0} papinoid Buluies; 44Q9 e | / @esodiod asinbai im sayoealq AjInoas ejep pue aoueusanob
yels a|qissod jo juswabeuew juspiou] e uoljew.ojul 0} uone|al
pue ] |AD o} papiroid sbuialiq Jeinbal sanss| ul splepuejs jauige) Buiseaiou] e
pue pajajdwoo Buiaq sayepdn Aoljod e Jeuoneindai ; Ayolignd 1004 e sjuawalinbal (
pauiel} pue Hddo 8y} wolj s}sod MB3U JO SSBUSIBME JJE]S pue
pajulodde (O4Q) 4201 UOIO8)0Id BJe( e | [BIOUBUY / BINSUD 0D [EUSJO Buluies) Alojepuew |EWIO) JO OB  °
aoueldwod ¥d4ao Joj payepdn aoueldwod ‘splepuels
saloljod pue pajonpuod Jipne ejeq e NSd Inoypm uonouny 0} ajgeun pue sjuawalinbal Ajunoas
paule}qo 92IAPE [BUIBIXD ‘jeuclippy Buiaq s20I1MI8S |IOUNOD UIBLID) e ejep pue adsueulanob uonew.ojul
‘passaliboid ue|d uolOy pue PamaInal }l Jo} g|qisuodsal UO SSBUaJBME I9QUWIBIA JO oBT *
(4d@ao) uonenbay uonosiold eyedq S| OUM puUE 818yMm S| UOIJewojul |0J}U0D SS3| 0} pes|
|esauag) Joj uonjelsedasd uo asuepinb Q)| e Jeym punoJse AjUe[o JO 3oe| e ued Buleys UoljeWIOUI BIOI e
(passaiboud Buiaq uoneonad-al lenuue "0)9 "0)9
Upm) panaiyoe piepuels (NSd) JIoOMIaN ‘Saye}SIW 0} pes| pjnod sanssl uone|nbay ‘uonisuel} yjeay angnd o }nsal
S92IAISG 21|gnd 0} UOIEdILaD pue UNMm |eap 0} wea} BulIojuol uoljo9j0.d EejeQ [eJauan B SE Bjep 2I0W 0} SSa00. aney
JUB)NSU0D AQ POMBINBI SHIOM]BU [IDUNOD e 9OIAPY [IOUNOD UIYHIM SWI} SS9 o / 19y uonoajold eleq Jo Buipiooas aq Aew |IDUNOD e
JJels 1oy saljjeuad [eloueuly JO yoeauq e 4o )su pasealtoul payojalis ale yoiym
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo || abed

aouaja( [e}SeE0) pue ue|d Juswabeuew
auljpioys ayy Aq pawuoul) swwelboid
|endeo piemioy e sey [1Iouno) ay |
paaooud ||Im YoM

siy} J1 Ayjijun Apuaino 1 ybnoyye ‘ued
Buurewsas ayy ybnouyy 1no 0} uonesldde
Buiuueld panosdde ue sey mou Ajunwiwiod
8y} pue 910z ul payoeaiq yds — weybed
SawaYos Juswabeuew ysu |B}seod

pue pooy} Jolew panoidde o} papinoid

(V3 a8y} wouy jueib uoisols [e}se0d

pue pooy) buipuny yuesb diysisuped swos
awuIanob jesyuad Buikqqo]

(0a

Jaysayoly9 ‘Aousby yuswuoliaug ‘6'9)
saljoyine jueasjal Jayjo yum Buibebu]

1oedw! [eluBWIUOIIAUT
seale |e}se0d
Bunoqybiau o0y Buipuaixa
wa|qoud Jo s pasealou|

-:uonosjold [e)seo)

Buisnoy Asrelodws} 10 pasN
Ayoygnd
Jood / sanssi jeuoljeinday

pue| paj|oJuod S)
UO S}OSSE JO adueuUdjulew J0}
saljjiqisuodsal osje pue (oY
uonosjoud [eyseo) ayj Japun)

sJjamod sey [1Iouno) ay |

Kjani3oaya suonouny

3}Jomiau ajoym ay} jo ped sy
Jey} ainsus 0} Joy abeuleiq
pueT ayj Japun (ueuedu)
Jaumopuej se saljjiqisuodsal
SH [4In} }snwl JIdunoy syl

sBuijjamp 03 ysu

-:abeulelq pue

sjuawanodwl

ws}-Hoys Jo uopelolslsp pidey
(s)awayos

Janijap o} Buipuny juaioiynsu|
uonnjos paiinbal

0} se suoluido Bunoiyuo)
S3IpN)s [BJUBWUOIIAUD

‘6 8 syjuswaiinbal Aiojeinbal

/ anje|siba] 03 anp sAejag

-:u01108)0Id [BISeo)

oSl [9A8] BSS pue
abueyo ayewo — wia} 18buo
Buipooy

s|1ounon . . Usey} JO SaoUBYD / UOIS0ID o)
ysled pue sjuapisal yum buibebug e S}S0OO pasealou|] e UB1y € uum ‘sanss) uoisose JO 9)eJ sasealoul Jayjeam peg e
. © (Buphoas senssiSgH o Jueoyubs o} oelqns a1e "~ suopoe £
a]buiys pue syo01 Aneay) wow:m,,m_u alnjonJisesul pue 1OLISIA U3 JO Seale sWos BuiAejap suoisioap _m:v_>__o:_. 10} n " 15
WIB}-Hoys [eUOlippE Paj[EISUl [IOUN0D) e pue| ‘Apadoid o} abewep pooj4 e abeuleiq Jawalinbal — PaAJOAUL SIBUMO )]
-:uoljo8jold [eyseo) SOWOY SjudpISal JO SSOT] e | pueT '@ UoI}Id)0ld [e}seo) Auadoid / sepusbe sidiynpy e 9 LL (T
AR
sJadojanap Aq
sjesodoud Buisnoy Buipunouins
Ayolgnd Jood / abusjleyy e
pasealoul
g1L0Z Ul USYEelapun MaINSY Joad Buluueld e aq ||IM Ys1 uay} ‘AjoAizoaye
pamalnal aq 0} ABajel)g sSa00y Jawoisn) e passalboid jou sabueyo j| e
paepdn uoljewIojul
pue pamalnal saioljod elpawl [E100S e Jo AIanijap Jo spoylaw |euoiiped)
padojanap Aqg pajeusije awo023q pjnod
aq o} s1 Abajeng |enubiq sjesedss pue suole}oadxa pue spasu
e pue passaiboid Buiaq zz0z-8102 JuaJayip aAeY [[IM sJasnh a2INI8S
ABajel}S 90IAI8S | D] Uniy MBN "S92IAIBS |IoUNOD jo uonjessuab xauay)] e
Jawojsn) pue || 1o} sjuswabuelie poddns spoyjaw
90IAI9S paleys 9|qissod Jo uoljelapISuod Aunwwod jo xoe|/ Ayolgnd Jooqd e UOoI}e2IUNWIWOD J18YJ0 pue eipawl
910z Aq pakejap Inq ‘paiinbal sjpuueyd pa)o0o0j1an0 suoneladxa |e1oos Buisiwixew Jou [Iouno) e
suonoy
unebnip / s|ou0) Judll uanbasu 196611 liqesdunp | Buney
Bunebinn S|0J3U09 JudLin aouanbasuo obb Aipqelauln Bune ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo g1 ebed

sainseaw A)unoas ajeudosdde Aojdap 1] e
S82IASP 9|Iqow pue syiomjau ‘s, od

ejep JO UoidniIod 10 SSO| e
seolnes Aay apinoid

ue Buioey sI [10UNOD 8y |

(010
‘2]EMWOSUE] ‘BJeM[EW ‘SASNIIA)

Page 136

uo asn Ul alemyos Ajunoas Alejaudold e | 0} Ajijigeul / swia)sAs Aa) JO sSOT e funossiagho | syoeje 19gAd Jo Jealy) pasealou) <l
aoed ui sue|d Ajinuuoo
ssauisng aney 0} slojoeljuod Jofew
asinbal sassaooid Jopus) Juswaindold e
pajuawajdw aq olwapued ‘69 ssauj|l
o} sueyd [eonuo , | Aeq, Jo Bunse) seinbay e ybnouy) yejs Jo sso| ssep
sueld pue sjoedw payiuapl sioiddns
ssalppe 0} sueld Ajanooal aoedsyiop, e / SI0I0BIUOD £ q o0
jusploul ‘sa0InI9s Ay Jo uoisinoid ay)
2Je0S quiog aJjua) JIAID Jaye anp sanssi |euoljejndal 10 S8OINIBS / BINjoNASELUI
S8Inpao0.d JuspIoul / UOIENJBAS PasIney e | /saolnias Aoy apinoid o) Aljigeu) e s __o.c:oo au) Bunoeduw
sjuswalinbal Jels / ainonJjselul ,>.=om JIp JOuNS Em_o_oc_ yJom ABajel}S uoiepowwoddy
1] pue 291AI9s [eonLD Ayjuapl J1ay} Buioaye yuspioul Jofew e wo :. Aununuoo Buiobuo ay} jo ped se ‘aiuan
0} Jap.o ul pajepdn pue pamairal Buiag Jofew e ybnouyy siaddns wmmc_w:n 0} ysu e . m.hms n 2IAID 8y} Jo} YIS Alanodal se
(dD49) sueld Aununuo) ssauisng pue / s10joenjuod Jofew Jo sso| o i : ) OB PINOM YdIym ‘H1¥g 40 ainjny
(v19) sisAjeuy 1oedw) ssauisng 80IAI9S  ® *0]@ ‘JUSPISUI [BJUSWIUOIIAUS HoERE EM_\G 4O st paseasou 3y} Jano Ajuiepsaun panunuo)
uioe} sI [IoUNo) ay | ¢
wawdojanap snouas Jayjo Jo Buipooyy juapIoul Jayjo Jo Buipooy Gw (
Japun ue|d Aynuiuog ssauisng sjesodio) e ‘abewep auy ybnoly} sbuipjing Aynunuo) ‘ally ybnoJayy ainjoniyseul s
sJalnsul S [IDUNOY WOJ) PAUIE}dO DINPY 0} ss999e Jo sBuip|ing Jo ssO] o ssauisng ajesodion / sBuipjing jo ssoj Jo jealy] 8 rA
salped Jayjo
Jsisse 0} pue sajjjiqisuodsal pugj |IouUno) (
ssalboid 0} pajuiodde Jjoauibug abeuiesq e
S9Ip0g JueA3|al
ypm sabebus Buiuuelq Aouablowg e
1oU3SIQ 9y} sso.oe
sdnoub pooy pue saysiied ypm buibebug e
suaje 9210 191\ 0} Buipuodsal
/ Bunjou pue sjsedaloy Jayjeam Buuojuopy e
(V477 00SM pue (Buiuiem [I9UNoD 3y} 0} Joeq
pooj} pajewolne) 3 ypm Buppopy e passed Buiaq sanigisuodsal
abeuleiq pue 0} pes| Aew spieog abeuielq
Jeusaju] Jo |eAOWSI 3]qISSOd
swuwelboud aJeme aq 0} paau
anuanal Jeak-uo-1eak e pue (salbsjels (y1om)au 8y} ssouoe) salued ||y
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo ¢| abed

2Jnjny/WLISJUI pUB SaNSS| UOI}ONJISUOD
Buipsebas sisuped Aay yum Buisier
Jojoenuoo

ypm pamainal Aeinbas ssaiboud

/ $3su pue yejs juswabeuew josfoid

Aq pauiejuiew Jajsibal ysu pajieladg
|1oUN0Y

IIn4 Jo [encsdde yum ‘Bunispua} Buimojoy
paaibe s)S00 pue }9] JOBJJUOD UOIJONIISUOD
109foud ayy Buuanllep

Jo sabejs ||e ybnouy) pajeoojje asinosal
pajeoipap pue paule}qo 99IApe }sijeloads
slaquwia|y o} Buiodal ssaibouid

Je|nbal pue Abajelg ainsia] Japim jo Led
se |1ouno) |In4 Aq paaibe Juswdojanaq

abewep |euoneinday

SSO| [elOUBUIH

S$}S00 |euoippy

saoInIas Aoy apinoid o} ainjie4

Aynoey mau

ay} Janijap 03 1osloud ay} jo
Ajxajdwod pue azis ay} wody
JIoUNOYD By} 0} ¥S1 B S| aJay |

anuan
ainsia uoydweysiji| maN

aJis ay} je palinbai
SI jJOM |euollippe pajoadxaun e
1oW jJou AJSAIIBp JOJ SO[EDSaWI| e
papaaoxa
109foid Jo s}s00 pauueld e

aoual|isal
anoldwi [m yoiym ‘Absjens aoines 19|
Ul papn[oul SaIAISS ,pNOJD, JO 9SN ainjn4
paJapisuod aq ||Im (,83ep20]s,
AunoasiaqAo yo "6°8) sanijeniul jeuoljeN
passaibouid

Bulaq uoneoyed AnoasiagAn

pamainal Buleq swsiueyoosw

Buiodas pue asuodsai jJuspiou]

sanss| alemjew

JO ainjeu jeadal 0} anp palapISuoD

Buiaq yejs 1o} uoeoNnpa |euolppy
sjuswalinbal uoljeoyad

188w 0} uayepapun Buisa} Ayjigesauinp,
SUOISJIaA }Saje| 8y} O} Swa)sAs

lle yojed oy aoejd ui si ssao0ud Buijjoy
pajepdn Apenbas pue

2oe|d ul saioljod abesn | )| pue Ajnoag
MaInal Japun (souabijajul [eroyiue

Buisn -6-3) sjonpoud Ajnoas jeuonippy
(-03@ ‘Bunyoayd snuia

-iue ‘s|iemall "6-8) sysu 18gAho asiwuiw 0}

JaA0021 0} Juads awiy / S1IS0) e
abewep [euoneinday e
SSO| [elOUBUI e

1e31y) J8gA0 4O Xsu pasealoul

sayoealiq
Anoas 0} pes| pjnoo siauped

/ Jeis Aq saonjoeud Bupjiom 1004 e
saljjioe} pnojo
pue Jaula}jul JO 8SN papuaixa

ybnouyy AjjigeIBuUINA pasealou] e

142

Page 137

suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing

aosuanbasuo9n

196611 |

Aypqesauinp

Buney

ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl jo y| abed

Jjejs Junod pue bujjjod oy papinoid Bujuies] e
ajqissod ajaym pasn yejs paouauadxy e
110y |eJo3o3|5
ajepdn o} passalboid sseaued [enuuy e
paulejuiew Jajsibal ¥su pajielaq e
pamainal asuepinb pue

}saiun Aunwwo) e
mainal [eipnf o uonyad uoos|g e
sso| [euonjeinday e

BpUDI3}aJ/SUONOI3|d JO
}oNpUOd 8y} Ul UOISSILIWOYD
[BJ0}08|3/}UBWIUIBNOS)

ay} Jo jleyaq uo bBunoe
uaym jjejs si pue [IouUnod

deus, Jo} uonesedaud jo yoe
pnelj [elo}os|g

sjnsaJ uonoala o} abuajieyd
SJBJOA JO JuBWasIyoueuasiq

MN pajojid Buiaq sassaooid
Bunon o) sabueyo ainjny [eUSjod e

Page 138

sanss| Ajoje|nbal uoissiWWOo) [BI0}O3F e 19910 ou} 0} Sysli ale alay L saooeld (map)
suonoa|e Joj pawlopad Buluueld psjiejaq e Buiuiniay jsuiebe uonoe |[eba] e suono9|g uonessibal [elooale Bulbueyny e ¥ Ll
$y08yd aoueldwod 8jep-jo-jno Jo Buissiw [louno)
8)9|dwoo 0] SI010B1UOD / yels Jusjedwod (010 'seb ‘1orem 3y} JO Seale SNOoLBA SS0I0B
Aq uayeuspun aq 0} Yiom Jo weibold e S)S00 [UOKIPPY o ‘a1 “69) passaippe sanss! Jalp syuswalinbal souedwoy e
papeo| Buiaq ejep Bunsixg e abewep |euoneinday e Aue pue -o}s ‘sbuip|ing $9SS0|
paule}qo uonnosesouid sjelodi0o ‘Buisnoy [eoos Joy JJBIS PUE 2INjoNJjSal Juaday e
2JEM)JOS MBU pUE PaljuSp! SI0IN0S Ejeq o Jejybnejsuew sjelodion e | PEIBIdWOO Ajuojoejshes useq $309Y92 819|dWod 0} JJels
BuISNOH [e190S UONUSAISIUI / BINSUSD AlojeinBay e | 10U ©ABY $%08U0 Soueldwiod Jusjedwod Ajedluyos) Jo soe e
10 Joje|nbay yum pasibe ueid uooy e 300)s Koy a1aym m,Em_u_mE swalsAs
payiuapl sanss| pue Buisnoy ; sesiwald sjelodiod SH PUE JEIS S} IPUnog Buuoyuow jIouUNo) sjenbapeu; e
uaXeLapun MalAal JUB)NSUOD [BUIBIXT e o} ebewep ; uoonsiseq e U} 0} st ale ady L senss| aoueldwoo
2INjoNJ}S Mau Japun ajqisuodsal sjuapisal sanss| asueldwon 10 JyBisiano juswabeuew )
Mmou juswiabeuew Jojuss juaiaylq e Jo yejs o} AinfurJo yjeeq e )203g ajesodion / abpajmouy jo yoe| e 9l .
[louno) a8y} 0} Buiiodas pue Buloyuow
0 10adsal ul apew sabueyo uoinsuo) e 199p Auedwod
"0)e ‘s10)08uI( Buipey) oy a|gel| IoUN0D e (
SE sJagquisw / SI821J0 JO JUBWSA|OAUI (Aouepunpai ‘6°8) Jlouno) ay) Ag palsinbas aq Aew
‘Buioueuy Buipnjour ‘sajuedwod Buipeuy S}s00 [euonippe 0} Buipes| ‘umop Buimouloq [eusaixs |eueisqnsg e
Jo} aoeyd ul nd aq 0} sjuswiaaibe [ewio] e -punom Ajjenjuans ssjuedwo) e SIS00 8oNpal / SWeaNs | of,nes 1500 1O SWODU| ‘SBOIAIDS
Juewop Apuaung Auedwo? Apadoid (rov SWOOUl 8SB8.0UI 0} 10 / PUB | 5 1nhg) jonlep O] I8} saiuedwo) e
|20 — S1aquIB\ PUe | ND Ag [ercsdde ssjuedwo) "68) sjuswalinbai seolnies Ay apinoud o} epio syuswalinbay
10} padojonap Buleq sesed ssauisng e leba] [euonippe j9sw o) aunjiey o | U sdluedwod buipes ybudl | b 606 ado pue [eBe) lpUOIPPY o
sanss| [ebg] abewep |euoneinday e “SWUE JO JuSWYs|qe}ss pabeuew Apood ase saiuedwo) e
Buipsebal 68 paulejqo adinpe isieroads e Sueo| o juswAhedas-uoN e BU} WOl [1unoy saluedwoo yibus|-swie
sased SSO| [elouBUl{ o ou} 0} Sysli ale alay L 10 uofjesado pue juswysiigelsa AuV
ssauisng BuipseBal sjuelNSU0D / S[IDUN0Y |OJJUOD [IDUNOY) JO YOBT e sojuedwon 3y} Jo 10edsal ui 1Iouno) ay}
Jay)0 WoJj PauIe)qo S0IAPE [eUIS)XT e papiroid JoU BJe S8OIAIBS e Buipe.s] Ayioyny oo ul aBpajmouy [eoIUYDS) JO OB  ° Fs Sl
uoisinoid Ajiajoe ainsig)
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV



Gl Jo G| abed

obueyo ou - &
paoanpai al09s jsu @

pasealoul 9109S )SU - @

'0}@ ‘uonjosla deus Joj sueld Aouabuuo)y e
s|19UNo9 Jayjo ‘68 wo.y paulejqo
sannieniuyspodal Aue pue 938 ‘v4dID
‘YO ‘68 saoinos Jayjo ajeudoidde

woJ} aoIApe Bulojuow [IDUN0) e
(uoneledaud Jeap ou, uo
'6'9) JuswuIBN09) WoJ} d2IApE pue Buines)

}saiun [INID/s}sajold e
uonos|e deus;wnpualajal
Jayuny o} [enuajod e
ssaussajpWoy
Ul 9sealoul [ejusjod e
$J0}09s
BwWos U s1ayJom A3y, JO SSOT o
awibal syyouaq o) sabueyy e
yels
|lounod 0} sauinbua [euolippy e
Buipdyooys/buiAng oiued oy
Buipes| ‘swa)l JawnsuoD JO }oe] e
uoljesauabal ‘ainjoniiseljul
‘62 syosloud Joy Buipuny jo yoe] e
uoljejuswnoop pue sassaosoud
|1ouno) o} paisinbas sabueyy e
wsLNo} uo joedwi anebaN e
S]S0D pasealou|] e
suolnesado pue sa9IAISS [IDUN0YD

Ajieqolb pue

N3 8y} ‘MN 8y} uo ‘Ajjeoo)
1oedwi 8y} pue panalyoe aq
[I!M Sy} Moy uo juswaaibe
ou [|3s sl aiay} ‘6102

yoJe|\ 6Z UO N3 ay} aAea) 0}
anp si YN 2y} pue patabbuy
usaq sey 0g 9Py ybnouyy

"0}2 ‘uoljejjul ‘sajel }salaul

0} sabueyo — [eneaydn OlWIOUODT e
JUBWUIBN0D)

Jo abueyo 10} [ejusjod e
winpuaJajal puodas/ajep

Buines| jo Aejep 1o} [ejuajod e
S3l}IUNWWOI JO UMOpXeald/yN ul

suazijo N3 uo joedwi ulepadun e
suoine|nbal

juswainooud o0} sabueyy e
UMOUY JOU S| SWa)l JSWNSU0D

10 s}soo/Ajjigejiene uo pedw| e
a|gejiene Buipuny

N3 ainn} Jano Ajulepsoun e
aoe|d aye) 0}

Page 139

spJemo) ssaiboid Buliojuow [IDUNOD e 1oedwi Aew sabueyo anjesiba] e suonesdwyj jixaig uonje|siba] Jo uoisinal JueoUBIS e Sl
|eoo] uey} Jayiel jeuoibal ale Junooyjjod
s})|nsal a1aym Jo (suonosje Alejusweled Jo} a|gejieAe Jejs suoloale
‘69) depiano suoibas Bunjon asaym paouauadxaul Jo/pue Juamoinsu| e
SalLIoYINe JUBAS|SI JBYJ0 YIIM UoSIel] e 6102 Aey ul
paysijgelsa 9Np sUoNJYs [PUNCY PIISIF JIN @
S2Inpao0.d UOIEOIILISA pUB JUNOD }SNCOY e epuaisjal ue|d pooyinoqubieoN
Bunon a|dijnw Joj uaping pasealou] e
|eysod ‘6°a 1o} sassaooid paysijgqelsy e uonoale
suonoy
Bunebniy / sjosuo) Jualing aouanbasuog 196611 | Ajgelauinpy | Buney ON

61/810C 43L1SID3d MSIY JID3LVHLS — TIONNOD LOIA1LSIA NNV




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 14

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL

REPORT TO AND DECISION OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE
ON 14 FEBRUARY 2019

PART A : REPORT
SUBJECT: Progress Against the Audit Plan

REPORT AUTHOR: Stephen Pearse, Chief Internal Auditor
DATE: February 2019

EXTN: 37561

PORTFOLIO AREA: Corporate Support

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Each year Internal Audit is undertakes its work against an annual audit plan, as approved
by the Audit & Governance Committee prior to the start of the financial year

The Committee is required to oversee the provision of an adequate and effective internal
audit service

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Members of the Audit & Governance Committee are requested to note the content of the
report on progress made against the outline Audit Plan agreed by the Committee at its
February meeting

1. BACKGROUND:

An outline Audit Plan was presented to, and approved by, the Committee at its
February 2018 meeting reflecting the resource currently available. The aim of the
plan was to ensure that mandatory work is completed, that there is appropriate
involvement in the progress of the 2020 Vision initiative / ongoing transformation and
to progress audit work on the priority / highest risk areas identified.

However, the Committee was advised that, although the revised management
structure has been finalised, some lower level organisational changes are still being
progressed and there is still considerable uncertainty as to where audit resource may
be required in the year.

The attached report identifies the main areas of work undertaken by the Internal Audit
section to February 2019.

2. PROPOSAL(S):

It is proposed that the Committee notes the content of the report on progress made

Page 141



against the outline Audit Plan agreed by the Committee at its February meeting

OPTIONS:
To note the contents of the report, or not

CONSULTATION:

Has consultation been undertaken with:

YES

NO

Relevant Town/Parish Council

Relevant District Ward Councillors

ANIAN

Other groups/persons (please specify)

AN

5.

ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)

YES

Z
o

Financial

Legal

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime &
Disorder Act

Sustainability

Asset Management/Property/Land

Technology

Other (please explain)

ANIEN N N NI N NN

IMPLICATIONS:

REASON FOR THE DECISION:

The Committee notes the content of the report on progress made against the outline
Audit Plan agreed by the Committee at its February meeting

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
N/A

Page 142




e
ARUN

DISTRICT COUNCIL

Audit Progress

At the Audit & Governance Committee meeting of 22 February 2018, the Committee
agreed an outline plan for the section for 2018/19.

Since the plan was provided to the Committee, work has been undertaken in the
following areas:-

Code

Title

Work performed

REO3

Main Accounting

Audit review of Budget processes under the e5 system
Reported to A&GC 26/7/18

Input to revised Financial Regulations progressed by
Finance which have been reviewed by the Constitution
Working Party and are due for approval by Full Council
in July 2018

(E&Y) Key controls testing completed

RE04

Purchase Ledger

Review of processes for corporate credit cards
Reported to A&GC 15/11/18
(E&Y) Key controls testing under way

REO8

Payroll

Monthly joiners and leavers checks
Enhanced key control checks review being progressed
(E&Y) Key controls testing under way

CS16

Housing Benefit (& Council
Tax Reduction)

Liaison with Finance, Procurement, Benefits and
external audit in respect of arrangements for future
Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim certification
Monthly new claim calculation checks

(E&Y) Key controls testing under way

CS17

Council Tax

Annual test checks on CT precept calculations
(E&Y) Key controls testing completed

CS18

NDR

(E&Y) Key controls testing under way

CS19

Income: Sundry Debtors

(E&Y) Key controls testing completed

CPO03
MS01

Corporate Governance

Annual Governance
Statement

Annual review of compliance against the Council’s
local Code of Corporate Governance

Identification of updates required to the Council’s Code
of Corporate Governance

Preparation of the updated Annual Governance
Statement

Draft AGS published on website with draft Accounts
(by 31 May) and provided to external audit

Reviewed by G&R Group 4/18

Reported to A&GC 26/7/18

MSO03

RIPA

Advice provided to service areas in respect of queries

Page 143




concerning possible use of surveillance, whether this
would fall within the scope of the RIPA legislation and
other options available

Review of (Home Office) Code changes

Updates to Council’s RIPA Policy being drafted

MS04

NFI

The NFI Council Tax Single Person Discount exercise
reports were received in December 2017. Review was
delayed awaiting an updated version of the Electoral
Roll to assist in the identification of records that have
already been altered

This has now been completed — large numbers of
‘false’ matches have been excluded and the remaining
cases passed to Revenues for consideration.
Revenues have removed SPD from 77 cases and re-
billed c.£61k

‘Rising 18’ cases were also reviewed and a small
number of queries passed to Revenues

Information on the NFl is included in the Annual
Counter-Fraud Report

Liaison with service areas / preparation for files to be
submitted in October 2018. Checking of files received
and liaison with service areas regarding issues prior to
submission to the Cabinet Office (the reports from the
main NFI exercise will be available for review in early
2019)

Council Tax and Electoral Roll files submitted for
annual Single Person Discount exercise. Reports
received from Cabinet Office in December 2018 and
review progressing

REOQO7

Income Collection / Systems

Notes drafted and circulated on electronic payment
processing and PCI-DSS issues outstanding. AllPay
contract is due to expire in 2020 and a corporate
decision / project will be required to consider future
electronic payment processing (currently mix of AllPay
and Capita) in line with the ICT Service Strategy and
the future Customer Access Strategy

CP02

Information & Data
Governance

Liaison with relevant staff in respect of GDPR
preparation requirements and review of draft policies /
changes, prior to their presentation to CMT

Regular updates are being provided to CMT by the
Group Head of Council Advice & Monitoring Officer
Consideration of the legal basis for Internal Audit
holding and ‘processing’ personal data and relevant
Privacy Notices (e.g. for the NFI) — published on
Council website

Review of data and documents held by Internal Audit
and destruction in line with agreed retention strategies

CP04

Risk Management

Review of Strategic Risk Register and proposals for
update for agreement by Governance & Risk Group
Updated SRR discussed with CMT and lead officer
and member for risk

Updated SRR presented to A&GC 15/11/18 — to be
completed 14/2/19

CS12

Information Technology

Review and update of the work performed in 2014 on
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checks for staff

Page 144




(linked to the Council’s Public Services Network
certification and use of DWP and GCSx services).
Results were passed to the HR Manager for review
and update

Draft ICT Service Strategy reviewed and comments
provided

Attended initial presentations on Office 365 —
consideration of ‘cloud’ security issues to be
progressed. ‘Early adopter’ use of software and liaison
with project regarding audit-specific software
Liaison with ICT & R&B regarding the project to
upgrade the Northgate R&B system in 2019

CS14

Information Security Policies

Linked to GDPR, Information Security Group (ISG)
discussion and review of policies e.g. Information
Security Policy and the Internet & Email Acceptable
Usage Agreement

Review and update of policies for approval by CMT
and ICM

Liaison with ICT staff regarding the processes for staff
testing on the policies via e-form

CS15

PCI-DSS Compliance

Confirmation with Contact Centre management that
the Red Box software installed as part of the telephony
upgrade operated effectively in muting call recording
when card payments are being taken by telephone to
meet PCI-DSS compliance requirements

Notes on outstanding PCI-DSS issues circulated — ICT
to obtain a consultant update on the 2014 assessment,
to consider the viability of potential alternative methods
of handling payments (e.g. chip & pin, IVR, call hand-
off, etc.)

PRO7

FMS Support / Replacement

A review of ‘lessons learnt’ from the implementation of
the new e5 system has been progressed, together with
consideration of changed budget preparation
processes. (The draft report was discussed at CMT on
17/7/18)

Reported to A&GC 15/11/18

As a result of this, a number of control issues
regarding the alteration and re-authorisation of orders
were discussed with staff in Procurement, Finance and
a number of service areas. Data extracts were used to
identify the extent of the issue and to identify the areas
involved

Further monthly data testing on order amendment
issues

INO2
CPO05

Fraud & Corruption
Fraud & Corruption

Compilation of data for publication to meet
Government Data Transparency Code requirements
Compilation and submission of data for CIPFA annual
fraud survey

Preparation of Annual Counter-Fraud Report
Reported to A&GC 26/7/18

ADO8

Audit Standards & Quality
(PSIAS/QAIP)

Update of appropriate Arun internal audit documents
Preparation of self-assessment to be used in Arun’s
future EQA

Undertaking the External Quality Assessment (EQA)
for Wealden DC and providing a report on the outcome

Page 145




(this is on a mutual support basis across the Sussex
Audit Group)

ESO1

Environmental Health

Liaison with Project Manager in respect of testing /
development and preparation of data for migration to
the new system

The amount of work involved and resourcing issues
required the implementation of Phase 1 of the project
to be put back to September 2018 and Phase 2 is in
progress

ES06

Leisure Strategy /
Management

A governance review of the new leisure centre project
is being progressed

CP06

Ethics

A review of ethical issues (as recommended by
CIPFA) is being progressed

CP08

Travel & Subsistence

Analytical review of car use / mileage commenced at
the request of the CEO

CP13

Grants & External Funding

Sample testing of disabled facilities grant cases in
order to provide certification to WSCC on the use of
the Integration and Better Care Fund: Disabled
Facilities Grant Capital Determination 2017-18
Liaison with Finance over proposals for County-wide
pooling of DFG in 2020

CS01

Housing Services -
Homelessness

A review of the processes in place for dealing with
homeless cases has been progressed and interim
finding reported to Housing management. Further
work is on hold, pending a restructure and review of
processes in the area

CS02

Housing Repairs

Liaison with senior management on progress of
investigation and agreed action plan to address the
issues raised by the Regulator of Social Housing
Liaison regarding the progress of the current
management restructure of the Housing department

CS06

Human Resources

At the request of the Human Resources Manager a
review of the Council’s Job Profiling scheme to ensure
that it is being applied consistently / decisions was
undertaken, in conjunction with Unison

MS05

Contract Checking

Sample checks on contract compliance with Council
Standing Orders and contract management in respect
of financials

REOQ5

Value Added Tax

Review and update of the work performed in 2015 on
validity and recording of VAT Registration numbers
(now in the e5 financial management system). Results
were passed to the Council’s Insurance & Risk Officer
for review

Page 146




e
fF—— 29
0
D
N
\J
D
D
O
D
@
00
=~

|
L
i
‘._‘_"U“{\: =
\3

-‘ i @ . ‘3@)\; ;;;31 1 - M 'I“Jf"v:i,

:y.,liiiiimi! . (57 s ot o
Ii!ﬁ%oﬁ"";i ¥ ” . .hi '_:._T‘

k& .‘._:;ﬁ'& 5 »
" .




| R MY AR Government and

economic news

Contents
at a glance
: Accounting,
l’ auditing and
: governance

Regulation news

Other

Find out
more

Page 148

10



This sector briefing is one of
the ways that we support you
and your organisation in an
environment that is constantly

Changing and eVO|Ving. [ e

It covers issues which may have an impact on your
organisation, the Local Government sector, and
the audits that we undertake.

The briefings are produced by our public sector
audit specialists within EY's national Government
and Public Sector (GPS) team, using our public
sector knowledge, and EY's wider expertise across
UK and international business.

The briefings bring together not only technical
issues relevant to the Local Government sector but
wider matters of potential interest to you and your
organisation.

Links to where you can find out more on any of
the articles featured can be found at the end of
the briefing.

We hope that you find the briefing informative
and should this raise any issues that you would
like to discuss further, please contact your local
audit team.

Page 149

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing 1



-

LS

N Government and

economic news

EY Club Item

The latest EY ITEM Club forecast casts a cloudier outlook for the
UK economy which will have implications for Local Authorities.
This partly reflects increased uncertainties about Brexit, due

to the elevated risk of the UK leaving the EU without a deal. It
also reflects a more challenging global outlook, and continued
pressures on consumer purchasing power.

The forecast has slightly downgraded the UK's economic
prospects for 2018 and 2019, with GDP growth for 2018 trimmed
from 1.4% to 1.3% — the slowest rate of expansion since 2009.
While performance improved in Q2 and Q3, the outlook has since
become less certain.

One positive note for UK economy is the robust growth in labour
demand. The unemployment rate remained at 4.0% for the three
months to July, the lowest level since February 1975. Over the
same period, the number of vacancies in the UK rose to 833,000,
highlighting the tightness in the labour market.

-9

o

&.,

(

As shown in Figure 1, it appears that the spare capacity in the
labour market created during the crisis has been largely absorbed.
The Bank of England’s (BoE) recent report about the labour
market suggests that very limited slack remains — a BoE's regional
Agents survey found that 40% of companies are finding it harder
to recruit and retain staff compared to last year.

Figure 1
UK: Unemployment rate
Forecast

Labour
Force
Survey

Claimant count

8
7
6
5
4 4
3
2
1
0
2

004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 2020

Source: EY ITEM Club

Page 150

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



The recruitment challenges facing employers are well known by
local authorities. An expanding and ageing population will only add
to the demand pressures, while the supply of workers may be at
risk due to the impact of Brexit on migration of EEA workers.

Theory suggests that, with unemployment falling and vacancies
rising, there is little scope for further labour market tightening
without generating excess wage pressures. However, earnings
growth has remained subdued in recent periods, and indeed
relapsed in Q2 2018. Some firms appear keen to limit their costs
in an uncertain environment, while fragile consumer confidence is
likely deterring workers from pushing hard for pay rises.

These consumer pressures are manifesting in many areas of

the economy, and notably in the housing market. Caution over
engaging in major transactions has seen mortgage approvals at
approximately 18.1% below their long-term (1993-2018) average.
Given the earnings squeeze, and the faltering demand for private
housing, the important role of social housing is likely to persist.
There were 1.2 million households on a waiting list for social
housing in England on 1 April 2017, exhibiting the significant
excess demand. As a result, the announcement by the Government
to scrap the HRA borrowing cap is welcome, and should go some
way to meeting demand in the market.

As Brexit beckons, what is the impact that
local authorities can expect across the UK?

With increasing focus on a potential extension to the Brexit
transitionary period and the likelihood of a ‘no-deal’ scenario
failing to diminish, local authorities are beginning to prepare for an
array of potential impacts from the UK's departure from the EU.
We look below at some of the key focus areas for local government
in assessing the impact of Brexit.

The impact on social care provision:

The social care workforce is particularly susceptible to the impact
of Brexit. Since the referendum in 2016, there has already been a
decrease in the number of EU nationals taking jobs in the UK social
care sector, and this is likely to be squeezed further with the end of
freedom of movement. This has the potential to lead to labour cost
inflation, increasing the financial pressure facing local authorities.

The effects described above will be exacerbated further due to
challenges in the healthcare system. The NHS is similarly likely to
suffer to workforce challenges and hence, funding challenges. This
has the potential to increase the pressure on hospitals to discharge
early, increasing the burden on the social care system’s capacity.
The government's winter crisis cash pledge to the system, is
unlikely to mitigate such challenges.

The impact on supply chains and logistics:

Some coastal local authorities may face years of road traffic
issues if border checks are applied following Brexit; authorities in
the South East likely to be most significantly affected, due to the
potential of border checks being applied at Dover.

Furthermore, investigations have been made by authorities such
as Pembrokeshire Council into the ready availability of food and
medicine in the event of road blockages and closures. Additionally,
local authorities are struggling to make plans around international
trade, as they await information on charges and how long waiting
times at ports are likely to be. This is particularly important in the
case of livestock and fresh foods being transported.

Changes to customs unions and physical borders may reduce the
availability and increase the price of key goods required by local
authorities, including adult social care supplies.

Consumer demand:

Brexit will impact the wider economy, and hence local authorities
will need to be attuned to the impact on their local economies.

Brexit uncertainty is already beginning to influence the high street
and local authorities need to consider the prospect of increasing
voids. Furthermore, local economies that are heavily dependent on
certain sectors that are vulnerable to the impact of Brexit, such as
financial services and agriculture, may bear a greater brunt of the
economic shock that Brexit may cause.

Local authorities may also be impacted more directly, especially
those authorities that have embarked enthusiastically on
commercial property investments, thereby creating direct
exposure to certain sectors, especially the retail sector. In respect
of this, CIPFA have issued a warning to councils outlining concerns
over their commercial activity, suggesting that some have been
quilty of putting public funds at ‘unnecessary or unquantified risk'.
Councils need to evaluate the proposed impact that they were
hoping such investments may have on their financial position,
along with other trading activity, in light of the potential economic
impact of Brexit.

Impact on property and agricultural land prices.

Predictions that property prices in general are likely to fall
following Brexit are well documented. Bank of England Governor
Mark Carney has stated that UK house prices may fall by up to a
third in the event of a ‘no-deal’ Brexit.

Page 151

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



A reduction in property prices may not be perceived to be a bad
outcome for all. Furthermore, the government’s HRA borrowing
cap announcement has the potential to allow councils to increase
the supply of housing, further supporting a challenged housing
market. However, such a reduction in property values is likely to
create a shock that may create financial hardship for many as well
as impacting the performance of certain sectors.

Budget 2018

On 29 October 2018 the Chancellor delivered the 2018 Autumn
Budget to Parliament. Among the headline policy announcements,
such as a new 2% tax on revenue for large digital companies,
changes to the income tax threshold bands, and increase in
funding to help departments prepare for Brexit, there were a
number of announcements that will have a direct impact on local
authorities. These key announcements include:

Immediate abolition of the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) cap which restricts local authority borrowing for
house building.

£675mn Investment in the Future High Street Fund created

to support local areas prepare long term strategies for their
high streets and town centres, including investment in physical
infrastructure. As part of this announcement, small retail
businesses will see a 33% decrease in business rates and
public lavatories will receive 100% business rate relief after
April 2019.

Increased staff costs for local authorities; as the national living
wage is set to increase by 5% from £7.83 to £8.21 an hour.

Allocation of additional £420mn to local authorities in 2018/19
to tackle potholes and repair damaged roads.

Local authorities in England will receive a further £650mn in
social care funding.

CIPFA's response to the budget was that while the additional short
term support for the provision of services is welcomed, there are
greater long term challenges that need to be addressed to embed
sustainable funding. The July 2018 OBR's (OBR) projection, upon
which the budget was based, forecasts that within 50 years the UK
will not be able to afford anything more than debt interest, health,

social care and pension payments. CIPFA is clear that there is not
sufficient funding to sustain expectations of public services at the
current levels of taxation.

The Local Government Association (LGA) analysis has estimated
that local services face a funding gap of £7.8bn by 2024/25; the
funding gap as of 2019/20 is estimated to be £3.9bn. The services
where there are the greatest funding pressures include social care,
homelessness and public health. However, the growing demand
for these services has detrimentally impacted on other services
that help maintain local communities including libraries, roads and
welfare support.

An unexpected announcement made by Government during the
budget was that it will no longer use Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
schemes, or its successor PF2, because PFl schemes have been
identified by the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) as a source
of significant fiscal risk to the Government. It is unclear if this
decision by central Government will impact on local authorities in
future years.

CIPFA Investment Guidance

The media spotlight and public scrutiny surrounding local
government finances has increased significantly over the past
year due to increased pressures to deliver services from reduced
funding. To help authorities better manage their finances CIPFA
is updating its guidance on Treasury Management. The new key
principle of guidance will be that ‘Local authorities must not
borrow more than or in advance of their needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed'.

During 2017/18 the rate at which English councils acquired land
and buildings increased by 43% to a total of £4bn; whereas total
borrowing increased from £4bn to £10bn (127 %). As such there
is a growing concern that too many local authorities are investing
heavily in commercial property at a rate that is disproportionate
to their available resources. This exposes public funds to
unquantified risks. This stands against the primary objective of

a local authority’s treasury management strategy to safeguard
public money.

Page 152

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



Accounting,
auditing and
governance

IFRS 9: Statutory Override update

The 2018/19 financial year will be the first year where the
accounting standard IFRS 9 will be implemented by local
government. IFRS 9 impacts on an authority’s financial assets:
the investments it holds; the amounts it has lent to others; and
other monetary based assets it may have. It changes how these
financial assets are classified and how movements in their value
are accounted for. It also changes how these assets are impaired;
based on the risk that the assets may not be recovered in full,

or at all.

Following a consultation by the Ministry for Housing Communities
and Local Government on the impact of IFRS 9, an initial statutory
override has been granted for five years, despite 90% stakeholders
opposing a time-limited period. This statutory override means that
councils will still be required to account for fair value movements
in financial instruments (in accordance with proper practices as
set out in the code on local authority accounting); however these
movements will not be charged to the revenue account.

The result of which is that statutory override will remove the
potential burden that council tax payers or local authorities may
have faced if fair value movements were unfavourable.

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation

The Government undertakes a valuation of public service pension
schemes every four years, this year sees the first full assessment
of these since the introduction of reformed schemes in 2015.

M
1

ErE== lli&ﬂ
=g

— -1 ji

" = e
L m ]l == e = S I,

cffpur=

The Chief Secretary to the Treasury has stated that early
indications would suggest that employers' contribution will need
toincrease as a result of a proposed decrease in the discount
rate. The discount rate, known as the SCAPE rate, is based on

the OBR projection of the short-term pay growth in terms of

GDP. OBR has reduced this rate from 3.0% to 2.8% in 2016 and

a further reduction has been proposed as of April 2019 to 2.4%.
This discount rate is used to calculate the current costs of future
payments and as the discount rate decreases, the pension liability
increases. Given that employee rates are effectively fixed under
scheme regulations, employer contributions will need to increase
to meet the increased liability. Further details are to be announced
later in the year in addition to further discussion taken forward as
part of the spending review.

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap

For the public to gain trust and confidence in public spending,

a framework of accountability, transparency, governance and
ethics needs to be built. The ultimate responsibility lies with the
government departments that delegate spending to local public
bodies. These public bodies must then be able to demonstrate that
the money has been spent efficiently and effectively.

One way the public can gain trust in public spending, is by relying
on the external audit process to provide assurance on the financial
statements and report by exception on the arrangements the

Page 153

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



public body has in place to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness. However, the role of audit, is often misunderstood
creating the audit expectation gap which is the difference between
what an auditor actually does, as required by legislation and
auditing standards, and what stakeholders think that the auditors’
obligations might be and what they might do.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(ICAEW) produced a report to raise awareness on the expectation
gap and suggest some possible solutions. The report also
discusses how issues faced by local public bodies such as financial
difficulties, increasing demand from an ageing population,
complex structures and weaknesses of accountability impacts the
audit process and widens the expectation gap.

Some common concerns were noted in the report by
interviews with Chief Financial Officers in different sectors and
regulatory bodies:

1. Local authorities and health bodies are facing a difficult time
with increasing pressure to deliver more services, become
innovative and commercial with reduced financial support. This
pressure could bring in concerns about behaviours that may
not be in the best long-term interests of the public.

2. Reports produced by auditors are not being fully utilised by
management and audit committees to build on successes and
make improvements within the body where recommendations
have been made.

3. Auditors are concerned that qualifications and issues identified
in their opinions are not taken seriously enough by those
charged with governance.

4. The reduction in audit fees has led to a perception by
local bodies that they are receiving reduced scope of work
compared to the previous regime (Audit Commission).
The concerns are not in relation to compliance with auditing
standards, but rather the lack of value added activities that
was previously provided.

5. Chief Financial Officers expect more challenge and review
of their forward-looking plans which underpin the financial
resilience of the authority.

6. Other stakeholders are not getting sufficient assurance over
the effectiveness of service delivery and performance in
auditors’ work.

7. Increased regulation and scrutiny against the reduced number
of auditor firms in the local government market.

8. Local public auditors' power being limited by the removal of
indemnity insurance and increased difficulty to recover costs.

The ICAEW has offered a number of potential solutions in the
report to close this expectation gap including:

1. Chief Financial Officers could consider involving external
support to assist them in their financial resilience work, such as
challenging their budget assumptions and other key decision
making factors, instead of relying on external auditors to
provide other value added activities, as these may have some
independence restrictions.

2. More broadly, consideration could be given to widen
the scope of the audit to include for example a greater
future-looking focus.

Page 154

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



Regulation
news

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits

PSAA (Public Sector Accounts Appointments) has reported

its annual summary on the timeliness and quality of financial
reporting in relation to audits for the 2017/18 financial year.

A total of 431 (87 %) local government and fire authorities
published their audited accounts by the deadline of 3 July 2018.
2017/18 was the first year that the accounts and audit deadline
was brought forward from the 30 September to the 31 July.
PSAA's Chief Officer stated that whilst these results were
encouraging and reflect considerable efforts of both local

government finance staff and auditors, there is still more work to
be done in order for 100% of authorities to meet the new deadline.

The number of qualified ‘Value for Money' conclusions is
currently at 7% (compared to 8% for 2016/17); however there
30 conclusions still to be issued for 2017/18. The most common
reasons for issuing a qualified Value for Money conclusion were
corporate governance issues, financial stability concerns and
contract management issues.

Page 155

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



NN
s B\ =
RN \ \NARNERY /, ¢
S AVAVAN NVAVAYA Wa Va | \VAVAVAN SVAVAV,WAS. \ |\ WA AA GREAY . )
AN N\ N\ NAN NS\ LY .\““V/} /

3 . . va. ¥ ~ 7 A

[ =1 v
s

kL 2

—’: 7

S

EY 2018 Transparency Report

Our profession has come under scrutiny from policymakers and
other stakeholders over the year, and the need for transparency
has never been greater. Increasingly, the public is expecting more
and more from the audit than its current remit requires. This
difference is known as the ‘audit expectation gap’ which has been
discussed above. We believe the time is right for all concerned in
the corporate control ecosystem to seize the moment and consider
deeply what society expects from businesses and the assurance it
needs over their activity.

It's in our interests and the public's for EY UK to be as open and
transparent as possible. The Transparency Report goes some
way towards helping us achieve this, while also providing an
opportunity to share a more balanced perspective on what we

do and how we perform as a business. For example, it refers to
our role in building trust and confidence in the capital markets
and wider economies, by maintaining and developing positive
relationships with our stakeholders. It explains what we do to make
a difference to people’s lives by helping to improve social mobility
in the UK. It also shows how our people are supported in their role
as auditors by making reference to our tools, technologies and
training programmes. Details on internal and external surveys and
inspections are included as well, to show how we are performing
against our own expectations and — most importantly — those of
our reqgulators.

We refer to this report in our audit planning reports to audit
committees, and we summarise the key headlines below.

Page 156

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



2018 Highlights

Audit quality

External review

‘ 82% of EY's FTSE 350
audits and 6 7% of all
82%

inspected audits required
no more than limited
improvements

(FY17: 92% and 88% respectively)
as at 29 October 2018

No FRC fines for audit work completed

in the last five years and N0 sanctions
against EY UK partners in respect of that
period

The result of the FRC's most recent review of out audits showed
that 82% of our FTSE 350 audits were graded as requiring no
more than limited improvement, against a 90% target. Overall
67% of all EY UK's audits inspected were graded as requiring no
more than limited improvements. We are proud of the progress
we have made in the UK since the launch of UK Sustainable Audit
Quality (SAQ) programme a few years ago. But there is still more
work to be done to consider audit quality from the viewpoint

of key stakeholders: investors, audit committees, companies,
regulators and our people. The work we have done to model the
behaviours of our highest performing teams, using cognitive
psychologists, will continue. In the year ahead we will prioritise
the extent and consistency of the model's adoption. We aim to
transform the behaviours that feature in the model into business-
as-usual activity across all of our audit teams.

Internal review

1 08 engagements

reviewed in FY18, covering

A7 oo

Responsible Individuals, of

which 8 1 % had

no improvements or minor
improvements only

Delivery
Of our people in Audit

' o..’o
dfin
0
96/0 96% consider
delivering quality audits
a priority
and

97% understand their role ,
as an auditor in providing

independent assurance, 0,
supporting strong capital 97 A)
markets and protecting the

public interest

As organisations become more complex, so do audits, making
access to different skills and capabilities more important than
ever. The traditional audit has already been transformed by the
use of technology and digital platforms, and the pace of change
will only accelerate. These new capabilities enable us to search,
sift and sort through large quantities of data, allowing us to
identify potential areas of risk and understand an organisation's
performance at a more granular level. The audit process is
becoming more forward looking, with a focus on anticipating
future risks. Our new capabilities are also providing insights
into areas that were once thought to be impossible to measure,
such as culture.

This unprecedented scrutiny and demand for change, can be seen

as an incredible opportunity to focus our efforts on addressing the
root cause, deliver sustainable high quality audit and gain the trust
and confidence in the capital markets society needs and demands.

Page 157

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



Find out more

EY Club Item

https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/
financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-
projections

2018 Budget

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-
you-need-to-know

https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/Iga-responds-budget-2018

https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-
releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/
Moving%20the%20conversation%200n%20-%20LGA%20
Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf

CIPFA Investment Guidance

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-
guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges

Local Public Audit — Expectations gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-
public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-
expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/
policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en

IFRS 9: Statutory Override

https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-
last-five-years

Public Sector Pension Scheme Valuation

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/
system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_
Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf

https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/
written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/
Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/

PSAA: Report on results of 2017/18 audits

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-
auditors-work/

EY Transparency Report 2018
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-
report-2018
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-
transparency-report/SFile/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf

Page 158

10

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing


https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/issues/business-environment/financial-markets-and-economy/item---forecast-headlines-and-projections
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-you-need-to-know
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/budget-2018-24-things-you-need-to-know
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/lga-responds-budget-2018
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018
https://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/cipfa-responds-to-budget-2018
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Moving%20the%20conversation%20on%20-%20LGA%20Autumn%20Budget%20Submission%202018.pdf
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/10/cipfa-investment-guidance-will-help-councils-steer-through-challenges
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/about-icaew/regulation-and-the-public-interest/policy/public-sector-finances/local-public-audit-expectations-gap
https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en
https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/about-icaew/policy/local-public-audit-expectation-gap.ashx?la=en
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-last-five-years
https://www.publicfinance.co.uk/news/2018/11/ifrs-9-override-last-five-years
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/738917/Technical_Bulletin_Public_Service_Pension_Schemes_Valuations.pdf
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/written-questions-answers-statements/written-statement/Commons/2018-09-06/HCWS945/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf
https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report/$File/ey-uk-2018-transparency-report.pdf

Local Government Audit Committee Briefing 11



12 Local Government Audit Committee Briefing



Local Government Audit Committee Briefing 13



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY

EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services.
The insights and quality services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world over. We develop
outstanding leaders who team to deliver on our promises to all of our
stakeholders. In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better
working world for our people, for our clients and for our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or more, of

the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each of which is a
separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients. For more information
about our organization, please visit ey.com.

Ernst & Young LLP
The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

© 2018 Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None
EY-000083110.indd (UK) 12/18. Artwork by Creative Services Group London.

In line with EY's commitment to minimise its impact on the environment, this document
%(9 has been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

Information in this publication is intended to provide only a general outline of the subjects covered.
It should neither be regarded as comprehensive nor sufficient for making decisions, nor should it
be used in place of professional advice. Ernst & Young LLP accepts no responsibility for any loss
arising from any action taken or not taken by anyone using this material.

ey.com/uk

Page 162



Agenda Iltem 16

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME - 2019/2020

Date of Meeting: 30 July 2019

Statement of Accounts

Agenda
Items

Subject

Lead Officer/Member

Comments

1

Final Statement of Accounts
2018/19

Financial Services
Manager

Draft version will be
provided to external
audit and posted on
the Council’'s website
at 31 May 2019

Annual Governance Statement

Chief Internal Auditor

Draft version will be
considered by
Chairman / Vice
Chairman in May,
provided to external
audit and posted on
the Council’s website
at 31 May 2019

External Audit

3 Response to E&Y on annual Committee Chairman | Letter will be agreed
assurance letter regarding with (2019/20)
governance arrangements Chairman and sent to

external audit in April

4 Audit Results Report — ISA 260 Ernst & Young

5 Annual Audit Fee Letter Ernst & Young

Governance Framework

6 Local Code of Corporate Chief Internal Auditor
Governance
Treasury Management
7 Treasury Management Annual Senior Accountant Recommendations for
Report (Treasury approval by Full
Management) Council (11/9/19)
Internal Audit
8 Annual Internal Audit Report & Chief Internal Auditor
Opinion
9 Update on the work of Internal Chief Internal Auditor

Audit

Other Items

10 Independent Remuneration Panel | TBC
— update
11 Annual Counter-Fraud Report Chief Internal Auditor | Any urgent updates
can be provided at
other meetings
12 Chairman’s Annual Report To Chairman To be presented to
Council Full Council
13 Update on the progress of Council- | TBC
owned companies
14 Annual update on use of RIPA Chief Internal Auditor

Year

powers in the previous Municipal

Work Programme

15

To agree the rolling work

programme for 2019/2020

o
=

Chief Internal Auditor

12

Updates, etc.

C

100




AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME - 2019/2020

Date of Meeting: 21 November 2019

Statement of Accounts

Agenda
Items

Subject

Lead Officer/Member

Comments

There are no items currently
planned for this meeting

External Audit

1

Annual Audit Letter

Ernst & Young

2

Annual Certification Report
2018/19

Ernst & Young

Certification of the
Housing Benefit
Subsidy Claim

Governance Framework

3 | Updated Strategic Risk Register | Chief Internal Auditor |
Treasury Management
4 Treasury Management Mid-Year Senior Accountant Recommendations for
Report (Treasury approval by Full
Management) Council (8/1/20)
Internal Audit
5 Update on the work of Internal Chief Internal Auditor

Audit

Other Items

7 Independent Remuneration Panel TBC
— update
8 Update on the progress of Council- | TBC

owned companies

Work Programme

9

To agree the rolling work
programme for 2019/2020

Chief Internal Auditor

Updates, etc.

Page 164




AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME - 2019/2020

Date of Meeting: 13 February 2020

Statement of Accounts

Agenda | Subject Lead Officer/Member | Comments

Items

1 Accounting Policies for 2019/20 Financial Services If CIPFA advise of any
Accounts Manager changed

requirements, then an
update will be
provided at the July
meeting

External Audit

2 Audit Plan (and Progress Report)

Ernst & Young

Covering the audit of
the 2019/20 Accounts

Governance Framework

3 Capital Strategy

Financial Services
Manager

For approval by Full
Council (18/3/20)

Treasury Management

4 Treasury Management Strategy Senior Accountant For approval by Full
Statement and Annual Investment | (Treasury Council (18/3/20)
Strategy Management)

Internal Audit

5 Annual Internal Audit Plan Chief Internal Auditor

6 Update on the work of Internal Chief Internal Auditor
Audit

Other Items

7 Update on the progress of Council- | TBC

owned companies

Work Programme

8 To agree the rolling work
programme for 2019/2020

Chief Internal Auditor

February meeting has to be timed so that Treasury Management Strategy can be approved by Full

Council before 31/3/20

Page 165




AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME - 2019/2020

Other items to be considered in Work Programme:-

Independent Members’ Remuneration Panel

- Recruitment / appointments
- Proposals for / progress of review
- Report on review / proposals for change to be passed by A&GC to Full Council

Property Investment Fund
- Progress reports (Property & Estates Manager)
Local Property Company
- Progress reports, should it start operating (S151 Officer / Cabinet)
Governance & Risk Group updates
Relevant policy reviews, updates, etc.

Page 166



	Agenda
	6 ERNST & YOUNG  - AUDIT PLAN & PROGRESS REPORT
	7 ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR 2018/19 ACCOUNTS
	Agenda Item 7 - Appendix 1

	8 CAPITAL STRATEGY
	Agenda Item 8 Appendix A
	Agenda Item 8 - Appendix B

	9 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY
	12 ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
	13 REVISED STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER 2018/19
	Agenda Item 13 - Appendix A

	14 PROGRESS AGAINST THE AUDIT PLAN
	Agenda Item 14 - Appendix A

	15 INFORMATION / ADVISORY DOCUMENTS RECEIVED
	16 FUTURE WORK PLAN FOR THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

